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A legacy of trust...
A promising future...

Building on a tradition of trust and embracing a 
technology-driven future, we have come a long way 
to become India’s largest urban co-operative bank. 
For more than 100 years, we have also contributed 
to the nation’s growth by providing banking services 
tailored to changing requirements and convenience of 
our customers. Our customer-centricity, our enduring 
legacy of trust and our foresight for adopting new‑age 
technologies will propel us to a promising next 
century of service.     

We have evolved and re-engineered our value 
propositions to customers to adapt to the changing 
ways and times. We combine the trust and efficiency 
of a traditional bank with the technology and 
convenience of a new-age institution to remain 
relevant and stay ahead of the curve.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Banking on 
trust and 
foresight
DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,
I am delighted to present to you 
the Annual Report for the financial 
year 2018-19 - the 101st year of 
our existence. The journey of a 
hundred years has seen us cross 
several milestones to become the 
largest urban co-operative bank 
in India - a journey of unwavering 
commitment to the cause of the 
co-operative banking sector. This 
legacy of the past is a continuation 
of the painstaking efforts taken 
by our founder members, 
visionary leaders, employees and 
stakeholders of the Bank, and we 
are beholden to all of them. 
As I reflect on this unique journey, 
I cannot help but introspect on 
what we have earned over the 
years. The strong and robust 
foundation that we have built 
upon, the unflinching support of 
our employees and most of all, 
the trust of all our shareholders and 
stakeholders are our real triumphs. 
A promising future beckons…
As we enter a new millennium, we 
cannot help but reflect on how the 
world is changing. Two decades 
ago, many of us might not have 
used a computer. But in no time, 
the computer has metamorphosed 
into today’s omnipresent mobile 
device. Today, even a schoolgoing 
child knows how to operate a 
mobile device. The point that 
I am trying to drive home is 
that an entire new generation is 
developing – a generation which 

is tech-savvy and which demands 
the emergence and development of 
innovative banking. 
As we chart our course going 
forward, we are aware that we 
cannot rest on past laurels.  
The future is bright but to remain 
relevant and contemporary, and 
to ensure growth, it is imperative 
to align with innovation and 
digitalisation. Armed with our core 
values which we have followed 
since inception, we have integrated 
new-age banking technologies to 
bring best-in-industry products 
and services to all our customers 
- spanning traditional patrons 
and tech-savvy ones - in a happy 
confluence of the conventional and 
the modern. 
OUR PERFORMANCE IN 
PERSPECTIVE
With an overall slowdown in the 
economy at large, and in the 
banking sector in particular, your 

Bank has adopted a shift in its 
approach from top-line growth 
to bottom line growth in the past 
few years, by implementing 
measures such as improving the 
Credit-Deposit (CD) ratio and 
reducing cost of deposits. 
The effects are visible in the 
doubling of our operating profit in 
the last five years i.e. from 
₹ 332.36 crore to ₹ 630.27 crore.
Another issue that continues to 
plague the banking sector is the 
rising NPAs which has led to 
shrinking profitability in banks and 
in some cases, even erosion of 
capital. However, I am happy to 
share that your Bank has been 
able to successfully contain its 
NPAs. Your Bank’s business level 
has increased from ₹ 44,969 crore 
as on 31st March, 2015 to 
₹ 61,812 crore as on 31st March 
2019 i.e. a rise of  ₹ 16,843 crore 
in absolute terms or 37.45%. 
However, on the NPA front, during 
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the same five-year period, the net 
NPAs rose marginally in the range 
of 0.67% - 1.80% and thus were 
contained and range-bound. This 
reflects the emphasis placed on the 
asset quality while simultaneously 
growing the business.

BUILDING THE FOUNDATION 
FOR A STRONG TOMORROW
The transition of banking to 
new-age innovative banking has 
also served as an opportunity 
for us to assess our existing 
processes and to take corrective 
and preventive steps and 
fortifications, wherever required. 
As a step in this direction, towards 
creating a more robust technology 
platform that is capable of keeping 
pace with our future business 
growth, we have launched three 
new projects this year viz. Project 
Udaan, Project Niyantran and 
Project Satark. 

• Project Udaan is the Bank’s 
ambitious plan to migrate to 
a new Core Banking System.

• Project Niyantran is the 
transformation of the Bank’s 
existing audit process to 
Risk Based Audit.

• Project Satark will 
strengthen the Information 
Security of the Bank.

With these projects, your Bank 
has undertaken a massive 
transformation in terms of its 
systems and processes.  
The successful implementation of 
these projects, which is underway, 
will help your Bank in further 
consolidating its position as a 
strong, sturdy and robust Bank.
PROMISING FUTURE
The journey of the next 100 years 
is exciting and full of promise. New 

technologies are transforming 
banking, causing disruptions. 
However, these so-called 
disruptions are a positive 
opportunity for the banking 
industry. Technology is the great 
leveller of our times. From our 
Bank’s perspective, the positive 
aspect is our just-adequate size. 
In fact, this size today is a blessing 
for us. We personify the ability of 
the large bank and the agility of 
the small bank. Due to our size, 
we are swift and nimble-footed 
to quickly adapt to the changing 
banking landscape.
Your Bank has set up a Digital 
Banking Department, thus taking 
a digital leap forward. Several 
digital banking products were 
introduced while improvements 
were undertaken in the existing 
ones. We have upgraded the 
mobile banking app GOMO, made 
internet banking more user-friendly 
and also launched facilities such 
as Bank-on-Tab, online account 
opening (Saraswat Bank100) 
and Bank on WhatsApp. In fact, 
your Bank is the first among 
co-operative banks to launch its 
services on WhatsApp. Your Bank 
also took special efforts to improve 
the security of its digital services 
and to push awareness of its 
digital products.
While digital technologies will 
enable the creation of new 
products, investing in skilled 
personnel will enable your Bank to 
tap into the demographic dividend. 
Of the 4,300+ workforce of your 
Bank, 31.40% of the staff is below 
30 years of age while 34.65% is 
within 31-40 years age group. 
Such a young and energetic 
workforce adds to the strength 
and dynamism of the organisation. 
The attrition rate of your Bank is 
3.12%, the lowest in the industry! 
That says a lot about the work 
culture, ethos and environment in 

your Bank. We are committed to 
ongoing investment in training and 
development of our people so as 
to improve their skillsets and help 
them realise their potential, ensure 
role clarity, career progression and 
succession planning. Employees 
are put through regular training 
programmes - conducted in-house 
as well as by reputed external 
agencies - to engage, motivate and 
retain them.
With all these measures viz. 
improvements in technology, 
innovation, strengthening of 
infrastructure/systems/processes, 
investing in the demographic 
dividend, we are preparing 
ourselves for the promising future. 
With our strong consumer connect 
and technological prowess, we are 
confident that the Bank will not only 
keep pace with the modern-day 
competitive environment but also 
emerge as a bigger, stronger and 
robust Bank, while also serving 
as a role model and pioneer in 
the banking industry. However 
big a tree is, the roots need to 
be strong and firmly entrenched, 
even as it looks upward to touch 
the skies. As we remain poised on 
the growth path, our foundation 
and core values remain strong and 
deep-rooted.
I take this opportunity to thank the 
shareholders for their continued 
support to this unique institution, 
admired by all in the co-operative 
sector in particular, and as a model 
of success in the banking industry. 

Best Regards,

GAUTAM E. THAKUR

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...
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THE JOURNEY SO FAR

Founded in 1918, Saraswat
Co-operative Bank is India’s largest 
Urban Co-operative Bank (UCB) with 
more than 100 years of illustrious legacy. 
We began our journey as The Saraswat 
Co-operative Banking Society with the 
primary objective of helping distressed 
families with funds for temporary 
accommodation, repayment of debt 
and medical emergencies. In 1933, the 
Society was converted into a full-fledged 
Urban Co-operative Bank. Today, our 
operations are spread across six states 
through a network of 280+ branches 
and 266 ATMs. We have correspondent 
banking relationships across sixty-five 
countries covering nine currencies.

Our Mission:
‘To emerge as one of 
the premier and most 
preferred banks in the 
country by adopting 
the highest standards 
of professionalism and 
excellence in all the 
areas of working.’

OUR LOCATIONS

Our operations 
are spread across 
Maharashtra, Goa, 

Gujarat, Delhi, 
Madhya Pradesh 
and Karnataka

Growing our 
reach and 
reputation
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

Diversified 
offerings
We provide a variety of products and services across various banking 
segments tailored to the needs of our domestic and international customers.

PERSONAL BANKING

Savings Accounts:
• Regular Savings Account
• Elite Savings Account
• Elite Silver Savings Account
• Elite Gold Savings Account
• Cubs Account
• My Money Savings Account
• Campus Savings Account
• Akshay Salary Account
• Suvidha Savings Account
• Janhit Account
• Pradhan Mantri Jan Dhan Yojana
• My Money Savings Account

Term Deposits:
• Fixed Deposits (Cumulative and 

Non-Cumulative)
• Recurring Deposits
• Madhukar Tax Saving Deposits

Retail Loans:
• Car/Two-wheeler Loan
• Education Loan
• Vastu Siddhi Home Loan
• Kwik LAP
• Doctor Delite
• Personal Loan
• Multipurpose Loan – Group Loan 

Scheme
• E-stock Advance
• Gold Loan Yojana
• Advance against Government/RBI 

Bonds
• Advance against Tangible Security

Insurance:
• Life Insurance
• General Insurance
• Health Insurance

Demat Accounts
• 3-in-1 Account

Remittance Services:
• Travel Related
• Other Remittances

Mutual Funds

BUSINESS BANKING

Current Accounts:
• Regular Current Account
• Elite Current Account
• Premium Current Account
• Platinum Current Account

Business Loans:
• Corporate Loan
• Term Loan
• Lease Rent Discounting Loan
• Commercial Automobile Loan
• Udyogini
• Working Capital
• Unnati Loan

Corporate Services:
• Bank Guarantee
• Bill Discounting
• Buyers Credit
• Letters of Credit (Inland & Foreign)

Trade Finance:
• Export Finance
• Import Finance

Mudra Loans under Pradhan Mantri 
Mudra Yojana (PMMY):
• Shishu • Kishore • Tarun

Micro Finance 

Self Help Groups

`

Cards:
• RuPay Platinum International 

Credit Card
• RuPay Classic International 

Debit Card
• RuPay Platinum International 

Debit Card
• Visa Classic International Debit Card
• Visa Platinum International 

Debit Card
• Gift Card
• Prepaid Card
• Travel Currency Cards
• Contactless Debit Card

Other Services:
• One-Page Internet Banking
• Corporate Internet Banking
• GoMo – Mobile Banking
• Saraswat UPI on BHIM
• mPassbook
• 24/7 Phone Banking Service
• Missed Call Service
• SMS Banking
• Saraswat Bank Connect
• InstaPay
• National Electronic Toll Collection – 

NETC (FasTag)
• Bank on Tab
• Saraswat Bank 100
• Bank on WhatsApp
• Cardless Cash Withdrawal

DIGITAL BANKING

NRI BANKING

Trade Finance

NRI Loans:
• Personal Loan
• Vastu Siddhi Home Loan

NRI Deposits:
• Foreign Currency Non-Resident 

(Bank) Deposit – FCNR (B) Deposit 

• Non-Resident External (NRE) 
Account 

• Non-Resident Ordinary (NRO) 
Account 

• Resident Foreign Currency Account

Overseas (NOSTRO)

Account Forex Centres

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...
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Key performance 
indicators
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Commemorating our glorious 
journey of 100 years

CENTENARY CELEBRATION

“Co-operation is in our DNA 
and in the coming 100 years, 
we wish to be counted as the 
largest co-operative bank 
not only in Asia but also 
in the world” - These were 
the words of Shri Gautam 
Thakur - Chairman, at the 
grand centenary completion 
celebrations of Saraswat 
Bank held at Sardar 
Vallabhbhai Patel Stadium 
Worli on 15th September, 2018. 

The event was graced by 
respected Shri Sharad Pawar, 
former Central Minister 
and President - Nationalist 
Congress Party and respected 
Shri Uddhav Thackeray, 
Chief, Shiv Sena. Chairman 
of the Bank - Shri Gautam 
Thakur, Vice-Chairman - 
Shri Shashikant Sakhalkar, 
respected Director - Padmashri 
Madhu Mangesh Karnik and 
Managing Director, Mrs. Smita 
Sandhane also shared the 
stage with the dignitaries. 

The celebrations were attended 
by approximately 4,000 people 
that included the entire Board 
of our Bank, luminaries from 
the nation’s banking sector 
and renowned institutions, 

and representatives of the 
Government, among others. 
The highlight of the programme 
was a musical concert by 
the celebrated playback 
singer, Shreya Ghoshal who 
mesmerised the audience with 
her brilliant performance.

The Bank launched two new 
products on this occasion 
- Saraswat Bank 100 and 
RuPay Contactless Debit 
Card. Saraswat Bank 100 
is a simple, seamless and 
secured way to open a Savings 
account with Saraswat Bank 
from users’ mobile phones. 
Saraswat Bank’s RuPay 
Contactless Debit Card provides 

convenience of contactless 
payments (tap & go) using Near 
Field Communication (NFC) 
technology. 

The support of the 
shareholders, confidence of the 
customers and sheer dedication 
of the employees helped the 
Bank to achieve this historic 
milestone…and will stand us in 
good stead as we gear up for 
the next 100 years. Our journey 
will continue in consonance 
with our avowed mission to 
emerge as one of the premier 
and most preferred banks in the 
country by adopting the highest 
standards of professionalism 
and excellence in all areas 
of working.

Dignitaries on the dais (L-R): Shri S. K. Sakhalkar, Padmashri Madhu Mangesh 
Karnik, Resp. Shri Sharad Pawar, Resp. Shri Uddhav Thackeray, Shri Gautam 
Thakur and Mrs. Smita Sandhane.
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The dignitaries lighting the ceremonial lamp

Launch of the Bank’s two new products – Saraswat Bank 100 and Contactless Debit Card

Release of the book comprising 100 published articles of the 
Bank’s respected Director, Shri P. N. Joshi on the occasion of the 
Bank’s centenary.

Release of the Bank’s book on its 100 year journey, Shatabdi Saraswat 
written by Bank’s respected Director, Padmashri Madhu Mangesh 
Karnik.

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...
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HIGH NOTES

Moments 
we treasure
We are proud to be recognised as one of 
the leaders among the nation’s co-operative 
banking sector. As a result of our robust 
operational quality, we have received 
numerous awards. Some of our achievements 
for the fiscal under revieY are as DeloY�

INDIAN BANKING ASSOCIATION (IBA) 
TECHNOLOGY AWARDS 2019

The IBA Technology Awards honour 
individuals, professionals and banks 
identifying themselves in the technology 
segment of the Banking Industry. 
The awards celebrate organisations 
whose ideas, risk leadership qualities 
and implementation of various initiatives 
have taken their organisations ahead of 
their competitors. We won the IBA Best 
Technology Bank Award in 2019 for the 
various technological initiatives taken 
by us.

TRANSUNION CIBIL AWARD FOR 
DATA QUALITY

TransUnion CIBIL is India’s leading credit 
information company and maintains one 
of the largest collections of consumer 
information globally. The organisation 
creates information solutions to enable 
businesses to grow and give consumers 
faster, cheaper access to credit and 
other services. We won the Award 
for the Best Data Quality (Consumer 
Bureau) among co-operative banks in 
the year under review.
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THE 3rd EKANATH THAKUR MEMORIAL 
LECTURE

This lecture was held on 15th February, 2019 
on the occasion of the 78th birth anniversary 
of our late former Chairman, Shri Ekanath 
Thakur, at Swatantryaveer Savarkar 
Sabhagriha, Dadar, Mumbai, in the 
presence of Shri Gautam Thakur, Chairman; 
Shri Shashikant Sakhalkar, Vice Chairman; 
respected Directors on the Board and 
Mrs. Smita Sandhane, Managing Director. 
Respected Shri Satish Marathe, Director, 
Central Board of RBI spoke on ‘The Present 
and Future of UCBs in India’.

Saraswat Bank won the Corporate Summer Cricket League organised by Sportszealot.

The winning team of the Madhav Mantri Intra-bank 
Cricket Tournament 

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 101st Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held on Thursday, 22nd August, 2019 at 4.00  
p.m. at Ravindra Natya Mandir, Near Siddhivinayak Temple, Sayani Road, Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025 to transact the 
following business concerning the Bank: -

1. To consider and approve the Annual Accounts, which consist of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the 
Statutory Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Pro�t and Loss Account, for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

2.  To appropriate net pro�t and declare Dividend on Equity Shares and Dividend on Preference Shares as recommended by 
the Board of Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

3. To approve amendments to the Bank’s Bye-law Nos. 6(e), 6B, 16, 34 & 59 and to add Bye-law Nos. 55(A) & 55 (B).

4.  To appoint Statutory Auditors for the �nancial year 2019-20 and to authorise the Board of Directors to �x their remuneration. 
The Board of Directors recommends M/s. G. D. Apte & Company, Chartered Accountants, GDA House, Plot No. 85, Right 
Bhusari Colony, Paud Road, Pune – 411 038,  for appointment as Statutory Auditors.

5. To grant Leave of Absence to the members of the Bank other than those whose names appear in the Attendance Register 
of this 101st Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Smita Sandhane                                                
Mumbai, 28th June, 2019  Managing Director

Note: 
 The Annual Report of the Bank consisting of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the Statutory Auditors, 

the Balance Sheet and the Pro�t & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2019 is annexed with this Notice.

 If there is no quorum for the Meeting at the appointed time, in terms of Bye-law No. 48, the Meeting shall stand adjourned 
to 5.00 p.m. on the same day and the Agenda of the Meeting shall be transacted at the same venue irrespective of the 
Rule of Quorum.

 Dividend, when declared, will be paid on or after 20th September, 2019, to those shareholders whose shares are fully paid 
as on 31st March, 2019 and whose names are on the record of the Bank as on 28th June, 2019. 

 If any member desires to have information in connection with the Accounts, he/she is requested to address a letter to 
the Managing Director of the Bank, to reach her of�ce at Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd., Ekanath Thakur Bhavan, Plot 
No. 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai – 400 025, not later than 17th August, 2019, so that the required 
information may be made available at the Annual General Meeting.

 Members are requested to bring valid photo identity proof at the time of attending Annual General Meeting for 
security purpose.

TO SERVE YOU BETTER:

1.  Shareholders are requested to intimate change in address, if any, to the Share Department along with a copy of proof of 
new residence at Madhushree, 5th �oor, Plot No. 85, District Business Centre, Sector 17, Vashi, Navi Mumbai – 400 703 
Phone No.: (022) 2789 2947 or by e-mail to shailesh.sukhtankar@saraswatbank.com for updating the Bank’s records.

2.  Shareholders are requested to avail of nomination facility by submitting prescribed Nomination Form, as required under 
Section 36 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and Bye-law No. 19 of the Bank.

3.  Shareholders having Current/ Savings Bank/ Cash Credit accounts with the Bank and desirous of crediting their dividends 
to their accounts are once again requested to record their standing instructions with the Share Department.

4.  The Annual Report is available on our website www.saraswatbank.com. Members desirous of having a printed copy, 
are requested to collect the same from the nearest branch/Zonal Office or from the Registered Office of the Bank.

 ---------------- Unclaimed Dividend ---------------- 

  Notice is hereby given that Dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2016 (95th Dividend) if not drawn on or before 
22nd September, 2019, will be forfeited by the Bank and credited to Reserve Fund in terms of Bye-law No. 68A.
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Performance Highlights

(` in crore)

Particulars FOR THE YEAR ENDED

   31-03-19  31-03-18 % change

Total Income       3,430.04       3,376.02 1.60

Total Expenditure       2,799.77       2,847.51 -1.68

Gross Pro�t          630.27          528.51 19.25

Less: Provisions          231.57          190.74 21.41

Pro�t Before Tax          398.70          337.77 18.04

Less: Income Tax          107.41            97.09 10.63

Pro�t after Tax carried to Balance Sheet          291.29          240.68 21.03

  AT THE YEAR END

Own Funds       3,237.38       2,869.03 12.84

Share Capital          263.97          236.75 11.50

Reserves and Surplus       2,973.41       2,632.28 12.96

       

Deposits     36,014.87     35,056.66 2.73

Current       2,169.66       2,703.06 -19.73

Savings       8,217.28       8,090.82 1.56

Term     25,627.93     24,262.78 5.63

       

Advances     25,797.49     23,469.11 9.92

Secured     25,618.87     23,328.06 9.82

Unsecured          178.62          141.05 26.64

Total Business     61,812.36     58,525.77 5.62

Priority Sector     10,611.05       5,910.72 79.52

% to Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC)            45.21            27.45 -

Small Scale Industries          777.50          430.04 80.80

Small Businessmen and Traders       4,805.05       2,864.71 67.73

Other Priority Sectors       5,028.50       2,615.97 92.22

Working Capital     42,915.12     40,520.30 5.91

Investments     11,013.69       9,567.97 15.11

Borrowings and Refinance       2,221.31       1,231.67 80.35

Net NPAs (%)              1.80              0.94  

Capital Adequacy (%)            13.16            13.60  

Number of Members      

Regular (Shareholders holding 50 shares & above)   2,13,836   1,99,616  

Nominal     50,273     39,972  

Number of Branches          284          281  

Number of Employees       4,341       4,061  

       

Productivity per Employee            14.24            14.41  

Profit per Employee (` in lakh)              6.71              5.93  

Return on Average Assets (%)              0.72              0.60  

CD Ratio (%)            71.63            66.95  

NIM (%)              2.62              2.19  

Cost to Income Ratio (%)            52.80            55.68  
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Dear Members,
Your Directors have great pleasure to present the Hundred and First Annual Report on the business and operations of your 
Bank together with the Audited Accounts for the �nancial year ended 31st March, 2019.

1. THE GLOBAL ECONOMY AND INDIA

The global economy started off in 2018 with strong 
and robust growth. However, as the year progressed, 
the momentum faded and a signi�cant weakening 
of global expansion was seen for the year as a 
whole. The escalation of US-China trade tensions, 
macro-economic stress in countries like Argentina 
and Turkey, soft domestic demand and contracting 
manufacturing activity in the Euro region, �nancial 
tightening alongside the normalisation of monetary 
policy in the larger advanced economies and moderating 
economic activities across Emerging Market Economies, 
all contributed to a sharp slowing down of global 
economic growth, especially in the second half of 2018.

The US economy accelerated by 2.9 per cent during 
FY 2018, aided by �scal stimulus enacted early during 
the year. The US Federal Reserve raised the target 
range for the federal funds rate to 2.25 - 2.50 per cent 
in December 2018. 

The Euro Zone economy expanded by 1.8 per cent down 
from growth of over 2 per cent in the preceding 3 years, 
with growing economies like Germany experiencing 
slowdown and sluggish economies like Italy slipping 
into recession.

Overall, global growth remained weak due to headwinds 
ranging from a China–US trade war to uncertainty 
surrounding Britain’s decision to quit the European 
Union, popularly known as Brexit.

 Indian Economy
On an annual basis, India’s Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) growth rate stood at 6.8 per cent compared to 
7.2 per cent achieved during the preceding �scal. At the 
sectoral level, growth rate for agriculture, industry and 
services for the year 2018-19 stood at 2.9 per cent, 
6.9 per cent and 7.5 per cent, respectively. 

Overall the slowdown in GDP growth is attributed to 
a sharp deceleration in agricultural production due to 
lower than targeted rabi harvest. Industrial growth was 
also particularly impacted during the last quarter, pulled 
down by a fall in growth of manufacturing output against 
the backdrop of subdued demand.

 Key Macro-Economic Indicators 
Consumer Price Index (CPI) in�ation rate averaged 
at 3.43 per cent during FY 2018-19, lower than the 

preceding year �gure of 3.53 per cent. A sharp decline in 
in�ation rate was seen since mid-2018, as food in�ation 
turned into de�ationary mode.

On the �scal front, the Government of India met the �scal 
de�cit target of 3.4 per cent of the GDP for the year despite 
shortfall in the Goods and Services Tax (GST) collections 
and substantial increase in the Government expenditure. 
Current Account De�cit (CAD), however, widened to 
2.6 per cent of GDP in the April-December 2018 period, 
on the back of higher trade de�cit, at $49.5 billion as 
compared to $44 billion earlier.

On the regulatory front, we saw successive repo rate 
hikes of 25 bps by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) initially 
and a shift in stance from neutral to calibrated tightening. 
With the steady easing of headline in�ation and a stable 
crude oil price outlook, the Monetary Policy Committee 
(MPC) reduced the policy rate by 25 bps in the latter half 
and softened the stance to neutral.

Systemic liquidity swung between surplus and de�cit 
during the year. The de�cit was witnessed particularly in 
the second half of the year as a systemically important 
Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) defaulted, 
triggering a contagion effect. This led to virtual drying 
up of the then vibrant money markets and access to 
funds for NBFCs, including Housing Finance Companies 
(HFCs), were deeply impacted. RBI had to intervene on 
several occasions to smoothen the liquidity �ows.

Financial Markets
Equity markets witnessed a high level of exuberance 
initially during the year but fell sharply subsequently 
with the unfolding of the NBFC crisis. The BSE Sensex 
closed for the year ended March 2019 at 38,673. 
The Government Securities markets also saw divergent 
trends as yields moved up sharply during the �rst half of 
the year and retraced during the latter part with favourable 
factors like easing of crude oil prices, moderation in 
in�ation and reduction in Policy rates. The yield on the 
10-year benchmark G-sec paper ended at 7.35 per cent 
as on 31st March, 2019. 

USD/INR witnessed a historical low of ` 74.40 per USD 
during October 2018 with sharp sell–off by Financial 
Institutional Investors (FIIs) but retraced to close at 
` 69.15 per USD for the year on the back of moderation 
in global crude oil prices and indications by US Federal 
Reserve about the end of rate hiking cycle.

Report of the Board of Directors
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 Overall assessment
Global growth has slowed abruptly over the past year, 
with the weakness continuing into calendar year 2019 
amidst persisting trade and geo-political tensions. 
Risks to global growth arose with rising trade barriers, 
a build-up of Government debt and slowdowns that 
were deeper than expected in several major economies. 
The Indian growth story also witnessed moderation but 
would regain strength in the coming year, with higher 
domestic demand due to improved �nancial conditions, 
�scal stimulus, new income support measures for rural 
economy and expected structural reforms. Lower oil 
prices and the recent appreciation of the Rupee would 
reduce pressure on the in�ation front and open up 
possibilities of easing Monetary Policy. In fact, the MPC 
has recently delivered a 25 bps cut in the benchmark 
repo rate accompanied with a change in stance from 
neutral to accommodative. Going forward, investment 
growth may accelerate as capacity utilisation rises and 
interest rates decline. 

On the �ip side, the continuing weaknesses in corporate 
and �nancial sector balance sheets remain a major 
hindrance for growth. On the global front, US-China 
trade tension could hurt global growth while a no-deal 
Brexit could impact �nancial stability of its European 
trading partners as well as Emerging Market Economies 
(EMEs). The rising tension between the US and Iran may 
lead to hardening of crude oil prices thereby, impacting 
Current Account De�cit (CAD) which may result in 
weakening of Rupee. There could thus be headwinds 
from greater than expected moderation in global growth, 
unanticipated volatility in the global �nancial markets as 
well as geo-political tensions.

2. MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BANKING 
AND FINANCIAL SECTOR IN INDIA

  The �nancial year 2018-19 was particularly challenging 
for the Indian banking and �nancial sector, with global 
risks impacting the domestic economy. On the domestic 
front too, massive challenges emerged initially in the form 
of unearthing of a massive fraud at a large PSU bank and 
later with a full-�edged NBFC crisis unfolding. The key 
events during FY 2018-19 that shaped the banking and 
�nancial sector are as below:

Consolidation of Big Banks: Bank of Baroda 
became India’s third largest bank with a total 
business of `15 lakh crore after the merger of Dena 
Bank and Vijaya Bank effective from 1st April, 2019. 
This was also India’s �rst ever major consolidation 

of banks, with the amalgamated entity emerging as 
the country’s second largest PSU Bank.

Establishment of Indian Post Payments 
Bank (IPPB): The Indian Post Payments Bank 
(IPPB), a payment Bank, was launched on 
1st September 2018, taking banking to the common 
man, through a huge network of post of�ces and 
almost 3 lakh postmen/ ‘Grameen Dak Sewaks’. 
The Bank accepts deposits of upto ` 1 lakh and 
offers remittance services, but is not permitted to 
grant advances or issue credit cards. Setting up of 
Small Finance Banks and Payment Banks is giving 
competition to urban banking sector, particularly in 
the rural areas for �nancial inclusion.

 NBFC Crisis: India’s largest infrastructure company 
IL&FS defaulted on its debt obligation during 
September-October 2018, leading to a cascading 
effect on �nancial markets and balance sheets of 
many companies and mutual funds post the crisis. 
Consequently, the liquidity in the money markets 
dried up leading to a full-blown NBFC crisis.

The Government of India and the Reserve Bank of India 
undertook a number of steps to boost the �nancial 
markets and the banking sector, which are listed below:

 Lowering of the mandatory holding period of 
Government debt securities by the foreign portfolio 
investors from three years to one year.

Extension of the bene�t of 180-days past due 
based classi�cation of NPAs to all Medium, Small 
and Micro Enterprises (MSMEs).

 Lifting of cap on investments by Foreign Portfolio 
Investors (FPIs) in corporate bonds to encourage a 
wider spectrum of investors to access the Indian 
corporate debt market.

Raising of housing loan limits under the Pradhan 
Mantri Awas Yojana (PMAY), for economically 
weaker sections and lower income groups. 
Limits have been raised for home loans up to 
`  35  lakh in metros (with population of 10 lakh 
and above) and up to ` 25 lakh for other centres, 
provided the house does not cost more than 
` 45 lakh in metros and ` 30 lakh in other centres.

 Easing of Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) norms 
for banks to meet their Liquidity Coverage Ratio 
(LCR) requirement.

Announcement of co-origination model between 
banks and NBFCs, under which, all Scheduled 
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Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs and Small 
Finance Banks) may engage with NBFCs 
(non-deposit taking systemically important) to 
co-originate loans for creating priority sector assets.

Extending of relief for e-wallet users in fraud cases 
by absolving customers using prepaid payment 
instruments viz. mobile wallets, prepaid payments 
cards etc. of liabilities arising out of a fraud, if the 
incident is reported within three days. In case of 
a third-party breach, the customer will have no 
liability if they report it within three days.

 Criteria for bulk deposits raised to ` 2 crore in order 
to give banks more operational �exibility.

Launching of UPI 2.0 by National Payments 
Corporation of India (NPCI) which will allow users to 
block funds for a future transaction and preauthorise 
the same. The upgrade will also enable customers 
to link their overdraft account to UPI, in addition to 
current and savings accounts.

3. MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE URBAN 
CO-OPERATIVE BANKING SECTOR

Measures taken by RBI as regards Urban Co-operative 
Banks (UCBs) during the year under review are 
indicated below:

Stringent norms for achievement of priority sector 
targets
RBI stipulated that the achievement of priority sector 
targets will be considered while granting of regulatory 
clearances/approvals for various purposes. Further from 
FY 2018-19, achievement of priority sector targets will 
be included as one of the criteria for classifying a UCB 
as Financially Sound and Well Managed (FSWM). From 
FY 2019-20 onwards, the achievement at the end of the 
�nancial year will be arrived at, based on the average of 
priority sector target/sub-target achievement at the end 
of each quarter. 

Norms for Basic Cyber Security
RBI issued basic cyber security controls applicable 
for all Primary UCBs which include need for Board 
approved Cyber Security Policy, security compliant 
IT architecture/framework, cyber crisis management 
plan, etc. However, UCBs depending upon the Self 
Risk Assessment complexity of their Information 
Technology/Information Security systems, nature of 
digital products offered, etc. are free to adopt advanced 
cyber security norms.

4.   KEY FINANCIALS/FINANCIAL RATIOS OF YOUR 
BANK DURING FY 2018-19

i) The total business of your Bank increased from 
` 58,525.77 crore as on 31st March, 2018 to 
` 61,812.36 crore as on 31st March, 2019, a rise of 
` 3,286.59 crore i.e. a rise of 5.62 per cent. 

 ii)  The gross pro�t of your Bank increased from 
` 528.51 crore in FY 2017-18 to ` 630.27 crore in 
FY 2018-19 i.e. a rise of 19.25 per cent. The net 
pro�t after tax has increased from ` 240.68 crore 
in FY 2017-18 to ` 291.29 crore in FY 2018-19 
i.e. a rise of 21.03 per cent. The Bank has taken 
a conscious decision to focus on the bottom line 
instead of top-line growth which is re�ected in the 
higher pro�tability.

` 291.29 crore
Net Pro�t for FY 2018-19  – Highest ever Net Pro�t in  
the history of the Bank

 Graph No. 1
Net Profit (K in crore)
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iii) The rise in pro�tability can be attributed to the 
sustained efforts of the Bank to increase the Credit 
Deposit (CD) ratio of the Bank. The CD ratio of the 
Bank as on 31st March, 2019 stood at 71.63 per 
cent, higher than the preceding year �gure of 66.95 
per cent and much higher than the 31st March, 2017 
�gure of 63.83 per cent. 
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Graph No. 2
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iv) The advances, thus, increased from ` 23,469.11 
crore as on 31st March, 2018 to ` 25,797.49 crore 
as on 31st March, 2019, a rise of 9.92 per cent. 
Retail advances saw a rise of 26.56 per cent 
during the year.

v)  The Reserve Bank of India shifted to a dovish 
stance during the year and reduced the benchmark 

repo rate, which determines the interest rates in 
the economy. To ensure effective monetary policy 
transmission, banks also have to reduce the interest 
rates on asset and liability products. Your Bank 
therefore, in line with the RBI stance and the market 
trend, reduced its deposit rates, resulting in a 
comparatively lower rise in deposits during the year.

vi) The deposits increased from ` 35,056.66 crore as 
on 31st March, 2018 to ` 36,014.87 crore as on 
31st March, 2019, a rise of 2.73 per cent. 

vii)  Own funds of your Bank have risen from ` 2,869.03 
crore as on 31st March, 2018 to ` 3,237.38 crore as 
on 31st March, 2019, i.e. a rise of 12.84 per cent. 
The Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) 
stands at 13.16 per cent as on 31st March, 2019, 
well above the RBI mandated norms. 

viii) The ratio of gross NPA to advances of the Bank, 
which stood at 3.72 per cent as on 31st March, 2018 
has increased to 4.63 per cent as on 31st March, 
2019. The net NPAs stand at 1.80 per cent as on 
31st March, 2019.

Graph No. 3A
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   Bank’s Business size as on 31st March, 2015 which 
was at ` 44,968.96 crore level has grown to a level 
of ` 61,812.36 crore as on 31st March, 2019 i.e. 
an absolute rise of ̀  16,843.40 crore. The rise in Net 
NPAs during these 5 years has been from 0.67 per 
cent to 1.80 per cent. As business grows, certain 
stressed assets too emerge. However, in your 
Bank’s case, it was possible to contain stressed 
assets. Considering the mushrooming NPAs 
in the entire banking sector during this period, 
containing the NPAs in a range bound manner was 
achieved by your Bank through vigorous effort and 
close monitoring.

ix) The �nancial performance of your Bank is aptly 
depicted in the below mentioned pie charts.

Graph No. 4
Rupee Earned (FY 2019)
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Graph No. 5
Rupee Spent (FY 2019)
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 x)  The total income has increased from ` 3,376.02 
crore as on 31st March, 2018 to ` 3,430.04 crore 
as on 31st March, 2019, a rise of ` 54.02 crore in 
absolute terms. The percentage of interest income 
within the total income has increased from 58.85 
per cent as on 31st March, 2018 to 63.08 per cent 

as on 31st March, 2019, primarily on the back of an 
improved CD ratio. 

` 3,430.04 crore
of Total Income for FY 2018-19

xi) On the other hand, the total expenses (less provision 
and taxes) have reduced from ̀  2,847.51 crore as on 
31st March, 2018 to ̀  2,799.77 crore as on 31st March, 
2019. The percentage of interest expenditure within 
the total expenditure has decreased from 69.64 
per cent as on 31st March, 2018 to 66.74 per cent 
as on 31st March, 2019, primarily due to reduction 
in cost of deposits. The percentage of operating 
(non-interest) expenses within the total expenditure 
rose from 11.12 per cent as on 31st March, 2018 
to 12.24 per cent as on 31st March, 2019, due to 
impact of higher infrastructure and wage revision 
expenses. The Cost-to-Income ratio improved from 
55.68 per cent to 52.80 per cent on y-o-y basis. 
Total provision and contingencies increased from 
6.08 per cent to 7.38 per cent of the total expenses 
on y-o-y basis. Your Bank has stringently followed 
all the regulatory provisioning policies.

xii) The improved earnings and curtailing of expenses 
have resulted in improvement in Net Interest Margin 
(NIM) from 2.19 per cent as on 31st March, 2018 to 
2.62 per cent as on 31st March, 2019.

Graph No. 6
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5.  SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

(i) Retail Banking  
Retail Advances
Your Bank has been adapting to the market trend 
and focussing towards increasing retail lending. 
Several appropriate measures have been initiated 
for the same, resulting in a sharp rise in the retail 
advances portfolio. Thus, the retail portfolio has 
risen from ` 7,602.36 crore as on 31st March, 2018 
to ` 9,621.17 crore as on 31st March, 2019, a rise 

of 26.56 per cent. The share of retail advances in 
total advances has increased from 38.35 per cent 
to 42.75 per cent. 

` 9,621.17 crore
Total Retail Portfolio -26.56% Growth y-o-y

Graph No. 7
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Table No. 1  (` in crore)

31/3/2018 31/03/2019 

Advances Advances Rise

Retail 5,723.70  Retail 6,744.37 1,020.67
Commercial upto ` 10 crore 1,878.66  Commercial upto ` 10 crore 2,876.80 998.14
Total 7,602.36  Total 9,621.17 2,018.81

A higher proportion of retail advances in the books 
ensures that risk is spread across several products 
and a large number of small borrowers, unlike 
Wholesale Banking where risk is concentrated 
due to the large ticket size of advances. 
Also, a higher proportion of retail component 
leads to improvement in yields. With our continued 
efforts, we strive to attain an ideal balance of retail 
and wholesale businesses within the overall credit 
portfolio. The rise in retail advances is on account 
of a conscious initiative undertaken by the Bank for 
increasing the retail portfolio within the overall credit 
portfolio by undertaking various measures over a 
period of time. Measures undertaken are as below: 

Delegation of powers given to Branch 
Managers and delegation of additional powers 
given to the Zonal Managers for quick sanction 
of retail advances.

 Concept of Cluster-Head introduced for 
hand-holding of new Branch Managers.

Retail Loan Origination System (RLOS) 
implemented to have controls in sanction of 
retail advances & speedy disposal.

 Suitable changes were introduced in various 
products to make them more �exible.
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	 Competitive rate of interest given for Housing 
Loan, Car Loan, Kwik LAP, Doctor Delite etc. 
to improve our share in the market.

Priority Sector
RBI always attaches importance to Priority Sector 
Lending and mandates all banks to achieve 
40 per  cent of loan disbursement towards this 
segment. Your Bank has taken a focussed approach 
to increase the Priority Sector Lending by way of 
financing Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, 
Self Help Groups, Micro Finance and Weaker 
Section. The Priority Sector achievement was 
monitored closely at various levels by the Board 
of Directors and Management through fortnightly 
meetings. Your Bank constituted a Monitoring 
Group to further the priority sector growth.

There has been increase in the share of Bank’s 
priority sector advances from 27.45 per cent of 
Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC) in FY 2017-18 
to 45.21 per cent in FY 2018-19. We have also 
surpassed our Weaker Sector target of 10 per cent 
by achieving 10.95 per cent of share of ANBC and 
Micro Credit target of 7.50 per cent by achieving 
8.47 per cent share.

Retail Business loan upto ` 10 crore, Unnati and 
Mudra loans were some focussed contributors 
towards achievement of these targets. In the 
current financial year, your Bank disbursed Unnati 
loans of ` 183.66 crore as against ` 148.39 crore 
disbursed in FY 2017-18 and Mudra Loans to 340 
accounts amounting to ` 20.23 crore as against 18 
accounts amounting to ` 1.10 crore in FY 2017-18. 
The Priority Sector advances under Retail increased 
by ` 1,455 crore in FY 2018-19 as against the rise 
of ` 772 crore in the previous year. The Bank also 
purchased Priority Sector Lending Certificates 
(PSLC) during the year under report.

With all the above measures, your Bank exceeded 
the mandated RBI stipulated target for priority 
sector. Going forward, we are planning to open 
branches in Semi-Urban/Non-Metro areas, to 
further the priority sector growth.

It is evident from the various initiatives taken that 
your Bank is according the highest importance 
to priority sector advances. The employee at 
the ground level also is being made aware of the 
importance of Priority Sector and inculcating the 
credit culture.

Microfinance
Your Bank has always been supportive of 
financial inclusion for individuals. This year too 
we concentrated on upliftment of individuals and 
women by catering to their financial needs through 
Microfinance and Self Help Groups.

The Micro Finance Clean Loan Scheme which was 
earlier limited only to the regions of Sindhudurg 
and Ratnagiri is now extended to all branches 
across Maharashtra. This enabled us to reach out 
to more beneficiaries. The ease in application and 
quick processing enabled the branches to disburse 
the loans on the same day. Total loans disbursed 
under Micro Finance have increased from 222 
loans amounting to ` 55 lakh during FY 2017-18 
to 1,212 accounts amounting to ` 3.53 crore 
during FY 2018-19.

We also entered into a tie-up arrangement with 
Mahila Arthik Vikas Mahamandal (MAVIM) to 
encourage financing of Self Help Groups across 
Maharashtra. This tie-up was initiated in the month 
of January 2019. With the help of Community 
Managed Resource Centres (CMRC) under MAVIM 
and focussed approach by our branches, we 
opened 686 savings accounts and disbursed 266 
loans amounting to ` 3.86 crore within the first two 
months of initiating the tie-up.

Retail Deposit Portfolio
The Bank’s low-cost deposits i.e. Current and 
Savings Accounts (CASA) constitute a vital 
ingredient of the Bank’s deposit mix. The Bank 
provides a wide range of products under CASA to 
cater to all segments.

Overall, 98,639 new CASA accounts were opened 
during FY  2018-19, of which 88,571 are Savings 
Bank accounts and 10,068 are Current accounts.

Implementation of Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana 
(PMAY) – Credit linked Subsidy Scheme
Your Bank has entered into an agreement with 
National Housing Bank (NHB), the nodal agency 
established for the implementation of PMAY- 
credit-linked subsidy scheme. It is launched by 
the Central Government for Economically Weaker 
Sections (EWS) and Lower Income Groups (LIG) 
to provide affordable housing through credit linked 
subsidy. The scheme is extended for Middle Income 
Group (MIG) as well.
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The details of subsidy claims of your Bank settled by NHB during the FY 2018-19 are as below:

Table No. 2

Scheme Types
Total applications 

sent to NHB
Total applications 

settled

Total amount of 
subsidy received  

(` in lakh)

EWS/LIG old 59 46 95.33

EWS/LIG new 242 242 592.31

MIG I 158 106 226.44

MIG II 15 7 14.49

TOTAL 474 401 928.57

The remaining 73 claim applications are settled in the current �nancial year 2019-20.

Distribution of Insurance Products

During the year 2018-19, your Bank has earned revenue of ` 11.74 crore from sale of third-party insurance 
products as under:

Table No. 3

Segment Name of the Partner

2018-19

Actual No. of 
Policies 

Premium 
Mobilised  

(` in crore)

Revenue 
Generated 
(` in crore)

LIFE

HDFC Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (HDFC Life) 8,917 36.74 3.79

Future Generali Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 5,133 23.84 2.82

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 3,505 7.76 1.38

GENERAL
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. (BAGIC) 31,087 10.81 1.38

HDFC Ergo General Insurance Ltd. 5,759 3.12 0.35

HEALTH
Religare Health Insurance Co. Ltd. 6,416 6.91 0.98

CIGNA TTK Health Insurance Co. Ltd. 5,596 7.44 1.00

OTHERS Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana 28,010 0.34 0.04

  TOTAL 94,423 96.96 11.74

Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana
Your Bank offers Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana facility 
to its customers, for both life and non-life insurance 
under Pradhan Mantri Jeevan Jyoti Bima Yojana 
(PMJJBY) and Pradhan Mantri Suraksha Bima 
Yojana (PMSBY) respectively. For life insurance, the 
Bank has tie-up with M/s. HDFC Life Insurance Co. 
Ltd. while for non-life, the Bank has tied up with 
M/s. Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company 
Ltd. and M/s. New India Assurance Company Ltd. 
for providing services under the Pradhan Mantri 
Suraksha Bima Yojana (PMSBY). Overall, the Bank 
has earned an income of ` 0.04 crore from activity 
towards reimbursement of expenses.

Mutual Fund
Your Bank had launched its Mutual Fund distribution 
activity in January 2018. Your Bank continued its 

mutual fund distribution with HDFC, LIC, L & T and 
Reliance Nippon Mutual Fund companies.

During the year under review, the Bank achieved a 
net business of ̀  71 crore and earned a total income 
of ` 1.13 crore from the mutual fund business.

Demat
Your Bank provides depository services through 
NSDL and CDSL. Over 4,400 new demat accounts 
were opened during the year. Applying for IPO (Initial 
Public Offer) through ASBA (Application Supported 
by Blocked Amount) is mandatory as per SEBI rule. 
There is a sharp rise in ASBA applications during 
the year under review.

Your Bank supported IPOs through ASBA for 
133 Equity, Rights and 22 Debt Market issues. 
The Bank has received/processed more than 
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36,000 IPO applications during the year. The total 
revenue earned from Demat services during the 
year was ` 3.23 crore. This includes income of 
` 77.43 lakh through the tie-up arrangement with 
M/s. Religare Securities Ltd., for providing online 
broking facility. More than 1,600 accounts have 
been opened for providing online trading facility 
during the FY 2018-19.

Credit Card
Your Bank ventured into the issuance of credit 
cards during the Centenary Year. Our credit cards 

are RuPay Platinum cards issued in collaboration 

with National Payments Corporation of India (NPCI). 

The credit card of your Bank has competitive 

features while the usage is backed by an exclusive 

rewards programme. During the year ending 

31st March, 2019, your Bank issued 11,000 RuPay 

credit cards. The Bank earned a total income of 

` 1.99 crore in the FY 2018-19 from the credit card 

business. The income comprised the following:

Table No. 4  (` in lakh)

Particulars Amount

Interest Income  90.15 

Interchange Income  54.77 

Other Income 54.71 

Total  199.63 

(ii) SBU – Wholesale Banking
In line with the changing banking scenario, your 
Bank has remodelled Wholesale Banking structure 
during the year under review. The major Wholesale 
Banking business was contributed by Metros. 
However, in order to tap business potential in 
Non-Metros, your Bank formed two Wholesale 
Banking Business verticals, viz, Metro centres and 
Non-Metro centres. This has helped us to focus on 
Non-Metro centres during the year under review 
and garner new business.

The imposition of Prompt Corrective Action (PCA) 
on several Public Sector Banks led to competition 
between banks for taking over good quality 
advances by offering competitive rates. Under such 
circumstances, your Bank focussed on small and 
medium ticket size quality advances.

The total Wholesale advances of the Bank stood 
at ` 14,768.06 crore as on 31st March, 2019, 
thereby growing at 2.06 per cent on y-o-y basis 
over the previous year level of ` 14,469.37 crore. 
The subdued growth in overall Wholesale advances 
was on account of the conscious decision taken by 
your Bank to reduce business by way of Letter of 
Credit backed Bill Discounting (LCBD), thus leading 
to rise in core business advances by ̀  1,540.04 crore 
i.e. rise of 12.89 per cent over previous year level.

Wholesale advances contribution to total advances 
as on 31st March, 2019 was at 57.25 per cent.

` 14,768.06 crore
Wholesale Advances

(iii)  Forex Business
Your Bank has a RBI licence for foreign exchange 
business since 1979. The Bank caters to the foreign 
exchange requirements of its customers through its 
well-established nine Forex Centres. Trade �nance 
requirements of the customers of SMEs and retail 
foreign exchange requirements of customers of 
branches are handled through these Forex Centres. 
The Bank offers all the major foreign exchange 
products including trade �nance products.

During the year under review, the foreign exchange 
merchant turnover of the Bank stood at the level 
of ` 30,066.48 crore as against ` 23,888.64 crore 
in the previous year, an increase of 25.86 per cent. 
Export �nance outstanding as on 31st March, 2019 
was at the level of ` 1,366.69 crore.

Your Bank has NOSTRO accounts in nine major 
currencies with leading international banks and 
correspondent relations with a number of banks 
across the globe. Your Bank offers travel-related 
services to the customers of the Bank travelling 
abroad. It also provides foreign currencies and 
travel cards at competitive exchange rates. 
Your Bank also handles foreign exchange business 
of customers of select co-operative banks which do 
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not have RBI licence to deal in foreign exchange, 
under line of credit sanctioned to them.

(iv) SBU – Treasury Operations
Tremendous uncertainty was witnessed in the debt 
markets during FY 2018-19. The yields moved 
upwards sharply across the curve during the �rst half 
of the year, on account of concerns on the in�ation 
front and the resultant hawkish policy stance by 
RBI. Global factors were also not conducive for 
domestic yield movement. Softening of yields was 
seen in the second half with the return of Foreign 
Portfolio Investors (FPIs). However, the optimism 
was short-lived as global concerns, escalating 
border con�icts and uncertainty on outcome of 
general elections pushed the yields upward again.

Against the backdrop of the said market conditions, 
the Bank’s Treasury team undertook the dual task 
of generating trading pro�ts for the Bank and also 
deploying of funds in suitable investment assets 
to generate interest income. While undertaking 
the investments and trading activity, the core role 
of funds management and compliance with Cash 
Reserve Ratio (CRR)/Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) 
were also successfully complied with.

6. HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Bank rightly recognises the role of employees 
in attaining the organisational objectives. It therefore 
works towards the alignment of HR practices with 
business strategy in order to ensure that the HR 
practices are relevant and contribute in achieving its 
mission, vision and objectives. The key to long-term 
success is managing the talent of human resources and 
organisational development in relation to a changing 
and complex external environment. It also involves 
building and sustaining a supportive, inclusive and 
people-oriented culture within the organisation.

In the past 100 years of operations, the role of Human 
Resources Development (HRD) Department of your 
Bank has evolved from Labour Welfare to Personnel 
Management to Human Resources Management 
(HRM) and recently to Strategic Human Resources 
Management (SHRM).

We have adopted a focused recruitment strategy for 
identifying the incumbents possessing the skills required 
by the Bank, training and development of employees 
to enhance their skills, recognising and rewarding 
performance and investing in them for building 
organisational capabilities.

As a 100-year-old Bank which thrives on the legacy of 
strong moral values, sound business ethics, focus on 
learning and growth and passion for customer service, 
we have also been progressive in embracing the 
changes brought about by digital technology which has 
transformed the entire banking industry, including the 
HR perspective.

While practising SHRM, we have recently recruited more 
than 400 candidates pan-India and have offered them 
suitable employment opportunities. We have conducted 
psychometric tests and Assessment Centres for our 
employees at various ranks. This helps them in their 
self SWOT analysis and the inputs also facilitate their 
career development. We have ushered in the concept 
of Variable Pay Incentives at higher levels, motivating 
the employees for improved productivity and sense 
of ownership. We have introduced the concept of 
“succession planning and leadership pipeline” by offering 
leadership positions to performing employees who hold 
promise and delegating the necessary authority for 
implementing various initiatives. Thus, we are working 
towards creating a future-ready workforce, aligning the 
career goals of employees with the Bank’s objectives. 

Being a part of an industry where customer service is 
of prime importance, our people are our most important 
asset and the face of our brand. We value our employees 
and believe that happy employees deliver results and 
help achieve organisational objectives. Building and 
sustaining a productive work culture is the key to deliver 
customer-centric solutions with improved ef�ciency.

Advantages of having a robust HRD function

Due to our ef�cient HRD Department, we have been 
able to form systems and practices which helped us in 
achieving the following objectives:

Seek quali�ed candidates for the various entry 
level positions in the Bank through a systematic 
recruitment system and attract lateral recruits.

  Build a work force of highly motivated employees 
through timely recognition and reward systems.

Create a succession pipeline for leadership 
positions.

  Achieve our objectives and goals by aligning them 
with the career aspirations of our employees.

Offer opportunities to enhance performance of 
employees requiring guidance, mentoring, feedback 
and performance monitoring at regular intervals.

  Maintain low rate of attrition through a creative, 
conducive and friendly work culture.
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Employee Strength

During the year, 214 employees ceased to remain in the employment of the Bank owing to various reasons such as death, 
retirement, resignation and dismissal.

Table No. 5

Summary of Employees Recruited/Exited During FY 2018-19 Nos

Number of Employees as on  31st March, 2018 4,061

Number of Employees recruited during the year 2018-19 494

Sub-Total 4,555

Less: Employees who exited/left

1. Natural Death 3

2. Accidental Death 1

3. Normal Retirement 83

4. Resignation 127

Total Employees exiting the Bank 214

Number of Employees as on 31st March, 2019 4,341

 In your Bank, attrition rate at 3.12 per cent is one of the lowest in the banking industry.

 Learning and Development
Learning is a continuous process which enhances 
thinking ability, instills creativity and helps undertake 
a task with better understanding and perfection. 
Your Bank has always been a learning organisation. 
The HRD Department conducts numerous training 
programs on a regular basis to promote a conducive 
learning culture as well as to assess the knowledge 
level of our employees and work towards enhancing 
the same. We have a dedicated ‘Staff Learning 
Centre’ which regularly collects feedback from 
participants to gauge the effectiveness and usefulness 
of our programs.

During the year 120 training programmes were 
conducted by Staff Learning Centre (SLC) and the 
training imparted, included three-pronged induction 
training for new recruits, orientation training for Deputy 
Managers, refresher training for Managers and training 
on various other topics.

Impact Study was undertaken on ROI for training 
programme on ‘Enhancing Branch Performance’ for 
Branch Managers.

External Training programmes
During the year, 58 employees were deputed for 
various external training programmes conducted by 
prestigious institutes / organisations viz., CAFRAL, 

NIBM, FEDAI, FICCI, IBA, CAB, Ashish Sen Consulting 
and Coaching, BQ academy, IIBF etc. on retail credit 
management, NRI business, credit monitoring, Advance 
Card Payment, Performance Management, Ethics, 
Integrity and Governance, Foreign Trade and Exchange, 
Internal Liquidity Adequacy Assessment, Cyber 
Security, etc. 

7.  RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT

Banking is exposed to a broad spectrum of risks and it 
is necessary that risks faced by the Bank are effectively 
mitigated. Your Bank has in place the Risk Management 
Department, which oversees Credit Risk, Operational 
Risk and Market Risk functions, independent of business 
units. It helps in identifying, monitoring and measuring 
the risk pro�le of the Bank and helps to maintain a 
healthy trade-off between risk and returns.

 Credit Risk
  Credit Risk is the risk or potential risk that may occur 

due to failure of borrower/counterparty to meet the 
obligations on agreed terms and conditions of a �nancial 
contract. The Bank has in place a Board approved Credit 
Policy which provides guidelines on Credit Acquisition, 
Appraisal and Renewal, its administration and Monitoring 
as also type of products offered, rate of interest, norms 
related to collateral security, credit approval process, 
credit limits etc.
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 Operational Risk
Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from 
inadequate or failed processes, people and systems 
or from external events. Operational Risk involves 
breakdown in internal controls leading to errors, 
frauds, performance failure, and/or compromise on 
the interests of the Bank resulting in �nancial losses. 
To have an integrated risk control approach, your Bank 
has an Operational Risk Management Committee 
(ORMC) which meets regularly for early identi�cation, 
assessment, monitoring, prevention and mitigation of 
operational risks.

Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk to the Bank’s earnings and capital 
due to changes in the market interest rates or prices of 
securities, foreign exchange and equities, as well as the 
volatilities of those changes. In other words, Market Risk 
is de�ned as the possibility of loss to the Bank caused 
by changes in market variables.

Management of market risk encompasses risk 
identi�cation, risk measurement, setting up of limits and 
triggers, risk monitoring, risk metrics or tools of analysis, 
risk control, risk reporting and taking corrective actions, 
where warranted. Your Bank has put in place a Board 
approved Market Risk Management Policy which outlines 
the Bank's approach to the management of market 
risk and seeks to adopt a comprehensive framework 
that allows market risks to be tracked, managed and 
overseen in a timely and ef�cient manner for all asset 
classes. The framework, thus, ensures that the risks 
taken are within the approved risk tolerance limits.

Your Bank has in place the Asset Liability Management 
Committee (ALCO), which meets on monthly basis 
to take a view on the interest rate and liquidity gap 
position of the Bank.

8. INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Internal Audit Department headed by a Deputy 
Managing Director, works under the aegis of the Audit 
Committee of the Board. During the year 2018-19, the 
Internal Audit Department has undertaken inspection 

of 291 operating units of the Bank covering all aspects 
of branch operations. The focus is on timely detection, 
recti�cation of errors, recovery of the revenue leakage, if 
any, observed at auditee unit / account level.

The advent of digital banking and changing technology 
have brought to the fore new risks, which are also 
covered under the audit process.

Credit Portfolio Audit (CPA): Considering the inherent 
risk in large commercial loans, your Bank is also 
undertaking Credit Portfolio Audit for commercial loans 
of ` 5 crore and above. The Internal Audit Department 
provides feedback to the business units and Management 
about the quality of advances portfolio and suggests 
remedial measures, post the audit process.

9.  MOVEMENT OF NPAs

a) Non-Performing Assets
Over the past few years, there has been a sharp 
deterioration in the asset quality of Indian banks, 
which has impacted their bottomline. Some of 
the PSU banks were even placed under Prompt 
Corrective Action (PCA), as their net worth had 
completely eroded. The gross NPA ratios of 
Scheduled Commercial Banks during FY 2018-19 
stood at 9.3 per cent, which continues to re�ect 
the poor credit scenario. Even fresh credit off-take 
has been tepid.

 Your Bank’s gross NPAs have also risen during the 
year from 3.72 per cent as on 31st March, 2018 to 
4.63 per cent as on 31st March, 2019.

Your Bank undertook close monitoring, concerted 
recovery efforts and prompt recovery actions 
to reduce NPAs. However, we also faced major 
hurdles in disposing off the properties under our 
possession, delays in legal matters in process, and 
time allowed for resolution/liquidation under the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) for cases 
under National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT).
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 Movement of NPAs and Provisions during the year were as under: -

Table No. 6 (` in crore)

AMOUNT

GROSS NPAs

As on 31st March, 2018 872.27

(+) Additions during the year 532.53

(-) Reduction during the year 211.23

As on 31st March, 2019   1193.57

PROVISIONS

As on 31st March, 2018 658.37

(+) Additions during the year 198.30

(-) Reduction during the year 114.99

As on 31st March, 2019 741.68

NET NPAs

31st March, 2018 0.94 %

31st March, 2019 1.80 %

b) Recovery in Written-off Acounts
Your Bank has recovered ` 8.74 crore (including 
interest of ` 1.04 crore) from written-off NPA 
accounts. Considering the weak or no security 
and bleak prospects of recovery, your Bank has 
recovered this amount with vigorous recovery 
efforts. Recovery in written-off accounts is a direct 
accretion to your Bank’s pro�t.

c) Provision Coverage Ratio
 Your Bank has made additional provision, over and 
above the requirement as per RBI norms, for Bad 
and Doubtful Debts.  Provision Coverage Ratio as 
on 31st March, 2019 is over 62 per cent.  Provision 
Coverage Ratio indicates provision made by the 
Bank against NPAs. Higher Provision Coverage 
Ratio re�ects adequate provision made against 
NPAs of the Bank. 

10. VIGILANCE

Your Bank believes in a proactive approach towards 
vigilance. Transactions are scrutinised and unusual 
transactions are reported to the concerned authorities. 
Major vigilance activities at department levels include 
reporting of fraud cases to RBI, investigation of 
frauds/attempted frauds, preventive vigilance by 
way of scrutiny of various types of transactions, 

reporting of counterfeit currency notes detected at 
branches to RBI, etc.

Your Bank’s Vigilance Department primarily focusses 
on four functions, viz., preventive vigilance (creating 
awareness), detective vigilance (investigation of frauds/ 
complaints etc.), punitive vigilance (punishing the guilty 
staff), and corrective vigilance (initiating corrective steps 
to plug the loopholes in the systems and procedures). 
Your Bank undertakes the analysis of frauds/attempted 
frauds in the Bank at regular intervals, to identify 
gaps/loopholes in its systems and procedures, if any, 
and suggest adoption of corrective/preventive measures 
to prevent probable frauds. Frauds and actions taken 
thereupon are reported to the CENMAC, Audit Committee 
of the Board/Special Committee of Board for Monitoring 
Frauds and the Board of Directors. Details of modus 
operandi of fraud cases in the banking industry as well 
as frauds, if any, which have occurred in your Bank are 
uploaded on the ‘Employee Portal’ for information and 
awareness of staff members.

11.  DIGITAL BANKING

The world has entered an era of ‘Digital Darwinism’ 
in which technology and society are evolving rapidly, 
faster than organisations can adapt to the change. 
Emergence of digital banking tools and services are 
creating multiple ways to streamline processes, interpret 
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data and service customers. We realise the importance 
of these emerging technologies which can serve towards 
enabling superior customer experience and act as agile 
operating models for our business.

72% Digital 
Transactions

Following this ideology, we were amongst the �rst banks 
in the sector to embrace this digital revolution and today 
have over 30 digital products which are managed by 
our dedicated Digital Banking Department. More than 
72 per cent of our total transactions happen through 
digital services.

Our strategy of implementation of the best industry 
standards, robust vendor management policy, detailed 
research of latest technologies and ef�cient project 
management ensures that we are always ahead of the 
curve in offering digital banking services.

Your Bank is at the forefront to offer services digitally 
even to customers who visit through branches via 
Self-operating Kiosks or ‘E-lobbies’. Our ‘E-lobbies’ are 
equipped to offer a wide array of banking services such 
as ATMs, cash recyclers, passbook printing kiosks and 
cheque deposit machines. We are one of the few banks 
to offer Internet Banking in a ‘one page’ format. We have 
undertaken special efforts during the year for improving 
the security of digital services, redesigning processes 
and creating customer awareness of digital products.

First Bank in the co-operative sector
 Bank on WhatsApp 

Bank on TAB

 Saraswat Bank 100

Cardless cash withdrawal

 Gift cards

Future optimism
Ever since our journey towards channel innovations 
began, we have witnessed a tremendous increase 
in the number of customers embracing this change. 
Over the years, we have introduced many industry 
�rst digital banking services which have changed the 
way customers meet their banking needs. Bank on 
WhatsApp was one such innovative leap. We plan to 

continue our efforts towards improving our customer 
service, offer personalised solutions and serve clients 
with ef�ciency. We are taking special actions to 
enhance our IT infrastructure and we are planning on 
implementing newer technologies and cloud-based 
solutions in the future. We are also exploring new and 
emerging technologies like API Banking, Blockchain, 
Arti�cial Intelligence and Machine Learning to reach our 
goal of maximising customer satisfaction through digital 
services. We have  ensured that we are secured by 
design, and understand the importance of safeguarding 
our customers against cyber threats and staying digitally 
relevant at the same time.

Our gain from channel innovations:
Improved market outreach and rise in 
customer preferences.

  Increased customer satisfaction due to the 
convenience derived from our interactive, exclusive, 
affordable and innovative offerings.

Development of our state-of-the-art IT infrastructure 
which is agile, ef�cient and scalable, enabling 
us to integrate upcoming technologies with the 
current systems.

  Development of enriching partnerships with FinTech 
companies and having the advantage of leveraging 
their innovations and �nancial offerings.

Shorter turnaround time of customer service and at 
the same time lowering of operational costs.

Digital services launched in 2018-19
 Bank on WhatsApp 

Bank on TAB

 Saraswat Bank 100

Contactless Debit Card 

Another popular product offered by your Bank for 
its customers is the Mobile Banking App “GOMO”, 
registrations for which increased by 29 per cent over the 
preceding year. Customer registrations for One-Page 
Internet Banking rose by 15 per cent over the preceding 
year. Registrations for Uni�ed Payment Interface (UPI) 
services offered by the Bank increased by 182 per cent 
over the last year.

The Bank also offers various other digital facilities viz. 
Missed Call and SMS Banking, MPassbook, Bharat Bill 
Payment, Saraswat Quick Pay – an online collection 
facility for schools, companies and other entities, POS 
(Point of Sale) Services – for its customers/merchants, 



30 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank)

Aadhaar Enabled Payment System (AEPS), Saraswat 
Bank Connect mobile app, Bharat QR, Payment 
Gateways, Cardless Cash Withdrawal, Gift cards, 
NETC FasTag, Corporate Internet Banking and myriad 
variant of debit cards  etc., the usage of which is 
increasing signi�cantly.

Your Bank has taken special efforts during the year to 
improve the security of digital services and also took 
various initiatives for creating customer awareness for 
digital products.

12. CUSTOMER RELATIONS AND EXPERIENCE 
DEPARTMENT

  The Customer Relations and Experience Department 
focusses on establishing connect with the customers 
using multiple communication channels and improving 
the existing practices and processes, thereby 
adding value to the services being offered to your 
Bank's customers.

Some of the initiatives in this direction during the year 
were as follows: -

 Catering to customers’ queries, requests and 
complaints round the clock through 24 X 7 
contact center.

Ensuring that customer grievances are attended 
within the stipulated Turn Around Time (TAT) and in 
a uniform manner.

 Detailed analysis of the grievances to identify gaps 
in services and addressing the issues.

Engaging with customers on occasions like Mother’s 
Day, Environment Day and New Year’s Eve.

 Launching of Complaint Redressal Portal.

Complaint Redressal Portal
Customer Complaints are an inevitable reality of any 
business. Your Bank, however, treats a complaint as 
an inherent opportunity to undertake improvements 
and thereby enhance customer relations. We �rmly 
believe that if aggrieved customers’ problems are 
redressed properly, they can prove to be willing 
ambassadors of the Bank.

To make the complaint redressal process more ef�cient, 
your Bank has implemented internal grievance redressal 
system through the ‘CRS (Complaint Redressal System) 
Portal’. The CRS portal is designed primarily to have a 
common platform across the Bank to manage complaints 

and follow a uniform redressal system. The portal 
includes detailed process to solve complaints received 
from different media like e-mails, letters, websites, social 
media, and personal visits or telecons, in addition to 
complaints registered at branches. For every complaint 
registered on the CRS portal, a unique ticket number is 
generated and the customer is informed about the unique 
ticket number by sending an SMS on his registered 
mobile number. There are prede�ned escalation levels in 
the portal to ensure accurate resolution and Turn Around 
Time (TAT) observance. The portal makes it mandatory 
to communicate the resolution of the complaint to 
the complainant and wherever possible, seek his 
acknowledgement. Once a complaint is resolved, it is 
closed in the portal and an SMS is again sent to the 
customer, informing the same. The portal is user friendly 
and allows access to the active dashboard as well as 
enables generation of related reports from time to time.

We are con�dent that the Complaint Redressal System 
will corroborate the Saraswat Bank philosophy of 
‘Customer First’.

13. ADVERTISING, ALLIANCES AND CORPORATE 
COMMUNICATIONS

Your Bank showcased its various products and services 
offered through various advertising channels viz. 
television, radio, cinema, print media, outdoor media and 
social media. The products widely promoted during the 
year were the newly launched WhatsApp Banking, Long 
Term Subordinated Deposits (LTSD), Fixed Deposits, 
Unnati Business Loans and Loan Against Property.

Your Bank forayed into In-Cinema advertising by 
seamlessly integrating its products and services in a 
successful Marathi movie.

Your Bank partnered with leading regional news 
channel ABP Majha to showcase its digital products 
through its special show Majha Maharashtra Digital 
Maharashtra. The show provided a large platform 
to your Bank on mainstream media to showcase its 
Digital Banking services. Your Bank also participated in 
a travel show ‘Majha around the world – Season 5’ on 
ABP Majha to reach out to the international audience in 
Australia and to showcase the Bank’s foreign exchange 
products and services by integrating Bank’s forex 
products with the show.

In view of the centenary year celebrations, the Bank 
extended its visibility through gantries and hoardings in 
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Nashik, Aurangabad, Ahmedabad, Mumbai and Pune. 
Your Bank also advertised on digital screens at leading 
retail outlets and at Nagpur railway station.

Your Bank associated with merchants in dining, jewellery 
and garment businesses to offer exclusive discounts on 
Saraswat Bank cards to its customers. These offers were 
rolled out during major festivals throughout the year.

 Centenary Event
 Your Bank celebrated its 100th anniversary 

with splendid grandeur. This grand event was 
celebrated at NSCI Dome, Mumbai which was 
graced by eminent dignitaries from socio-political 
backgrounds and regulators.

The mega event commenced with a live musical 
concert by leading singer Shreya Ghoshal, followed 
by the centenary celebration function.

   During the event, your Bank also launched 
Contactless Cards and Saraswat Bank 100 online 
account opening service.

14.  LAUNCH OF THREE AMBITIOUS PROJECTS

Your Bank has grown multifold over the past several years 
with the growth being more rapid over the past decade. 
The rapid growth against the backdrop of a continuously 
evolving banking environment, calls for strong steps to 
strengthen the systems, processes and controls.

To adapt to changing times and the rapidly transforming 
banking environment, your Bank launched three 
important projects during the year viz., Project ‘Udaan’, 
Project ‘Niyantran’ and Project ‘Satark’.

PROJECT UDAAN
Project Udaan is the Bank’s ambitious plan to migrate 
to a new Core Banking System.

Your Bank has grown exponentially over the years, with 
signi�cant growth in the last decade. The business 
operations were aptly supported over the past decade 

by our prevailing Core Banking System (CBS), which 
we continuously update to keep pace with the new 
developments, regulatory requirements and changing 
business dynamics. However, the existing CBS has 
inherent limitations and the system updations are 
becoming increasingly dif�cult with the advent of digital 
products and increase in the business size. It was under 
these circumstances that Project Udaan was launched.

Under Project Udaan, we initially assessed vendors 
for availability of functionalities, user friendliness, 
ease of operations, existence of controls, adherence 
to compliance and MIS reporting after going through 
detailed presentations by each of the vendors. 
The architecture, platform, scalability, agility, 
infrastructure requirements, robustness, Information 
& Cyber Security were also studied. Based on the 
various functional domains and internal assessment, 
your Bank �nalised Finacle, the CBS system offered 
by M/s. EdgeVerve Systems Ltd., a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of Infosys. Finacle is presently being used 
by several large PSU banks and private sector banks 
besides smaller co-operative banks and has built a 
market reputation for itself in this segment. The Bank, 
thus, will migrate to a robust, scalable, secure CBS that 
will help the Bank boost the agility and ef�ciency of its 
operations, signi�cantly improve customer experience 
across channels and ensure con�dentiality and integrity 
of data within the system.

PROJECT NIYANTRAN
Project Niyantran is the transformation of the Bank’s 
existing audit process to Risk Based Internal Audit.

‘Niyantran’ means control, restraint or balance. 
Under Project Niyantran, your Bank has adopted a 
proactive initiative to transform the present internal audit 
into a Risk Based Internal Audit function, in line with RBI 
norms for Scheduled Commercial Banks.
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Under the Risk Based Internal Audit approach, the 
Bank will carry out Process Audits, so that process 
lapses and newer unanticipated risks can be identi�ed 
and mitigated through control measures, thus 
reducing repetitive observations in transaction audits. 
Apart from process audit, Risk Based Internal Audit will 
also include Audit of outsourced processes, regulatory 
compliances and IS Audit.

The transformation will involve a seven-stage roadmap 
viz., de�ning governance requirements, undertaking 
a risk assessment, devising annual Audit Plan, 
developing Risk Control Matrix for each process, 
conducting Risk Control Self-Assessment, revamping 
audit methodologies, strengthening the audit team and 
reporting mechanisms.

Your Bank thus looks forward to a transformed approach 
towards audit in the years to come.

PROJECT SATARK
Project Satark is the project to strengthen the 
Information Security of the Bank.

While the organisation is preparing its journey on 
compliance and keeping abreast with changing 
technological needs, it is important that its stakeholders 
are equally aware of the same so that they do not fall 
prey to cyber-attacks. To create such awareness, 
‘Project Satark’ was launched with a view to set up an 
information security governance framework. A cyber 
NINJA mascot along with a shield has also been 
designed which symbolises that the employees are the 

cyber ninjas who will be a shield by being aware, vigilant 
and, thus, keep the organisation safe and secure from 
cyber bullies. 

Under Project Satark, various awareness sessions were 
conducted for Executives and Senior Management 
staff during November 2018 as part of “Information 
Security Awareness week”. The objective of the 
programmes was to highlight to the employees 
their role in the Bank’s information security, improve 
information security awareness, enhance compliance 
with information security management system, impart 
knowledge / information which will enable employees 
to be up-to-date with the latest technologies / trends 
in the �eld of Information and Cyber Security and help 
them better their skills to safeguard their most valuable 
information asset.

The Information Security Department is parallelly 
carrying out various projects on governance, risk, 
compliance and cyber-defence. These projects are 
aimed at bringing out various risks and enabling the 
Bank in mitigating the same.

Your Bank has formed a dedicated Information Security 
Department, headed by the Chief Information Security 
Of�cer (CISO), who oversees overall Information and 
Cyber Security for the Bank.

15. SPECIAL CREDIT MONITORING CELL (SCMC)

  Special Credit Monitoring Cell (SCMC) of your Bank is 
instrumental in monitoring of the commercial borrowal 
accounts under stress, which have been classi�ed as 
Special Mention Accounts. These accounts require 
close monitoring with a view to arrest slippage of 
these accounts to NPAs and upgrade them to normal 
status. These accounts are reviewed at SCMC at 
regular intervals in order to ascertain the status of these 
accounts and decide steps to be taken, nursing to be 
done for improving the health of these accounts, thereby 
upgrading their status.
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16.  CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO – CRAR
  Capital Adequacy Ratio stands at 13.16 per cent as on 31st March, 2019, well above the RBI stipulated norms. 

Capital Adequacy Ratio - CRAR:

Table No. 7 (` in crore)

Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Capital–Tier I    

a) Share Capital 263.20 235.97

b)  Reserves and Surplus    

     Statutory Reserve 764.05 695.05

     Other Reserves 1,002.32 945.88

     Pro�t and Loss Account 210.63 155.19

Sub-Total 1,977.00 1,796.12
Gross Tier I Capital (a+b) 2,240.20 2,032.09
Less: Intangible assets and losses 225.15 241.89
Net Tier I Capital    (A) 2,015.05 1,790.20

Capital–Tier II    

Revaluation Reserve 290.21 298.77

General Provisions 131.88 133.13

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 208.35 168.35

Subordinated Debts 634.08 516.69
Tier II Capital  (B) 1,264.52 1,116.94
Total Capital Funds   (A+B) 3,279.57 2,907.14

Risk Assets    

i.  Funded Risk Assets 22,718.95 19,713.52

ii.  Non-funded Risk Assets 668.73 714.39

iii.   Risk Weighted Assets for market risk 1,536.81 940.39
Total Risk Weighted Assets (i+ii+iii) 24,924.49 21,368.30
Capital Adequacy Ratio % 13.16 13.60

17. APPROPRIATIONS
We propose the following appropriations from the Net Pro�t for the Financial Year 2018-19.

Table No. 8    (` in lakh)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Transfer to Reserve Fund (25%) 7,282.13 6,016.88

Contingency Reserve (10%) 2,912.85 2,406.75

Provision for Education Fund of N.C.U.I. (1%) 291.29 240.68

Dividend on PNCPS @10.50% 571.67 571.67

Dividend on equity shares @17.50% 3,370.31 2,972.70

Provision for Ex-gratia to employees @ 17.50% 3,630.00 3,524.00

Members' Welfare Fund 100.00 100.00

Provision for Staff Welfare 10.00 1,335.00

Provision for Public, Charitable and Co-operative Purposes (1%) 291.29 240.68

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 2,200.00 4,000.00

Special Reserve 2,200.00 1,700.00

General Reserve 6,250.00 956.21

Balance to be c/f to the next year 117.54 98.56

Total 29,227.08 24,163.13
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17.50% Dividend
is recommended by your Board of Directors 
on equity shares for FY 2018-19

  Dividend on Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference 
Shares:

  Your Board of Directors recommends a Dividend of 
10.50 per cent for the year ended 31st March, 2019 on 
Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares.

Members Welfare Fund
Your Board of Directors recommends contribution 
of ` 100 lakh towards Members Welfare Fund. 
After this accretion, the total amount in this fund will be 
` 1,273.50 lakh. During the year, 948 members availed 
reimbursement of expenses towards medical treatment 
and medical check-up.

 Twenty-nine awards were granted to meritorious 
children of members.

17.50% Ex-gratia
will be granted to our employees for FY 2018-19

  Provision for Public Charitable and Co-operative 
Purposes

 As permitted under RBI Circular No. 
UBD. (PCB)/BPD/Cir/43 dated 11th April, 2005, your 
Board recommends an appropriation of 1 per cent of 
the net pro�t - ` 291.29 lakh - for public, charitable and 
co-operative purposes.

Special Reserve
In accordance with Section 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax 
Act, 1961, Urban Co-operative Banks are entitled to 
a deduction in respect of pro�ts earned from eligible 
business i.e. pro�ts earned from loans and advances 
granted to industries, infrastructure, agriculture and 
housing. Twenty per cent of such pro�ts transferred to a 
Special Reserve are eligible for deduction from taxable 
income. Your Board, therefore, recommends an amount 
of ` 2,200 lakh to be appropriated out of pro�ts derived 
from the said eligible business towards Special Reserve.

18. AMENDMENTS TO BANK’S BYE-LAWS

The proposed amendments during this year are:

 1. Amendment to Bye-law No. 6(e):
 Insertion of the words “However the members of 

Self Help Groups (SHGs) and Joint Liability Groups 
(JLGs) who stand as guarantors for the loans 
granted to Self Help Groups (SHGs)/Joint Liability 
Groups (JLGs) are exempted from becoming 
nominal members” in the existing text of the       
Bye-law No. 6(e) after the words Board of Directors.

Self Help Groups (SHGs) and Joint Liability Groups 
(JLGs) are formed by the individuals from the 
weaker sections of the society. Self Help Group 
(SHG) and Joint Liability Group (JLG) members 
can stand as a cross surety to each other in case 
of lending. Nationalized and Private Sector banks 
lend to such SHGs/JLGs without any membership 
requirement. To compete with such banks/�nancial 
institutions, amendment to Bye-law No. 6(e) is 
proposed allowing members of Self Help Groups 
(SHGs) and Joint Liability Groups (JLGs) to stand 
as surety without membership. 

 The exact text of amendment of Bye-law No. 6(e) will 
be circulated in the Annual General Meeting. 

2. Amendment to Byelaw No. 6B:

 Insertion of the words “Self Help Groups (SHGs) 
and Joint Liability Groups (JLGs)” in the existing 
text of the Bye-law No. 6B after the words public 
limited company.

Our Bye-law No. 6B is not providing membership 
of the Bank to Self Help Groups (SHGs) and Joint 
Liability Groups (JLGs). Since our Bank is receiving 
proposals for �nancing loan for Self Help Groups 
(SHGs) and Joint Liability Groups (JLGs), it is 
necessary to make them members of the Bank by 
amending the existing Bye-law No. 6B. 

 The exact text of amendment of Bye-law No. 6B will 
be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

3. Amendment to Bye-law No. 16:

 Bye-law No. 16 states that “No member shall hold 
shares more than 1/5th of the Share Capital of the 
Society. Provided that the Board may stipulate the 
maximum limit of shareholding within the above 
ceiling for linkage of shareholding to borrowing 
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in accordance with the directions given by the 
Reserve Bank of India and/or the Central Registrar 
of Co-operative Societies from time to time.”

Replacement of the words “1/5th of the Share 
Capital of the Society” in the existing text of the 
Bye-law No.16 by the words “5% of the total paid- 
up share capital of the society”.

 RBI has advised all the State Governments to 
carry out necessary amendments to the respective 
State Co-operative Societies Acts for dispensing 
with, wherever applicable, monetary ceilings on 
individual shareholding and restricting the individual 
shareholding of a member to 5% of the total 
paid-up share capital of a UCB. UCBs are required 
to adhere to the said share linkage to borrowing 
norms and ceiling on individual shareholding. It is 
therefore proposed to replace the existing provision 
of ‘1/5th of Share Capital of the society’ to ‘5% of 
the total paid-up share capital in the existing text’, 
to make it consistent with the RBI circular.

The exact text of amendment of Bye-law No. 16 will 
be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

 4. Amendment to Bye-law No. 34:
 Bye-law No. 34 states that “Loan shall be made only 

to members, provided that with special sanction 
of the Registrar, along with members, the Society 
may make loans to another Society and others. 
Such others will be the following categories:

a) Individuals/�rms and companies who become 
the borrower of the bank by way of assignment 
of their debts.

 b) Self-Help Groups.

c) Non-Government Organisations.”

 Deletion of the words “b) Self-Help Groups” from 
the existing text and accordingly re-numbering of 
34(c) as 34(b).

Our Bank has been receiving proposals from Self 
Help Groups and we are proposing them to be 
enrolled as members under Bye-law No. 6B, hence 
this amendment.

 The exact text of amendment of Bye-law No. 34 will 
be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

5. Addition of new Bye-law No. 55(A):
A new Bye-law No. 55 (A) has been introduced 
which stipulates that candidates contesting the 

elections for Directorship should have been member 
for a minimum period of twelve months and  the 
contesting candidate should have an operative 
savings/ current/term deposit account of ` 50,000/- 
in the Bank for a minimum period of twelve months 
continuously prior to the date of nomination and 
will continue till he/she remains as a Director 
of the Board. The said Bye-law No. 55(A) will be 
incorporated after the existing Bye-law No. 55.

The exact text of proposed Bye-law No. 55 (A) will 
be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

 6. Addition of new Bye-law No. 55(B):
 Our Bye-laws are not providing for the Security 

Deposit to be paid by the candidate for contesting 
elections. In order to ensure involvement and 
commitment of the candidate, it is proposed that a 
new Bye-law No. 55(B) be incorporated stipulating 
requirement of security deposit of ` 25,000/- by 
the candidate at the time of �ling of nomination 
and rules pertaining to the said security deposit. 
The said Bye-law No. 55(B) will be incorporated 
after the Bye-law No. 55(A).

The exact text of proposed Bye-law No. 55 (B) will 
be circulated in the Annual General Meeting.

 7. Amendment to Bye-law No. 59:
 The existing Bye-law No. 59 states that “The term 

of of�ce of the Board of Directors of the Bank shall 
be for a period of three years from the date of 
election or for such other maximum period as may 
be prescribed by, or permissible under Central Act 
or the Rules framed there under. Retiring members 
of the Board shall, subject to their satisfying the 
Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, 
the rules framed thereunder and the Bye-laws 
otherwise be eligible to stand for re-election at the 
ensuing election.”

 Replacement of the words “for a period of three 
years” in the existing text of the Bye-laws by the 
words “for a period of �ve years”.

 It is proposed to replace the existing text so as to 
make it compatible with the provisions of Section 
45(5) of Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002.

 The exact text of amendment of Bye-law  
No. 59 will be circulated in the Annual 
General Meeting.
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19. IDEAL SHAREHOLDER

The Ideal Shareholder i.e. 
Adarsh Sabhasad Award 
for FY 2018-19 was 
bestowed on Shri Kishor 
Desai of M/s. Kishor Pumps 
Pvt. Ltd. Shri Kishor Desai 
completed his B.E. 
(Metallurgical) and M.E. 
(Mechanical) from College 
of Engineering, Pune and 
Indian Institute of Science, 

Bengaluru respectively. After completing his education, 
he joined M/s. Kishor Pumps Pvt. Ltd., a company 
founded by his late father, respected Shri Narayan 
Narsinh Desai. As Chairman and Managing Director, he 
carried forward the rich legacy of his father and 
propelled M/s. Kishor Pumps Pvt. Ltd. into a market 
leader in the �eld of pumps for waste water, sewage, 
chemicals and slurry. M/s. Kishor Pumps Pvt. Ltd. has 
more than 70,000 pumps operational in India and 
globally, with exports to over 60 countries. It also 
supplies pumps to nuclear, aerospace, re�nery, steel, 
oil, petrochemicals, pharmaceutical industry, and has  
also diversi�ed recently into biogas generation.

 Under the aegis of Mr. Kishor Desai, the Company has 
won many laurels and tributes including the prestigious 
Parkhe Industrial Award, President’s Award for ‘Import 
Substitution of Pumps for Mercury’, and Customer 
Value Leadership Award for Asia in Water & Wastewater 
Pumps by Frost and Sullivan, USA. Shri Desai held the 
position of President of the Indian Pump Manufacturers’ 
Association (IPMA) from 2006-08. He is credited with 
expanding and internationalising the activities of IPMA. 
He is a Founder Member of the Society of Fluid Sealing, 
a Council Member of the Institute of Indian Foundrymen, 
Pune Chapter and also a member of Indo-German 
Chamber of Commerce (IGCC), Maharashtra Chamber 
of Commerce, Industry and Agriculture (MACCIA) and 
Confederation of Indian Industries (CII). He has been 
a trustee of Maharshi Karve Stree Shikshan Sanstha, 
the largest women’s education institute in India. 
He is a Board Member of the Governing Council of 
the Maharashtra State Board of Technical Education 
(MSBTE) and its Incubation and Start-up Committee 
and the Executive President of Seva Wardhini, a social 
organisation focussing on rural water conservation and 
water well re-charging. Apart from his business and 
professional interests, he is also a classical singer and 
a stage/television actor of repute.

 Your Bank is proud to be associated with Shri Kishor 
Desai and his family over the past �ve decades. In fond 
appreciation and full recognition of his accomplishments 
and the renowned stature of his Company, your Bank 
is, indeed, proud to honour him with the 'Adarsha 
Sabhasad' (Ideal Shareholder) of the Year Award.

20.  AWARDS

Awards are a re�ection of our growing strength and impact 
on the �nancial landscape in the co-operative segment.

  We are proud to state that your Bank was adjudged as 
the Winner (Best Bank) in the category of ‘Technology 
Bank of the Year’ for the third consecutive year among 
co-operative banks at the IBA Banking Technology 
Awards held on 22nd February, 2019.

TransUnion CIBIL has awarded our Bank with ‘Best Data 
Quality on Consumer Bureau’ Award for the year 2018-19.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

 Your Bank is aware that it needs to be socially 
responsible and it, therefore, adopts CSR programs, so 
that it can give back to society  a part of what it has 
received, thereby making a valuable contribution to the 
society at large.

The Kudaldeshastha Gaud Brahman Vidyavriddhi 
Samaj is a renowned Trust established in 1894 with 
the objective of imparting education to the needy and 
deserving students from economically deprived sections 
of society. The Trust is known for its philanthropic and 
humanitarian activities. It has done excellent work in 
its chosen �eld and has brought about a remarkable 
change in the fortunes of thousands of youngsters, 
especially in the neglected rural areas, by giving them 
the invaluable gift of education.

 Encouragement to such socially relevant efforts is the 
need of the hour. Considering the commendable work of 
the Trust and its humanitarian thrust on education of the 
deprived and backward children and youth of society, 
your Bank donated ` 25 lakh to the Kudaldeshastha 
Gaud Brahman Vidyavriddhi Samaj.

During the year under review, your Bank also donated 
` 33.62 lakh to 268 worthy institutions in a function 
“Runanubandh Sohala” held on 8th March, 2019 at 
Ekanath Thakur Bhavan.
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22. OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

The third Ekanath Thakur Memorial Lecture 
was held this year on 15th February, 2019 on the 
occasion of the 78th birth anniversary of our late 
Chairman Shri Ekanath Thakur. The lecture was 
delivered by Hon’ble Shri Satish Marathe, Director, 
Central Board of RBI. The topic of this lecture was 
‘The Present and Future of UCBs in India’.

 Your Bank organised the ‘Loksatta SME Conclave 
2019’ at Nagpur. The Conclave was visited by more 
than 350 businessmen from Nagpur and Vidharbha. 
Similar conclaves were also organised at other 
locations like Mumbai, Thane, Pune, etc.

Your Bank participated in ‘Industrial and Machinery 
Exhibition 2018’ held at Kolhapur. Your Bank was 
the primary sponsor for the event. Your Bank’s stall 
at the exhibition was visited by several businessmen 
and industrialists, thereby generating leads for our 
marketing team. The Bank also received an award 
for the best stall at the Exhibition.

23. FORMATION OF TRUSTS

 As you are aware, your Bank with a view to recognising 
and acknowledging the contribution of its shareholders 
and employees, had introduced a new bye-law in the 
preceding year. As per the said bye-law, the Bank had 
approved the formation of �ve Trusts for the bene�t 
of the Shareholders, Executives, Management Staff, 
Non-Management Staff and Retired Employees. The said 
Trusts will each own not more than 5 per cent of the 
Bank’s paid-up capital and will work for the bene�t of 
the bene�ciaries from the dividend income derived from 
the respective shareholding.

In line with the guidelines of the Reserve Bank of India 
and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, the 
setting up of the trusts was approved last year by the 
Board of Directors and the General Body. We are now 
pleased to inform you that the approval of the Central 
Registrar of Co-operative Societies has also been 
obtained during this year. Subsequently, we have sought 
speci�c approval of the Reserve Bank of India in this 
regard.  On receipt of RBI approval, we will initiate the 
process of formation of these trusts, which will work for 
the bene�t of the shareholders and the employees.

24. COMPOSITION OF YOUR BANK’S BOARD

The composition of the Board of your Bank is governed 
by the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and 
the Bye-laws of your Bank. Presently, there are sixteen 
Directors on the Board in addition to the Managing 
Director. The Board includes eminent persons with 
professional expertise and experience in Banking, 
Finance and other �elds. Your Bank has two Chartered 
Accountants and six bankers as its Directors.

 During the period under report, twenty-�ve Board 
meetings were held.

Loans to Directors:
No Director has borrowed any money from your Bank. 
This has been a healthy tradition in your Bank and has 
been enshrined in Bye-law No. 55 and Bye-law No. 63 (c) 
many years ago.

 Working of Committees:
 The Board has constituted Committees which include 

Directors and higher Management Executives to take 
informed decisions in the best interest of the Bank.

As on 31st March, 2019, �ve Committees of the Board 
were in place viz.,

 Executive and HRD Committee

Audit, Accounts and NPA Management Committee

 Credit Committee of the Board

Special Committee of the Board for 
Monitoring Frauds

 Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee

The various Committees and the scope of functions 
are as follows:

 Executive and HRD Committee:
 The Executive and HRD Committee looks into HR and 

training issues, formulation and implementation of action 
plan for sustaining/improving the quality of the Bank’s 
human resources and welfare measures for employees 
at all levels. It is also involved in decision making on all 
operational matters, except sanction of loans/advances. 
It further decides upon branch expansion, acquisition 
of premises on purchase or lease for branches/of�ces; 
approves expenditure and costs in relation thereto; 
and also considers any other matter which requires 
urgent attention.
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 Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the Executive 
and HRD Committee of the Board. During the year under 
review, ten meetings of the Committee were held.

Audit, Accounts and NPA Management Committee:
This Committee provides direction, oversees the total 
audit function of your Bank, follows up statutory/external/ 
concurrent/internal audit and ensures strict adherence 
of RBI guidelines and directives from time to time. 
It deliberates on the progress of recoveries of overdues 
and NPAs and decides on issuing of securitisation 
notices and possessions of properties charged to your 
Bank to expedite recoveries. Sixteen meetings of the 
Committee were held during the year.

 Shri S.K. Sakhalkar is the Chairman of the Audit, 
Accounts and NPA Management Committee.

Credit Committee of the Board:
The Credit Committee of the Board considers all Board 
Level proposals involving Renewal/Review at the existing 
level and/or various related requests. The Committee 
comprises the Chairman (Director), two Board Members 
(by rotation) and the Managing Director, apart from 
invitees that includes your Bank’s top Executives 
and CENMAC members. The Committee considers 
Renewal/Review/Request proposals related to individual 
credit exposures above ` 20 crore and group credit 
exposures above ` 40 crore. During the �nancial year 
under review, two meetings of the Committee were held.

 Shri S.N. Sawaikar is the Chairman of the Credit 
Committee of the Board.

Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring 
Frauds:
The Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring 
Frauds as the name suggests, is a Committee to monitor 
high value frauds involving amounts exceeding ` 100 
lakh, that may occur in your Bank. The said Committee 
meets as per exigencies. During the �nancial year under 
review, the Committee met on one occasion.

 Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the Special 
Committee of the Board for Monitoring Frauds.

  Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee of 
the Board:

 The Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee of 
the Board is a Committee to approve IT strategy and 
policies and to ensure that an effective IT organisational 
structure and strategic planning process is in place. 
Key focus areas of IT Governance include strategic 
alignment, value delivery, risk management, resource 
management and performance management.

The Committee has been constituted during the 
year under report and seven meetings of the 
Committee were held.

 Shri A. A. Pandit is the Chairman of the Information 
Technology (IT) Strategy Committee of the Board

25.  MEMBERSHIP

2,13,836 members of your Bank individually hold �fty and 
above fully-paid shares. The number of nominal members 
of the Bank stood at 50,273 as on 31st March, 2019.

26. APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

 Your Board of Directors recommends the appointment 
of M/s. G.D. Apte & Company, Chartered Accountants, 
GDA House, Plot No. 85, Right Bhusari Colony, Paud 
Road, Pune – 411 038, as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Bank for the FY 2019-20.

27.  DISCLOSURES

As per the disclosure norms stipulated by RBI, we hereby 
declare that insurance premium to Deposit Insurance 
and Credit Guarantee Corporation (DICGC) has been 
paid upto 31st March, 2019 and there are no arrears 
payable to DICGC.

28. OBITUARY

We deeply mourn the passing away of some of our 
shareholders, former employees and employees of your 
Bank during the year under report.



A Legacy of trust... A promising future...

S
TA

T
U

T
O

R
Y

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S

39Annual Report 2018-19

We pray that the departed souls rest in peace and that 
the Almighty grants fortitude and strength to their family 
members to bear the irreparable loss.

29.  GRATITUDE

Your Board wishes to place on record the appreciation 
of the support which the Board of Directors and the 
Bank has received from all its shareholders and other 
stakeholders, and thanks them profusely for the 
con�dence and trust that they have reposed in the 
Board and your Bank.

Your Board would also like to place on record the deep 
sense of gratitude to the authorities of the Reserve Bank 
of India, the Of�ce of the Central Registrar of Co-operative 
Societies - New Delhi, the Of�ce of the Commissioner for 
Co-operation and Registrar of Co-operative Societies, 
Maharashtra State, Pune, bankers, legal advisors 
and auditors for their valuable guidance, support and 
co-operation. The Board is also grateful to the Registrars 

of Co-operative Societies of the states of Madhya 
Pradesh, Karnataka, Goa, Delhi and Gujarat.

The Board of Directors places on record its appreciation 
of all sections of employees for their loyalty, dedication 
and wholehearted involvement in achieving the goals 
and missions of your Bank, including providing excellent 
services to all customers.

Your Board wishes to assure all shareholders that it 
will continue to strive towards attaining new heights 
in coming years through continued commitment and 
sustained efforts.

 For and on behalf of the Board,

        Gautam E. Thakur
       Chairman
 Mumbai: 28th June, 2019
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101J³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeuee®ee iees<eJeeje

ceeveveer³e meYeemeo,
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19®ee 101Jee Jeeef<e&keÀ 
DenJeeue meeoj keÀjleevee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueuee Deevebo nesle Deens.

1.  peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee Je Yeejle
 Je<e& 2018®³ee ÒeejbYeer peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLee mekeÀejelcekeÀ 

Jeeì®eeue keÀjerle nesleer. Hejbleg pemepemes Je<e& mejle iesues 
lemelemee DeLe&J³eJemLee Jee{er®ee Jesie ceboeJele iesuee. DecesefjkeÀe Je 
®eerve ceOeerue J³eeHeej-³eg×e®ee Ye[keÀe, DepeXefìvee lemes®e legkeÀea 
³ee osMeeb®³ee De[®eCeerle Deeuesu³ee DeLe&J³eJemLee, ³egjesefHe³eve 
osMeebceO³es GlHeeoveeb®³ee ceeieCeerle nesle Demeuesueer keÀHeele Je 
l³ee Deveg<ebieeves DeewÐeesefiekeÀ #es$eele nesle Demeuesueer IemejCe 
DeeefCe efJekeÀefmele DeLe&J³eJemLeebceO³es J³eepeojele nesle Demeuesueer 
Jee{, ³ee SkeÀef$ele HeefjCeeceebcegUs peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLesceO³es, 
efJeMes<ele: ogmeN³ee meneceenerle efMeefLeuelee efometve Deeueer.

 DecesefjkeÀve DeLe&J³eJemLee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018 ceO³es  
2.9 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer. DecesefjkeÀve HesÀ[jue efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
Je<e&Yejele J³eepeojele ìHH³eeìHH³eeves Jee{ keÀjle ef[meWyej, 
2018uee les 2.25-2.50 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej DeeCeues.

 iesu³ee leerve Je<ee¥le 2 ìkeÌkesÀ Je DeefOekeÀ ieleerves Jee{CeeN³ee 
³egjesefHe³eve DeLe&J³eJemLesves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018 ceO³es  
1.8 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer®e Jee{ veeWoefJeueer. ³egjesefHe³eve 
osMeebceOeerue SkeÀ ÒecegKe DeLe&J³eJemLee Demeuesu³ee pece&veer®³ee 
DeLe&J³eJemLesle nesle Demeuesueer IemejCe lemes®e FìueermeejK³ee 
osMeebceO³es Demeuesueer ceboerme¢M ³e HeefjefmLeleer, ner ³egjesefHe³eve 
DeLe&J³eJemLes®³ee mebLe Jeeì®eeueer®eer ÒecegKe keÀejCes Deensle.

 SketÀCe®e, peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer ceeie&¬eÀceCee ner DeeefLe&keÀ 
Je<e& 2018 ceO³es DecesefjkeÀer J³eeHeej³eg× les efye´ìve®ee 
³egjesefHe³eve ³egefve³eveceOetve yeensj He[C³ee®ee efveCe&³e, ³ee Je 
DeMee DeveskeÀefJeOe keÀejCeebcegUs De[KeUle®e Heej He[ueer.

 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceOeerue Yeejleer³e 
DeLe&J³eJemLee:

 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es Yeejlee®³ee mekeÀue 
jeä^er³e GlHeeoveele (GDP) ceeieerue DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee 
7.2 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 6.8 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Jee{ 
veeWoefJeueer iesueer. ³eeceO³es ke=À<eer #es$ee®eer Jee{ 2.9 ìkeÌkesÀ, 
DeewÐeesefiekeÀ #es$e 6.9 ìkeÌkesÀ lej mesJee #es$ee®eer Jee{  
7.5 ìkeÌkesÀ DeMeer jeefnueer.

 jyyeer HeerkeÀe®es DeHes#esHes#ee keÀceer Peeuesues GlHeeove ns ke=À<eer 
#es$ee®³ee efHeísneìer®es ÒecegKe keÀejCe þjues Je l³ee®ee 
HeefjCeece mekeÀue jeä^er³e GlHeeoveeJej ÒeecegK³eeves efometve 
Deeuee. l³ee®eÒeceeCes Je<ee&®³ee MesJeì®³ee efleceenerle HegjsMee 
ceeieCeerDeYeeJeer efJeefJeOe GlHeeoveeb®³ee efveefce&leerle Ieì nesTve 
DeewÐeesefiekeÀ #es$ee®eer Jee{ner Kegbìueer.

 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es ûeenkeÀ efkebÀcele efveos&MeebkeÀ 
ieleJe<eea®³ee mejemejer 3.53 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle  
3.43 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe keÀceer jeefnuee. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e&  
2018-19®³ee ceO³eeHeemetve KeeÐeebVeeb®³ee efkeÀceleer 
Gleju³eecegUs ceneieeF& ojele Ieì efometve Deeueer.

 DeeefLe&keÀ DeeIee[erJej keWÀê mejkeÀejves efJeÊeer³e letì  
3.4 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le jeKeC³ee®es ue#³e ieeþues. Jemlet Je mesJee 
keÀjele (GST) DeHes#esHes#ee keÀceer GlHeVe efceUtvener efJeÊeer³e 
letì efve³eb$eCeele jeefnueer. Hejbleg, ®eeuet Keel³eeleerue letì 
(CAD) cee$e 2.6 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHe³e¥le Heesnes®eueer. SefÒeue les 
ef[meWyej 2018 ³ee keÀeUele J³eeHeejer legìerleerue Jee{ercegUs 
ÒeecegK³eeves efJeÊeer³e letì efJemleejueer.

 Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee ÒeejbYeer 
J³eepeojele Òel³eskeÀer 0.25 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer oesveoe Jee{ kesÀueer. 
lemes®e HeleOeesjCee®eer efoMeener leìmLe (Neutral) Jeªve 
keÀenerMeer mekeÌle (Hawkish) keÀjC³ee®es mebkesÀle efoues. 
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Hejbleg, ceneieeF& ojele meelel³eeves nesle Demeuesueer vejceeF& 
Je keÀ®®³ee lesuee®³ee efkeÀceleer efmLej jeefnu³eecegUs Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee HeleOeesjCe meefceleerves DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee 
ogmeN³ee meneceenerle J³eepeojele 0.25 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer keÀHeele 
kesÀueer Je HeleOeesjCee®eer efoMeener Hegvne leìmLe (Neutral)

Jej DeeCeueer.

 Je<ee&®³ee DeKesjerme keÀener yeBkesÀlej efJeÊeer³e kebÀHev³eebJej 
(NBFC) Deeuesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ mebkeÀìecegUs DeLe&J³eJemLesJej 
ceUYe pecee Peeues nesles. Hejbleg, Yeejleer ³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
DeeKeuesu³ee DeveskeÀ Ghee ³e ³eespeveebcegUs ªhe ³eeleerue lejuelee 
cegyeuekeÀ ÒeceeCeele jeefnueer.

 efJeÊeer³e yeepeej efJeMues<eCe:
 Yeejleer³e MesDej yeepeej efveoxMeebkeÀ meg©Jeeleer®³ee 

GlmeenJeOe&keÀ Jeeì®eeueerveblej yeBkesÀlej efJeÊeer³e 
kebÀHev³eebceOeerue Ie[ecees[eRcegUs Je<e&DeKesjerme keÀenermee 
Leb[eJetve 38,673 DebkeÀebJej efmLejeJeuee. mejkeÀejer 
keÀpe&jesK³eeb®es J³eepeojner Heefnu³ee meneceenerle ®e{s®e 
jeefnues. Hejbleg keÀ®®³ee lesuee®³ee efkeÀceleerleerue Gleej, 
ceneieeF&oje®eer vejceeF& Je Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves 
kesÀuesu³ee J³eepeoj (Repo Rate) keÀHeeleercegUs  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer one Je<eea³e mejkeÀejer 
keÀpe&jesK³eeb®ee J³eepeoj 7.35 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Heesnes®euee. 
DecesefjkeÀve [e@uej®³ee leguevesle ©He³ee®ee efJeefvece³e ojner  
Dee@keÌìesyej 2018®³ee megceejeme ̀ 74.40 Jej iesuee neslee. 
efJeosMeer efJeÊemebmLeebveer Yeejleer³e Yeeb[Jeueer yeepeejeletve 
iegbleJeCetkeÀ keÀe{tve Iesleu³ee®ee lees HeefjCeece neslee. Hejbleg 
Je<e&DeKesjerme DecesefjkeÀer HesÀ[jue efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee Deeieeceer 
keÀeUeleerue J³eepeoj keÀHeeleer®³ee mebkesÀleebcegUs ©He³ee 
YekeÌkeÀce nesTve Je<e&DeKesjerme `69.15 Jej Heesnes®euee.

 meJe¥keÀ<e cetu³eceeHeve:
 2018®³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le De[KeUCeeN³ee peeieeflekeÀ 

DeLe&J³eJemLesle 2019®³ee Heefnu³ee efleceenerlener kegÀþueerner 
megOeejCee efometve Deeueer veener. Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLeener 
³eeuee DeHeJeeo þjueer veener Je efle®ee Jesiener ceboeJeuee. Hejbleg 
³esCeeN³ee keÀeUele GlHeeoveeb®³ee ceeieCeerle Jee{ nesC³ee®eer 
MekeÌ³elee, IeìCeejs J³eepeoj, ûeeceerCe Yeeiee®³ee GVeleermeeþer 
DeeKeuesu³ee ³eespevee, keÀ®®³ee lesuee®³ee efve³eb$eCeele 
jeefnuesu³ee efkeÀceleer Je cepeyetle ©He³ee, ³eeb®³ee HeefjCeeceer 
Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLee YeefJe<³eele DeefOekeÀeefOekeÀ me#ece 
nesF&ue. HeCe ³ee DeeéeemekeÀ Jeeì®eeueerle keÀener DeeJneveeb®ee 
meeceveener Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLesme keÀjeJee ueeiesue.  
keÀe@Heexjsì Je efJeÊeer³e #es$eeleerue mebmLeeb®es IemejCeejs leeUsyebo, 
peeieeflekeÀ mlejeJej DecesefjkeÀe Je ®eerveceOeerue J³eeHeej³eg×e®es 
GceìCeejs He[meeo, DecesefjkeÀe - FjeCeceOeerue Jee{lee 
leCeeJe, ye´seqiPeì®ee ³egjesefHe³e mecegoe³eeleerue osMeebJej nesCeeje 
DeeefLe&keÀ HeefjCeece lemes®e peeieeflekeÀ mlejeJejerue jepekeÀer³e 
HeefjefmLeleer ³ee meJe& yeeyeer Yeejleer³e DeLe&J³eJemLes®eer Iees[oew[ 
jesKet MekeÀleele.

2. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceOeerue DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
keÀe³e&efme×er®eer þUkeÀ JewefMe<þîes

 yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe J³eJemee³e efo. 31 cee®e&, 2018®³ee 
`58,525.77 keÀesìeRJeªve `3,286.59 keÀesìeRveer 
Jee{tve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer `61,812.36 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee. J³eJemee³eeleerue ner Jee{ 5.62 ìkeÌkesÀ 
FlekeÀer Deens.

 DenJeeueJe<eea yeBkesÀves J³eJemee³eJe=×erHes#ee veHeÌ³eele Jee{ 
keÀjC³ee®es GefÎä jeKeues nesles. ³ee GefÎäe®eer Hetle&lee 
keÀjle yeBkesÀ®ee {esyeU veHeÀe ieleJe<eea®³ee `528.51 
keÀesìeRJeªve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es `630.27 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee. {esyeU veHeÌ³eeleerue ner Jee{  
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19.25 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Deens. lej yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀjesÊej 
efveJJeU veHeÌ³eele ieleJe<eea®³ee `240.68 keÀesìerbJeªve  
21.03 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Jee{ Peeueer Je lees DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2018-19 ceO³es `291.29 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee.

` 291.29 keÀesìer
yeBkesÀ®³ee Feflenemeeleerue DeeÊeeHe³e¥le®ee meJeex®®e keÀjesÊej 
efveJJeU veHeÀe

	 yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀpee¥®es þsJeeRMeer Demeuesues ÒeceeCe  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2018®³ee 66.95 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer 71.63 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Peeues.

	 efo. 31 cee®e&, 2018 jespeer `23,469.11 keÀesìer 
Demeuesuee keÀpe&J³eJemee³e 9.92 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve  
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer `25,797.49 
keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee. efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³eelener  
26.56 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Jee{ Peeueer.

	 DenJeeueJe<eea Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves jsHees ojele keÀHeele 
kesÀueer. l³eeuee Devegmeªve yeBkesÀvesner þsJeeRJejerue J³eepeoj 
keÀceer jeKeues. l³eecegUs þsJeeRceOeerue Jee{ner DenJeeueJe<eea 
keÀceer jeefnueer. yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeeRceO³es 2.73 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Jee{ 
nesTve ieleJe<eea®³ee `35,056.66 keÀesìeRJeªve efo. 
31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer þsJeer `36,014.87 keÀesìeRJej 
Heesnes®eu³ee.

	 yeBkesÀ®ee mJeefveOeer efo. 31 cee®e&, 2018®³ee ̀ 2,869.03 
keÀesìeRJeªve 12.84 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2019 jespeer `3,237.38 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee. yeBkesÀ®es 
Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee ÒeceeCe efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer 
13.16 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Deens.

	 yeBkesÀ®³ee {esyeU DeveglHeeefole ceeueceÊes®es SketÀCe 
keÀpee¥Meer Demeuesues ÒeceeCe efo. 31 cee®e&, 2018®³ee 
3.72 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer  
4.63 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej iesues. lej efveJJeU DeveglHeeefole 
ceeueceÊes®es ÒeceeCe 1.80 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Deens.

	 yeBkesÀ®es SketÀCe GlHeVe ieleJe<eea®³ee `3,376.02 
keÀesìeRJeªve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer `54.02 
keÀesìeRveer Jee{tve `3,430.04 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®eues. SketÀCe 
GlHeVeeHewkeÀer J³eepeeÜejs efceUeuesues GlHeVe ieleJe<eea®³ee 
58.85 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle DenJeeueJe<eea 63.08 ìkeÌkesÀ 
FlekesÀ Deens.

` 3,430.04 keÀesìer
DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceOeerue yeBkesÀ®es SketÀCe GlHeVe

	 yeBkesÀ®ee SketÀCe Ke®e& (lejlegoer Je keÀj JeieUlee) ieleJe<eea®³ee 
`2,847.51 keÀesìeR®³ee leguevesle efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 
jespeer `2,799.77 keÀesìeRHe³e¥le Ieìuee. SketÀCe Ke®e& 
keÀceer nesC³ee®es ÒecegKe keÀejCe J³eepeeHeesìer ÐeeJ³ee ueeieCeeN³ee 
Ke®ee&le keÀHeele ns nes³e. SketÀCe Ke®ee¥HewkeÀer, J³eepeeHeesìer 
os³e kesÀuesuee Ke®e& ieleJe<eea 69.64 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe neslee; 
lej efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 DeKesjerme lees keÀceer nesTve 
66.74 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀe Peeuee. J³eepe mees[tve Flej Ke®ee¥®³ee 
ÒeceeCeele ieleJe<eea®³ee 11.12 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve efo. 31 cee®e&, 
2019 jespeer 12.24 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer Jee{ Peeueer. ner Jee{ 
ÒeMeemekeÀer³e Ke®e& Je veJeerve JeslevekeÀjejeJejerue Ke®ee&Heesìer 
Peeueer. ÒeMeemekeÀer³e Ke®ee&le Jee{ nesTvener SketÀCe Ke®ee&®es 
GlHeVeeMeer Demeuesues ÒeceeCe 55.68 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 
52.80 ìkeÌkesÀ Demes meg¢{ Peeues. SketÀCe lejlegoeR®es 
ÒeceeCe ieleJe<eea®³ee 6.08 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve DenJeeueJe<eea 
7.38 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej Heesnes®eues.
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 GlHeVeeleerue Jee{ Je Ke®ee&le ye®ele Peeu³eecegUs, 
efveJJeU J³eepeeceOeerue leHeÀeJele (NIM) ieleJe<eea®³ee  
2.19 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer 2.62 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej iesueer.

3. efJeYeeieJeej keÀeceefiejer
(i) efjìsue yeBefkebÀie:
 efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpex:

 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves iesu³ee keÀener Je<ee¥le efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³e 
Jee{efJeC³eeJej Yej efouee Deens. DenJeeueJe<ee&lener efkeÀjkeÀesU 
keÀpe&J³eJemee³e Je=×erkeÀjerlee DeveskeÀ Ghee³e³eespevee DeeKeu³ee 
iesu³ee. l³ee®³ee HeefjCeeceer efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³e 
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2018®³ee `7,602.36 keÀesìeRJeªve 
efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer 26.56 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve 
`9,621.17 keÀesìeRJej Heesnes®euee. yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe 
keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeHewkeÀer efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee¥®ee Jeeìener ieleJe<eea®³ee 
38.35 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 42.75 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej iesuee.

` 9,621.17 keÀesìer
SketÀCe efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³e-Jeeef<e&keÀ Jee{ 26.56…

 efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpe&J³eJemee³eeleerue Jee{ ner DenJeeueJe<ee&le 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves Iesleuesu³ee efJeefJeOe efveCe&³eeb®eer HeÀueÞegleer 
nes³e:

	   efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee&®eer cebpegjer peueoieleerves nesC³eemeeþer 
MeeKee ÒecegKe Je Heefjceb[U ÒecegKeebvee DeefleefjkeÌle 
DeefOekeÀej osC³eele Deeues.

	   efveCe&³e Òeef¬eÀ³ee Jesieeves nesC³eemeeþer efJeefJeOe MeeKeeb®es 
ieì keÀjC³eele ³esTve Òel³eskeÀ ieìeuee SkeÀ ieì ÒecegKe 
(Cluster Head) vesceC³eele Deeuee.

	   efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee¥®³ee cebpegjermeeþer efjìsue ueesve 
DeesefjpevesMeve efmeefmìce (RLOS) ner ³eb$eCee 
keÀe³ee&eqvJele kesÀueer iesueer.

	   efkeÀjkeÀesU keÀpee¥®³ee ³eespeveebceO³es ueJeef®ekeÀlee DeeCetve 
veJeveJes yeoue keÀjC³eele Deeues.

	   ie=n keÀpex, Jeenve keÀpex, eqkeÌJekeÀ-ue@He, [e@keÌìj ef[ueeF&ì 
Fl³eeoer keÀpe&-³eespeveeb®es J³eepeoj mHeOee&lcekeÀ 
keÀjC³eele Deeues.

	   ÒeeOeev³e (Priority) #es$eeuee keÀpe&HegjJeþe:
   Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceebvegmeej ÒeeOeev³e 

(Priority) #es$eeuee SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®³ee 40 
ìkeÌkesÀ keÀpe& efJelejerle keÀjeJes ueeieles. DenJeeueJe<eea ns 
ue#³e ieeþC³eemeeþer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ueIeg Je ceO³ece 
GÐeesie, mJe³eb ye®ele ieì Je cee³e¬eÀesHeÀe³eveevmed #es$eeme 
keÀpe&HegjJeþe keÀjC³eeJej Yej efouee.

   DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es ÒeeOeev³e #es$eeme 
keÀpe&HegjJeþîee®es ÒeceeCe SketÀCe keÀpe&HegjJeþîee®³ee 
45.21 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ nesles. ns®e ÒeceeCe ieleJe<eea 
27.45 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ nesles. keÀcekegÀJele (Weaker) 
#es$eeme nesCeeN³ee keÀpe&HegjJeþîee®es ÒeceeCener  
10.95 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej cnCepes®e Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀves ÒeceeefCele kesÀuesu³ee 10 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHes#ee DeefOekeÀ 
lemes®e ueIeg-GÐeesieebvee (Micro Credit) nesCeeN³ee 
keÀpe&HegjJeþîee®es ÒeceeCener 8.47 ìkeÌkesÀ (Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ ÒeceeefCele 7.5 ìkeÌkesÀ) jeKeC³eele DeeHeueer 
yeBkeÀ ³eMemJeer Peeueer.
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	  cee³e¬eÀesHeÀe³eveevmed:
   DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves vesnsceer®e meceepeeleerue DeeefLe&keÀ¢<ìîee 

ogye&ue IeìkeÀeb®³ee DeeefLe&keÀ iejpee efveJeejC³eemeeþer 
mene³³e kesÀues. DenJeeueJe<eeaner DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 
meJe&meceeJesMekeÀ yeBefkebÀie®es (Financial Inclusion) 
GÎerä ieeþle ceefnuee mJe³ebye®ele ieìeb®³ee GVeleermeeþer 
DeLe&mene³³e kesÀues.

   ³eeefMeJee³e, DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efmebOegogie& Je jlveeefiejer 
³ee efpeu¿eebceO³es jeyeefJeuesu³ee `cee³e¬eÀes-HeÀe³eveevmed 
keÌueerve ueesve mkeÀerce®³ee' GlmeenJeOe&keÀ Òeeflemeeoeveblej 
cenejeä^eleerue meJe& MeeKeebceOetve ner ³eespevee 
jeyeefJeC³eele ³esle Deens. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 
ceO³es ³ee ³eespevesDebleie&le 1,212 keÀpe&Keel³eebceOetve 
`3.53 keÀesìer efJelejerle keÀjC³eele Deeues. lej ieleJe<eea 
³ee ³eespevesDebleie&le 222 keÀpe&Keeleer GIe[C³eele Deeueer 
nesleer Je `55 ueeKe efJelejerle keÀjC³eele Deeues nesles.

   cee³e¬eÀesHeÀe³eveevmed®³ee ceeO³eceeletve DeefOekeÀeefOekeÀ 
keÀpe&J³eJemee³e efceUefJeC³ee®³ee GÎeräeves DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves peevesJeejer, 2019 ceO³es `ceefnuee DeeefLe&keÀ 
efJekeÀeme ceneceb[U (MAVIM)' ³ee mebmLesyejesyej 
keÀjej kesÀuee. ³ee mebmLes®³ee ceeO³eceeletve kesÀJeU oesve®e 
ceefnv³eele 266 keÀpe&Keel³eebceOetve `3.86  keÀesìeR®eer 
keÀpex efJelejerle keÀjC³eele Deeueer. lemes®e 686 
ye®eleKeeleerner GIe[C³eele Deeueer.

	  efkeÀjkeÀesU þsJeer:
   DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀle SketÀCe 98,639 veJeerve 

keÀemee Keeleer GIe[C³eele Deeueer. ³eeceO³es 88,571 
ye®ele Keeleer lej 10,068 ®eeuet Keel³eeb®ee  
meceeJesMe Deens.

	  ÒeOeeveceb$eer DeeJeeme ³eespevee:
   keWÀê mejkeÀej®³ee `ÒeOeeveceb$eer DeeJeeme ³eespeves' 

Debleie&le DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es  
SketÀCe 474 Depe& DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀkeÀ[s Deeues. l³eeHewkeÀer 
401 Depe& ve@Meveue neTefmebie yeBkesÀves DenJeeueJe<eea 
cebpetj kesÀues Je GJe&efjle 73 Depe& veJeerve DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le 
(2019-20) cebpetj Peeues.

	  efJecee ³eespevee:
   DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es yeBkesÀves Flej 

DeemLeeHeveeb®³ee efJecee J³eJemee³eeletve `96.96 
keÀesìeR®ee efJecee nHlee pecee kesÀuee Je SketÀCe `11.74 
keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe efceUefJeues.

	  ÒeOeeveceb$eer efJecee ³eespevee:
   DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Flej efJecee kebÀHev³eeb®³ee menkeÀe³ee&ves 

`ÒeOeeveceb$eer peerJeve p³eesleer efJecee ³eespevee' Je 
`ÒeOeeveceb$eer megj#ee efJecee ³eespevee' ûeenkeÀebkeÀjerlee 
GHeueyOe kesÀuesu³ee Deensle. ³ee efJecee ³eespeveebleie&le 
DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves `4 ueeKeeb®es GlHeVe DenJeeueJe<eea 
efceUefJeues.

	  c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[:
   DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ S®e[erSHeÀmeer, SueDee³emeer, Sue De@C[ ìer 

DeeefCe efjuee³evmed efveHHee@ve ³ee ®eej c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[eb®³ee 
³eespeveeb®es efJeHeCeve keÀjles. DenJeeueJe<eea yeBkesÀves SketÀCe 
`71 keÀesìeR®ee c³eg®³egDeue HebÀ[ J³eJemee³e kesÀuee Je 
`1.13 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe efceUefJeues.

	  ef[ce@ì:
   SveSme[erSue (NSDL) Je meer[erSmeSue (CDSL) ³ee 

oesvner mebmLeebMeer ef[ce@ì J³eJenejebkeÀjerlee DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ 
mebueive Deens. DenJeeueJe<eea 4,400 veJeerve ef[ce@ì 
Keeleer GIe[C³eele Deeueer. yeBkesÀves ASBAÜejs 133 
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YeeieefJe¬eÀer®es (IPO) lej 22 jesKesefJe¬eÀer®es (Debt) 
J³eJenej neleeUues. SketÀCe 36,000 YeeieefJe¬eÀer®es 
Depe& neleeUC³eele Deeues. ef[ce@ì J³eJenejebletve SketÀCe 
`3.23 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe DenJeeueJe<eea efceUeues. ³eeHewkeÀer 
`77.43 ueeKeeb®es GlHeVe ces. jsefueiesDej meskeÌ³egefjìerped 
efueefceìs[Üejs GHeueyOe kesÀuesu³ee Dee@veueeF&ve ye´esefkebÀie 
megefJeOesÜejs efceUeues.

	  ¬esÀef[ì keÀe[&:
   yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer Je<ee&le ¬esÀef[ì keÀe[& efJeleefjle 

keÀjC³ee®eer HejJeeveieer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme efceUeueer.  
ve@Meveue HesceWì keÀe@HeexjsMeve Dee@HeÀ Fbef[³ee (NPCI)®³ee 
menkeÀe³ee&ves DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ©Hes Hue@efìvece ¬esÀef[ì 
keÀe[& efJeleefjle keÀjles. efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer 
mebHeuesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 11,000 
¬esÀef[ì keÀe[x efJeleefjle kesÀueer Je ³ee J³eJemee³eeletve 
`1.99 keÀesìeR®es GlHeVe efceUefJeues.

(ii) IeeTkeÀ yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³e:
 IeeTkeÀ yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³e ne ÒeecegK³eeves ceesþîee MenjebceO³es 

(Metro City) neslees. Hejbleg, vee@ve-cesì^es MenjebceOeerue 
J³eJemee³eeJejner ue#e keWÀêerle keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves DenJeeueJe<eea IeeTkeÀ yeBefkebÀie J³eJemee³ee®es cesì^es 
meWìj Je vee@ve-cesì^es meWìj Demes oesve efJeYeeie kesÀues. ³eecegUs  
vee@ve-cesì^es MenjebceOegvener DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves veJeerve 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpee¥®ee J³eJemee³e efceUefJeuee.

 efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 DeKesjerme DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®eer SketÀCe 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex ner 2.06 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{tve ieleJe<eea®³ee 
`14,469.37 keÀesìeRJeªve `14,768.06 keÀesìeRJej 
Heesnes®eueer. yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe keÀpe&J³eJemee³ee®³ee leguevesle efo. 
31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCe ns 
57.25 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Deens.

` 14,768.06 keÀesìer
SketÀCe J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ keÀpex

(iii) efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³e:
 DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee ûeenkeÀebMeer keÀjC³eele 

Deeuesuee efJeosMe efJeefvece³e J³eJemee³e `30,066.48 keÀesìer 
FlekeÀe Peeuee. ieleJe<eea ne J³eJemee³e `23,888.64 
keÀesìer FlekeÀe neslee. ³eeceO³es 25.86 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®eer Je=×er 
Peeueer. efo. 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer efve³ee&leermeeþer efouesueer 
keÀpex ner `1,366.69 keÀesìer FlekeÀer nesleer. DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ 
peieeleerue veT cenÊJee®³ee efJeosMeer ®eueveebceO³es J³eJenej 
keÀjles. lemes®e HejosMe ÒeJeemeekeÀjerlee efJeosMeer ®eueve Je 
ì^@Jnue keÀe[&ner efJeleefjle keÀjles. keÀener menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebmeesyele 
keÀjej keÀ©ve l³eebveener DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efJeosMe efJeefvece³e 
mesJee GHeueyOe keÀ©ve efouesueer Deens.

(iv) keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeie:
 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es jesKes yeepeejele KetHe®e 

Deefveef½elelee efometve Deeueer. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&®³ee Heefnu³ee 
meneceenerle ceneieeF&ojeleerue ®e{-Gleej Je l³eekeÀjerlee 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀves HeleOeesjCeele keÀ[keÀ HeeJeues 
G®eueu³eeves J³eepeoj ®e{s jeefnues. peeieeflekeÀ HeefjefmLeleerner 
³ee keÀeUele Yeejleer³e jesKes yeepeejemeeþer Hees<ekeÀ veJnleer. 
ogmeN³ee meneceenerle keÀener keÀeUekeÀjerlee J³eepeojeble 
vejceeF& efometve Deeueer. Hejbleg peeieeflekeÀ DeLe&J³eJemLesJej 
Deeuesues ceUYe lemes®e Yeejleer³e meercesJej Ie[uesu³ee ue<keÀjer 
Ie[ecees[eRcegUs J³eepeoj Hegvne oyeeJeeKeeueer Deeues. ³ee 
meJe& Heeée&YetceerJej DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀes<eeieej efJeYeeieeves 
iegbleJeCegkeÀerletve veHeÀe efceUefJeC³ee®es Je `jesKe jeKeerJelee 
ÒeceeCe' (CRR) Je `JewOeeefvekeÀ lejuelee ÒeceeCe' (SLR) 
jeKeC³ee®eer peyeeyeoejer Heej He[ueer.
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4. DeveglHeeefole keÀpex

 ceeieerue keÀener Je<ex meeJe&peefvekeÀ #es$eeleerue yeBkeÀeb®³ee DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥ceO³es ue#eCeer³e Jee{ Peeuesueer efometve Deeueer. DeveglHeeefole 
keÀpee¥Jejerue lejlegoerHeesìer ³ee yeBkeÀeb®³ee Yeeb[Jeueelener Ieì 
Peeueer. DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es Mes[îegu[d J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ 
yeBkeÀeb®eer DeveglHeeefole keÀpex 9.3 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekeÀer nesleer. DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®³ee {esyeU DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥ceO³esner Jee{ nesTve l³ee®es 
ÒeceeCe 31 cee®e&, 2018®³ee 3.72 ìkeÌkeÌ³eeb®³ee leguevesle 31 
cee®e&, 2019 ceO³es 4.63 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ Peeues. lej efveJJeU 
DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®es ÒeceeCener 0.94 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJeªve 1.80 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebJej iesues. DenJeeueJe<eeaner DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueerle 
DeLekeÀ HeefjÞece IesC³eele Deeues. Hejbleg ceeueceÊeeb®eer efJe¬eÀer keÀjleevee 
³esCeeN³ee De[®eCeer, keÀe³eosMeerj yeeyeeR®eer Hetle&lee keÀjleevee 
ueeieCeeje JesU DeeefCe ve@Meveue kebÀHeveer uee@ efì̂y³egveue (National 

Company Law Tribunal) Keeueerue Insolvency & 

Bankruptcy Code (IBC) ceOeerue keÀesì&keÀppeebmeeþer 
ueeieCeeje JesU ³eecegUs DeveglHeeefole keÀpee¥®³ee Jemegueerle  
De[LeUs ³esleele Je Jemegueerme JesU ueeielees.

 efve<keÀeefmele (Write-off) keÀpee¥®eer Jemegueer:
 efve<keÀeefmele kesÀuesu³ee keÀpe&-Keel³eebceOetve DenJeeueJe<eea 

`1.04 keÀesìeR®³ee J³eepeemen SketÀCe `8.74 keÀesìeR®eer 
Jemegueer keÀjC³eele Deeueer. Jemegueer®eer Del³eble keÀceer MekeÌ³elee 
Demeleeveener Òe³elveHetJe&keÀ ner Jemegueer keÀjC³eele DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ 
³eMemJeer þjueer. efve<keÀeefmele kesÀuesu³ee keÀpee¥®eer Jemegueer ner 
yeBkesÀ®³ee veHeÌ³eele Lesì Yej Ieeuele Demeles.

 Provision Coverage Ratio:

 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ÒeeseqJnpeve keÀJnjspe ÒeceeCe (Provision 

Coverage Ratio) ns 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer  
62 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHes#ee DeefOekeÀ jeKeues. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee 
efve³eceeble veceto kesÀu³eeHes#eener ns ÒeceeCe DeefOekeÀ Deens.

5. ef[efpeìue yeBefkebÀie efJeYeeie

 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Del³eeOegefvekeÀ yeBefkebÀie mesJee ûeenkeÀebvee 
Òeoeve keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee DeeOegefvekeÀ leb$e%eevee®es cenÊJe keÀener 
Je<ee¥HetJeea®e peeCeues nesles. ³eekeÀjerlee mJeleb$e DeMee ef[efpeìue 
yeBefkebÀie efJeYeeiee®eer mLeeHeveener keÀjC³eele Deeuesueer Deens. 
meO³ee DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee 30 ntve DeefOekeÀ mesJee ³ee ef[efpeìue 
mJe©Heele GHeueyOe Deensle. lemes®e SketÀCe J³eJenejeb®³ee  
72 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebntve DeefOekeÀ J³eJenej ns ef[efpeìue ceeO³eceeletve 
nesle Deensle.

ef[efpeìue J³eJenej 72%

 DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ‘WhatsApp yeBefkebÀie' 
megefJeOee ®eeuet kesÀueer. WhatsApp Üejs yeBefkebÀie megefJeOee 
osCeejer menkeÀejer #es$eeleueer DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ner Heefnueer 
yeBkeÀ Deens. ³ee megefJeOesÜejs ûeenkeÀ DeeHeu³ee Keel³eeleerue 
jkeÌkeÀce leHeemeCes, MesJeì®es Hee®e J³eJenej leHeemeCes, lemes®e  
yeBkesÀ® ³ee efJeefJeOe mesJee Je ³eespeveeb®eer ceeefnleer efceUJet MekeÀlees. 
³eeefMeJee³e `yeBkeÀ Dee@ve ì@ye' megefJeOeener DenJeeueJe<eea ®eeuet 
kesÀueer iesueer. ³ee megefJeOesÜejs ûeenkeÀ yeBkesÀle Keeles GIe[t 
MekeÀlees. `meejmJele yeBkeÀ 100' ner megefJeOeener yeBkesÀ®³ee 
100J³ee Je<ee&®es Deewef®el³e meeOetve ®eeuet keÀjC³eele Deeueer. 
ns SkeÀ yengYeeef<ekeÀ ceesyeeF&ue De@He Demetve `DeeOeej' keÀe[&®³ee 
meene³³eeves ûeenkeÀ ³ee De@HeJeªve yeBkesÀle Dee@veueeF&ve Keeles 
GIe[t MekeÀleele. ûeenkeÀebvee l³eeb®³ee Hemebleer®ee Keeles 
¬eÀceebkeÀ efveJe[C³ee®eer mees³ener ³ee megefJeOesle GHeueyOe Deens.

 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves mene 
veJeerve SìerSce keWÀês megª kesÀueer Je Deelee SketÀCe SìerSce®eer 
mebK³ee 266 Deens. l³ee®eÒeceeCes efJeefJeOe efþkeÀeCeer  
F-uee@yeerpedner (e-Lobbies) megª keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee.
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 yeBkesÀ®³ee ueeskeÀefÒe³e ̀ iees-cees' (GoMo) ³ee ceesyeeF&ue De@He®eer 
veeWoCeer DenJeeueJe<eea ieleJe<eeaHes#ee 29 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer. 
lej Fbìjvesì yeBefkebÀiemeeþer ̀ Jeve Hespe' megefJeOes®eer veeWoCeer 15 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer. ³egefveHeÀeF&[ HesceWì FbìjHesÀme (UPI) 
mesJes®eer veeWoCeer ieleJe<eeaHes#ee 182 ìkeÌkeÌ³eebveer Jee{ueer.

 Jejerue ef[efpeìue megefJeOeebJ³eefleefjkeÌle DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves efcem[d 
keÀe@ue Je SmeSceSme megefJeOee, Sced HeemeyegkeÀ, Yeejle efyeue 
HesceWì (BBPS), meejmJele eqkeÌJekeÀ Hes Dee@veueeF&ve megefJeOee 
(MeeUe Je kebÀHev³eebkeÀjerlee), Hee@me (Point of Sale - 

POS) megefJeOee, DeeOeej me#ece Yegieleeve ÒeCeeueer (AEPS), 
meejmJele yeBkeÀ keÀveskeÌì, Yeejle keÌ³etDeej (QR), HesceWì iesìJes 
Fl³eeoer ef[efpeìue megefJeOee GHeueyOe keÀ©ve efouesu³ee Deensle.

6. keÀmìcej efjuesMevmed De@C[ SkeÌmeefHeefjDevmed efJeYeeie
 ne efJeYeeie ûeenkeÀebMeer efJeefJeOe ceeO³eceeletve mebJeeo meeOetve 

l³eeb®³ee le¬eÀejer Je met®eveeb®eer oKeue Ieslees. ûeenkeÀeb®³ee 
Deeuesu³ee met®eveebÒeceeCes yeBkesÀ®³ee mesJee-megefJeOeebceO³es 
DeHesef#ele yeoue kesÀues peeleele. ³ee efJeYeeiee®³ee ceeO³eceeletve 
ûeenkeÀeb®³ee le¬eÀejeR®eer Je met®eveeb®eer oKeue 24 leeme 
Iesleueer peeles. l³ee®eÒeceeCes ³ee met®eveeb®es leHeMeerueJeej 
efJeMues<eCe keÀªve mesJee-megefJeOeebceOeerue $egìer DeesUKetve 
ûeenkeÀebvee efJenerle JesUsle l³eemebyebOeer®eer ceeefnleer HegjefJeC³eele 
³esles. ³ee J³eefleefjkeÌle Je<ee&leerue keÀener cenÊJee®³ee efoJeMeer 
cnCepes®e ceele=efove, He³ee&JejCe efove, veJeJe<e& efove Fl³eeoer 
Òemebieer ûeenkeÀebMeer mebJeeo meeOeC³eele ³eslees.

 DenJeeueJe<ee&le `keÀmìcej efjuesMevmed De@C[ SkeÌmeefHeefjDevmed 
efJeYeeieeves' ̀ ûeenkeÀ le¬eÀej efveJeejCe' ÒeCeeueer (Customer 

Redressal System) keÀe³e&jle kesÀueer. ³ee ÒeCeeueerÜejs 
ûeenkeÀeb®³ee le¬eÀejeR®es efveJeejCe keÀjC³eemeeþer SkeÀ ³eb$eCee 
(Portal) efJekeÀefmele keÀjC³eele Deeueer Demetve l³eeÜejs 
Òel³eskeÀ le¬eÀejeRmeeþer SkeÀ ¬eÀceebkeÀ efouee peelees Je l³ee®ee 

SmeSceSme mebyebefOele ûeenkeÀe®³ee yeBkesÀkeÀ[s veeWoCeerke=Àle 
Demeuesu³ee ceesyeeF&ue ¬eÀceebkeÀeJej HeeþefJeuee peelees. meoj 
le¬eÀejer®ee HeeþHegjeJee lemes®e HetCe& efvejekeÀejCe Peeu³eeJej 
ûeenkeÀeuee SmeSceSme HeeþefJeuee peelees. ûeenkeÀebÒeleer 
Demeuesues Deece®³ee yeBkesÀ®es mebyebOe DeefOekeÀ ¢{ keÀjC³eemeeþer 
ner ³eb$eCee GHe³egkeÌle þjsue, Demee Deecneuee efJeéeeme Deens.

7. De@[Jnìe&³eefPebie, Deuee³evmed De@C[ keÀe@Heexjsì 
keÀc³egefvekesÀMeve

 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefJeOe mesJee Je ³eespeveeb®eer peeefnjele 
ìsefueeqJnpeve, jsef[³ees, efmevescee, efÒebì efceef[³ee, 
DeeTì[esDej efceef[³ee Je meesMeue efceef[³eeJej Òemeeefjle 
keÀjC³eele ³esleele. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ÒeLece®e SkeÀe cejeþer 
efmevesceeceO³esner DeeHeu³ee efJeefJeOe ³eespeveeb®eer peeefnjele 
`Fve efmevescee' De@[Jnìe&³eefPebie®³ee ceeO³eceeletve ÒeoefMe&le 
kesÀueer. lemes®e ‘ABP ceePee' ³ee Jeeefnveer®³ee efJeefJeOe 
keÀe³e&¬eÀceebceOetvener yeBkesÀ®³ee ef[efpeìue mesJeeb®eer peeefnjele 
Òemeeefjle keÀjC³eele Deeueer.

 yeBkesÀ®³ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer Je<ee&®es efveefceÊe meeOetve veeefMekeÀ, 
Deewjbieeyeeo, Denceoeyeeo, cegbyeF& Je HegCes ³esLes yeBkesÀ®³ee 
peeefnjeleer-nesef[¥iped Je ef[efpeìue m¬eÀerveJej PeUkeÀu³ee. 
DeveskeÀ ne@ìsumed, pJesueme&d Je ieejceWìdmed J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀeb®³ee 
menkeÀe³ee&ves DeeHeu³ee ûeenkeÀebmeeþer meejmJele yeBkesÀ®³ee 
keÀe[&dmedJejner meJeueleer peenerj keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee.

 MelekeÀceneslmeJeer meesnUe:
 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee MelekeÀceneslmeJeer meesnUe SveSmemeerDee³e, 

JejUer, cegbyeF& ³esLes ceesþîee efoceeKeele mebHeVe Peeuee. 
³eeÒemebieer meeceeefpekeÀ Je jepekeÀer³e #es$eeleerue lemes®e efJeefJeOe 
efve³eecekeÀ ³eb$eCeeb®es DeveskeÀ ceev³eJej GHeefmLele nesles. Òeefme× 
ieeef³ekeÀe Þes³ee Iees<eeue ³eeb®³ee mebieerlee®³ee keÀe³e&¬eÀceeves ³ee 
meesnÈ³ee®eer meg©Jeele Peeueer. ³ee meesnÈ³eele `keÀeBì@keÌìuesme 
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keÀe[&dmed' DeeefCe `meejmJele yeBkeÀ 100' ³ee megefJeOeeb®es 
GodIeeìve keÀjC³eele Deeues.

8. yeBkesÀ®³ee cenÊJeekeÀeb#eer ³eespevee
 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®ee J³eJemee³e iesu³ee keÀener Je<ee¥le DeveskeÀHeìeRveer 

Jee{uee. ³ee Jee{CeeN³ee J³eJemee³eeyejesyej®e veJeveJeer 
DeeJneves GYeer jeefnueer. ³ee DeeJneveeb®ee ³eMemJeer meecevee 
keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee YeefJe<³eele DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀuee meJe& ³eb$eCee Je 
keÀe³e&He×leer DeefOekeÀ me#ece keÀjeJ³ee ueeieleerue. yeBefkebÀie #es$e 
ns DeefleMe³e Jesieeves yeouele Deens. ³ee Jesieeyejesyej jentve 
veJes yeoue Deelcemeele keÀjC³eemeeþer DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves leerve 
veJeerve ³eespevee (Projects) keÀe³ee&eqvJele keÀjC³ee®es neleer  
Iesleues Deens.

 ÒeespeskeÌìd G[eve:

 ³ee ³eespevesÜejs yeBkeÀ meO³ee JeeHejle Demeuesu³ee keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie 
ÒeCeeueerJeªve (CBS) veJeerve keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie ÒeCeeueerJej peeCeej 
Deens. yeBkesÀ®ee Jee{lee J³eJemee³e, yeBefkebÀie #es$eele meelel³eeves nesCeejs 
yeoue lemes®e veJeveJeerve ef[efpeìue megefJeOeeb®ee Go³e, ns meJe& meO³ee 
JeeHejele Demeuesu³ee keÀesDej yeBefkebÀie ÒeCeeueerle meceeefJeä Demeues 
lejer l³eeme keÀener ce³ee&oe Deensle. ³eecegUs®e YeefJe<³ee®ee efJe®eej 
keÀ©ve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves veJeerve ÒeCeeueerJej mLeueeblejerle nesC³ee®es  
þjefJeues Deens.

 yeepeejele GHeueyOe Demeuesu³ee meJeexÊece yeBefkebÀie ÒeCeeueeR®es 
DeJeueeskeÀve keÀ©ve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves ces. SpeJeJn& efmeefmìcmed 
efue. (ces. FvHeÀesefmemed efue.®eer GHekebÀHeveer) ³ee kebÀHeveer®eer  
`efHeÀve@keÀued' (Finacle) ner yeBefkebÀie ÒeCeeueer IesC³ee®es þjefJeues Deens.  

`efHeÀve@keÀued' ÒeCeeueer ner SkeÀ veeJeepeuesueer ÒeCeeueer Demetve 
DeveskeÀ ceesþîee meeJe&peefvekeÀ, Keepeieer Je menkeÀejer yeBkeÀebceO³es leer 
JeeHejueer peeles. ³ee ÒeCeeueerJej mLeueeblejerle Peeu³eeJej DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®es J³eJenej DeefOekeÀ JesieJeeve Je megjef#ele nesleerue.

 ÒeespeskeÌìd efve³eb$eCe:

 
 ³ee ÒeespeskeÌìd Debleie&le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves Debleie&le   

uesKeeHeefj#eCeeJeªve   (Internal Audit) peesKeerce 
efve³ebef$ele Debleie&le  uesKeeHeefj#eCe (Risk-based 
Internal Audit) keÀjC³ee®es þjefJeues Deens. Mes[îegu[d 
J³eeJemeeef³ekeÀ yeBkeÀebmeeþer ns uesKeeHeefj#eCe Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& 
yeBkesÀ®³ee efve³eceebvegmeej DeefveJee³e& Deens. veeiejer menkeÀejer 
yeBkeÀebmeeþer ns uesKeeHeefj#eCe mekeÌleer®es vemeues lejerner DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves ns uesKeeHeefj#eCe keÀjC³ee®es þjefJeues Deens.

 yeBkesÀ®³ee efJeefJeOe keÀe³e&He×leer, l³eeceOeerue peesKeceer, IS 
uesKeeHeefj#eCe Je efve³eecekeÀ mebmLeeb®³ee efve³eceeb®es Heeueve 
Fl³eeoer meJe& yeeyeeR®es uesKeeHeefj#eCe `ÒeespeskeÌì efve³eb$eCe' 
Debleie&le keÀjC³eele ³esF&ue.

 ÒeespeskeÌìd meleke&À:

 

yeBkeÀ leb$e%eeveele pemepeMeer Òeieleer keÀjerle Deens l³ee®eÒeceeCes 
meJe& leb$e%eeveÒeCeeueer ³ee megjef#ele þsJeC³ee®eer / ®eeueefJeC³ee®eer 
peyeeyeoejerner Jee{le Deens. meO³ee®³ee keÀeUele yeBefkebÀie 
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ÒeCeeueeRJej mee³eyej nuues (Cyber Attacks) nesle 
Deensle. ³ee mee³eyej nuu³eebHeemetve DeeHeueer ÒeCeeueer 
megjef#ele þsJeC³eekeÀjerlee yeBkesÀMeer mebyebefOele meJe& ûeenkeÀebvee 
lemes®e ner ÒeCeeueer JeeHejCeeN³eebvee l³eeyeeyeleerle peeie©keÀ 
kesÀues Heeefnpes. ³eekeÀjerlee DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves `ÒeespeskeÌìd meleke&À'  
meg© kesÀues Deens.

 ³ee ÒeespeskeÌìd Debleie&le yeBkesÀ®es G®®eeefOekeÀejer Je keÀce&®eeN³eebvee 
yeBkesÀ®eer mee³eyej megj#ee, yeBkesÀ®³ee ceeefnleer®eer (Data) 
megjef#elelee lemes®e yeBkesÀleerue meJe& leb$e%eeve ÒeCeeueeRyeÎue 
DeJeiele keÀjC³eele Deeues. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves leb$e%eeve 
ÒeCeeueeR®³ee megj#eskeÀjerlee `FvHeÀcexMeve meskeÌ³egefjìer ûegHe' 
efvecee&Ce kesÀuee Deens Je ³ee ûegHe®³ee ÒecegKeHeoer cegK³e 

ceeefnleer megj#ee DeefOekeÀeN³ee®eer (Chief Information 

Security Of�cer) vesceCetkeÀ kesÀuesueer Deens.

9. Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee
 yeBkesÀ®es Yeeb[Jeue He³ee&Hlelee ÒeceeCe 31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer 

13.16 ìkeÌkesÀ FlekesÀ jeefnues.

10. veHeÀe-efJelejCe
 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2018-19 ceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee efveJJeU 

veHeÌ³eeceOetve KeeueerueÒeceeCes lejleto keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ueves kesÀuesueer Deens:

lekeÌlee ¬eÀ. 1         (` ueeKeeble)

2018-19 2017-18
jeKeerJe efveOeer (25%) 7,282.13 6,016.88
DeekeÀefmcekeÀlee efveOeer (10%) 2,912.85 2,406.75
Mew#eefCekeÀ efveOeer (1%) 291.29 240.68
ÒemleeefJele ueeYeebMe 10.50%  (ÒesHeÀjvme meceYeeie) 571.67 571.67
He´mleeefJele ueeYeebMe 17.50% (FeqkeÌJeìer meceYeeie) 3,370.31 2,972.70
keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer meevegie´n Devegoeve 17.50% 3,630.00 3,524.00
meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 100.00 100.00
keÀce&®eejer keÀu³eeCe efveOeer 10.00 1,335.00
meeJe&peefvekeÀ, Oecee&oe³e Je menkeÀejer keÀe³ee&meeþer efveOeer (1%) 291.29 240.68
iegbleJeCetkeÀefJe<e³ekeÀ peesKeerce efveOeer 2,200.00 4,000.00
efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeer 2,200.00 1,700.00
meJe&meeOeejCe jeKeerJe efveOeer 6,250.00 956.21
Heg{erue Je<ee&keÀjerlee efMeuuekeÀ 117.54 98.56
SketÀCe 29,227.08 24,163.13
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17.50% FeqkeÌJeìer  
meceYeeie ueeYeebMe
31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer mebHeuesu³ee Je<ee&keÀjerlee FeqkeÌJeìer 
YeeieOeejkeÀebvee 17.50 ìkeÌkesÀ ueeYeebMe osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

ÒesHeÀjvme meceYeeie ueeYeebMe:
31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer mebHeuesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&keÀjerlee 
ÒesHeÀjvme YeeieOeejkeÀebvee 10.50 ìkeÌkesÀ ueeYeebMe osC³ee®eer 
efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer:
meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeerkeÀjerlee `100.00 ueeKe Jeie& 
keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens. ne efveOeer 
pecesme Oeªve SketÀCe meYeemeo keÀu³eeCe efveOeer `1,273.50 
ueeKe FlekeÀe Demesue. DenJeeueJe<eea SketÀCe 948 meYeemeoebveer 
JewÐekeÀer³e ceoleer®ee ueeYe Iesleuee lemes®e meYeemeoeb®³ee 29 
iegCeJeble Heeu³eebvee Heeefjleesef<ekesÀ osTve ieewjefJeC³eele Deeues.

17.50% keÀce&®eeN³eebmeeþer 
meevegûen Devegoeve
31 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer mebHeuesu³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&keÀjerlee yeBkesÀ®³ee 
keÀce&®eeN³eebvee 17.50 ìkeÌkesÀ meevegûen Devegoeve osC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U keÀjerle Deens.

meeJe&peefvekeÀ Oecee&oe³e DeeefCe menkeÀej #es$ee®³ee keÀe³ee&meeþer 
efveOeer:
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee HeefjHe$ekeÀ ¬eÀ. UBD/(PCB)/

BPD/Cir./43 efo. 11 SefÒeue, 2005 vegmeej HejJeeveieer 
efou³eeÒeceeCes meeceeefpekeÀ Je Oecee&oe³e keÀe³ee&keÀjerlee `291.29 
ueeKe FlekeÀer lejleto keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
keÀjerle Deens.

efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeer:
ÒeeeqHlekeÀj Keel³ee®³ee lejlegoervegmeej efJeMes<e jeKeerJe efveOeerle 
`2,200 ueeKe Jeie& keÀjC³ee®eer efMeHeÀejme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
keÀjerle Deensle.

11. yeBkesÀ®³ee GHeefJeOeerceO³es meg®eefJeuesu³ee og©ml³ee
 ³ee DeeefLe&keÀ Je<ee&le yeBkesÀ®³ee GHeefJeOeerceO³es Keeueerue 

og©ml³ee meg®eefJeC³eele ³esle Deensle.

i) GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6 (F&):
 `mJe ³eb ye®ele ieì (Self Help Group)' Je  

`meb ³egÊeÀ keÀpe&oej ieì (Joint Liability 

Group)'  ³ee oesvner mebmLeebceO es DeeefLe&keÀ¢äîee 
ogye&ue IeìkeÀebleerue J ³eÊeÀeR®ee meceeJesMe Demelees. 
yengleebMe JesUe  ³ee J ³eÊeÀer SkeÀceskeÀeb® ³ee keÀpee¥mee"er 
SkeÀceskeÀebme nceeroej Demeleele. meeJe&peefvekeÀ Je 
Keepeieer #es$eebleerue yeBkeÀebceO ³es  ³ee mebmLeebvee keÀpex 
osleevee efkebÀJee nceer Iesleevee yeBkesÀ®ee meYeemeo nesC ³ee®eer  
DeeJeM ³ekeÀlee vemeles. Deeheu ³ee yeBkesÀmener mheOee&lcekeÀlee  
efìkeÀefJeC ³eemee"er `mJe ³eb ye®ele ieì' Je `meb ³egÊeÀ 
keÀpe&oej ieì'  ³ee mebmLeeb®³ee meom ³eebvee keÀpex 
efJeleefjle keÀjleevee Je nceeroej cnCetve mJeerkeÀejleevee  
meYeemeolJee®eer Deì efMeefLeue keÀjC ³ee®eer og©mleer 
GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6 (F&) Üejs meg®eefJeC ³eele ³ esle Deens. 

ii) GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6 yeer:
 `mJe ³ eb ye®ele ieì (Self Help Group)' Je  

`meb ³egÊeÀ keÀpe&oej ieì (Joint Liability Group)' 
 ³ ee oesvner ÒekeÀej® ³ee mebmLeebkeÀ[tve Deeheu ³ee yeBkesÀme 
keÀpee¥yeeyele efJe®eejCee nesle Demeles. Deeheu ³ee yeBkesÀ® ee 
GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6 yeer ceO ³ es ̀ mJe ³ eb ye®ele ieì' Je ̀ meb³ egÊeÀ 
keÀpe&oej ieì'  ³ ee mebmLeebvee meYeemeolJe osC ³eeyeeyele 
GuuesKe vemeu ³ eecegUs Je efve ³ eceevegmeej l ³ eebvee keÀpe& 
efJeleefjle keÀjleevee yeBkesÀ®es meYeemeo yeveefJeCes iejpes®es 
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Deens,  ³ eekeÀjerlee GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6 yeer ceO ³ es ner og©mleer 
meg®eefJeC ³ eele  ³ esle Deens. 

iii) GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 16:
 GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 16 vegmeej yeBkesÀ®³ee meYeemeoeme 

yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe YeeieYeeb[JeueeHewkeÀer Òel³eskeÀer SkeÀ 
Heb®eceebMeentve DeefOekeÀ YeeieYeeb[Jeue leey³eele þsJelee 
³esle veener. Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkeÀ / keWÀêer³e menkeÀejer 
efveyebOekeÀ ³eeb®³ee efve³eceebvegmeej meYeemeoeves Iesleuesu³ee 
keÀpee&®³ee ÒeceeCeele keÀceeue YeeieYeeb[Jeue efJelejerle 
keÀjC³eemebyebOeer®eer ce³ee&oe (Jejerue ce³ee&os®³ee DeOeerve 
jentve) meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U þjJet MekeÀles.

 Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee jep³e mejkeÀejebvee 
keÀe{uesu³ee HeefjHe$ekeÀevegmeej menkeÀejer yeBkesÀ®³ee 
meYeemeoeme yeBkesÀ®³ee SketÀCe YeeieYeeb[Jeuee®³ee Hee®e 
ìkeÌkeÌ³eebHes#ee DeefOekeÀ YeeieYeeb[Jeue leey³eele þsJelee 
³esCeej veener DeMeer jep³e menkeÀej keÀe³eÐeele og©mleer 
keÀjC³ee®es DeeosMe osC³eele Deeues Deensle. Yeejleer³e 
efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ³ee efve³ecee®es Heeueve keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee 
`SkeÀ Heb®eceebMeentve DeefOekeÀ YeeieYeeb[Jeuee®³ee' 
SsJepeer `Hee®e ìkeÌkeÌ³eebntve DeefOekeÀ YeeieYeeb[Jeue' 
DeMeer og©mleer GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 16 ceO³es meg®eefJeC³eele 
³esle Deens.

iv) GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 34:
 GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 34 vegmeej `mJe³ eb ye®ele ieìebvee 

(Self Help Group)' menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀe®³ee 
efJeMes<e hejJeeveieerves keÀpex efJelejerle keÀjC ³eele 
³ esleele. Deeheu ³ee yeBkesÀmener mJe ³eb ye®ele ieìebkeÀ[tve 
keÀpee&mebyebOeer®eer efJe®eejCee nesle Demeles. ³ ee mebmLeebvee 
ÒemleeefJele megOeejerle GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 6 yeer vegmeej 
DeeheCe yeBkesÀ®es meYeemeo cnCetve veeWoefJeCeej Deenesle. 
³ eecegUs yeBkesÀ® ³ee GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 34 (yeer) ceOetve  

`mJe³ eb ye®ele ieì (Self Help Group)' ns Meyo  
JeieUC ³ee®eer Je GheefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 34 (meer)®ee Deveg¬eÀceebkeÀ 
yeoueC ³ee®eer og©mleer meg®eefJeC ³eele ³ esle Deens.

v) GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 (S):
 ÒemleeefJele GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 (S) vegmeej p³ee 

meYeemeoeme meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer efveJe[CetkeÀ 
ue{Jee³e®eer Demesue, l³eeme efkeÀceeve yeeje ceefnves yeBkesÀ®ee 
meYeemeo DemeCes lemes®e efkeÀceeve `50,000/-
®eer þsJe yeBkesÀ®³ee ye®ele/®eeuet/cegole Keel³eele 
efveJe[CegkeÀermeeþer veeceebkeÀve oeKeue keÀjC³eeHetJeea 
efkeÀceeve yeeje ceefnves meueie DemeCes, meoj meYeemeo 
yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee meom³e DemesHe³e¥le 
yebOevekeÀejkeÀ Deens.

 GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 veblej GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 (S)®es 
ÒeeJeOeeve keÀjC³eele ³esF&ue.

vi) GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 (yeer):
 yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer efveJe[CetkeÀ ue{efJeCeeN³ee 

meYeemeoeme `25,000/-®eer Deveecele jkeÌkeÀce 
(Security Deposit) efveJe[CegkeÀermeeþer veeceebkeÀve 
oeKeue keÀjleevee pecee keÀjCes yebOevekeÀejkeÀ Deens. 
Deveecele jkeÀcesmeboYee&leerue efve³ece ns 55 (yeer) ³ee 
ÒemleeefJele GHeefJeOeerle veceto kesÀuesues Deensle.

 GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 (S) veblej GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 (yeer)®es 
ÒeeJeOeeve keÀjC³eele ³esF&ue.

vii) GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 59:
 GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 59 vegmeej yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee 

keÀe³e&keÀeU ne meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer efveJe[CetkeÀ 
Peeu³eeHeemetve leerve Je<ex DeLeJee keWÀêer³e keÀe³eÐeeleerue 
efve³eceebvegmeej þjlees.
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 GHeefJeOeerleerue `leerve Je<ee¥®ee keÀe³e&keÀeU' ns Meyo 
yeouetve `Hee®e Je<ee¥®ee keÀe³e&keÀeU' ns Meyo meceeefJeä 
keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee GHeefJeOeerceO³es og©mleer meg®eefJeC³eele ³esle 
Deens. ceefuì-mìsì keÀes-Dee@HejsefìJn meesmee³eìerped De@keÌì, 
2002®³ee keÀuece 45 (5) ceO³es veceto kesÀu³eeÒeceeCes ne 
yeoue keÀjC³eele ³esle Deens.

  Jejerue meJe& GHeefJeOeer og©ml³eeb®ee cepeketÀj Jeeef<e&keÀ 
meJe&meeOeejCe meYesle meYeemeoebvee osC³eele ³esF&ue.

12. DeeoMe& meYeemeo
 DenJeeueJe<eea `ces. efkeÀMeesj 

HebHmed Òee. efue.`®es DeO³e#e  
Je keÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeuekeÀ,  
Þeer. efkeÀMeesj osmeeF& ³eebvee 
`DeeoMe& meYeemeo' HegjmkeÀej 
osTve ieewjefJeC³eele Deeues.  
Þeer. efkeÀMeesj osmeeF& ³eebveer  

keÀe@uespe Dee@HeÀ Fbefpeveer³ejeRie, HegCes ³esLetve Fbefpeveer³ejeRie®eer 
HeoJeer ÒeeHle kesÀueer. `Fbef[³eve Fefvmììîetì Dee@HeÀ mee³evmed, 
yeWieUgª' ³esLetve les Fbefpeveer³ejeRie®es efÜHeoJeerOej Peeues. 
efMe#eCe HetCe& Peeu³eeJej l³eeb®³ee Jeef[ueebveer, Þeer. veeje³eCe 
vejefmebn osmeeF¥veer mLeeHeve kesÀuesu³ee ces. efkeÀMeesj HebHmed Òee. 
efue. ³ee kebÀHeveerle les ©pet Peeues. Jeef[ueebveer meg© kesÀuesuee 
J³eJemee³e l³eebveer l³eeb®³ee cesnveleerves Je ngMeejerves Jee{efJeuee. 
HebHmed®³ee efveefce&leerceO³es ces. efkeÀMeesj HebHmed Òee. efue. ns SkeÀ 
Deûesmej veeJe Deens. Yeejleele lemes®e efJeosMeelener peJeUHeeme 
60 osMeebceO³es l³eeb®³ee kebÀHeveerle efvecee&Ce Peeuesues HebHmed 
efve³ee&le nesleele. Þeer. efkeÀMeesj osmeeF& ³eeb®³ee vesle=lJeeKeeueer 
ces. efkeÀMeesj HebHmed Òee. efue.ves osMe-efJeosMeeleerue DeveskeÀ 
HegjmkeÀej ÒeeHle kesÀues Deensle. mJele: Þeer. efkeÀMeesj osmeeF& ns 
osMe-efJeosMeeleerue DeveskeÀ mebmLeebceO³es efJeefJeOe ceeveo Heos 

Yet<eefJele Deensle. ces. efkeÀMeesj HebHmed Òee. efue. ner kebÀHeveer 
meejmJele yeBkesÀ®eer iesueer Hee®e oMekeÀebntve DeefOekeÀ keÀeU 
ûeenkeÀ Deens.

13. yeBkesÀuee efceUeuesues HegjmkeÀej
 DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme Keeueerue HegjmkeÀejebveer 

mevceeefvele keÀjC³eele Deeues.

	   Fbef[³eve yeBkeÌme DemeesefmeSMeveleHexÀ DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme 
meueie eflemeN³ee Je<eea menkeÀejer yeBefkebÀie #es$eeleerue 
meJeexlke=Àä `ìskeÌvee@uee@peer yeBkeÀ Dee@HeÀ o F³ej' ne 
HegjmkeÀej efceUeuee.

	   ì^evme³egefve³eve efmeefyeueleHexÀ ‘Best Data Quality 

on Consumer Bureau’ ne DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 
2018-19 meeþer®ee HegjmkeÀej DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀme Òeoeve 
keÀjC³eele Deeuee.

14. meeceeefpekeÀ yeebefOeuekeÀer®es GHe¬eÀce
 iesueer DeveskeÀ Je<ex DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ meeceeefpekeÀ GHe¬eÀceebvee ceole 

keÀjles. DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves `kegÀ[eUosMemLe ieew[ 
ye´eïeCe efJeÐeeJÙãOo¾r meceepe' ³ee mebmLesme `25 ueeKeeb®eer 
DeeefLe&keÀ ceole kesÀueer. ner mebmLee DeeefLe&keÀ¢<ìîee ogye&ue 
IeìkeÀeleerue iejpet efJeÐeeL³ee¥vee mene³³e keÀjles. DeveskeÀ 
iejpet Je ngMeej efJeÐeeL³ee¥vee l³eeb®³ee efMe#eCeemeeþer ³ee 
ì^mìleHexÀ YejerJe ceole kesÀueer peeles. efJeMes<ele: ûeeceerCe 
Yeeieebleerue efJeÐeeLeea Je le©Ceebvee mJele:®³ee Hee³eebJej GYes 
keÀjC³eemeeþer ³ee ì^mì®es Òe®eb[ ³eesieoeve Deens.

 ³ee J³eefleefjkeÌle Mew#eefCekeÀ, JewÐekeÀer³e Je meeceeefpekeÀ #es$eeble 
keÀe³e& keÀjCeeN³ee 268 mebmLeebvee SketÀCe `33.62 
ueeKeeb®³ee osCei³ee 8 cee®e&, 2019 jespeer $eÝCeevegyebOe 
meesnÈ³eele Òeoeve keÀjC³eele Deeu³ee.



S
TA

T
U

T
O

R
Y

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...

Jeeef<e&keÀ DenJeeue 2018-19 53

15. Flej Ie[ecees[er
	   yeBkesÀ®es ceepeer DeO³e#e kewÀ. SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj ³eeb®³ee 

mcejCeeLe& yeBkeÀ ÒeefleJe<eea `SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj mce=leer 
J³eeK³eeveceeues®es' Dee³eespeve keÀjles. 15 HesÀye´gJeejer 
2019 jespeer kewÀ. SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj ³eeb®³ee pevceefovee®es 
Deewef®el³e meeOetve Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee ceO³eJeleea 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®es meom³e DeeojCeer³e Þeer. meleerMe 
cejeþs ³eeb®es J³eeK³eeve Dee³eesefpele kesÀues nesles. `veeiejer 
menkeÀejer yeBkeÀeb®eer meÐeefmLeleer Je YeefJe<³ekeÀeU' ne 
l³eeb®³ee J³eeK³eevee®ee efJe<e³e neslee.

	   ̀ueeskeÀmeÊee SmeSceF& keÀe@vkeÌuesJn 2019' ³ee veeieHetj 
³esLes Dee³eesefpele kesÀuesu³ee Heefj<eos®es Òee³eespekeÀlJe DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀves kesÀues nesles. veeieHetj Je efJeoYee&leerue 350ntve DeefOekeÀ 
GÐeesieHeleeR®ee ³ee Heefj<eosle menYeeie neslee.

	   keÀesuneHetj ³esLes Peeuesu³ee `Fb[mì^er³eue De@C[ ceefMevejer 
SefkeÌPeefyeMeve 2018' ³ee ÒeoMe&veeceO³es DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves 
menYeeie Iesleuee neslee. DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ³ee ÒeoMe&vee®eer 
cegK³e Òee³eespekeÀ nesleer.

16. ì^mì®eer mLeeHevee
 DeeHeCeeme %eele Demesue®e keÀer, ieleJe<eea®³ee Jeeef<e&keÀ meJe&meeOeejCe 

meYesle YeeieOeejkeÀ, G®®eeefOekeÀejer, J³eJemLeeHekeÀer³e keÀce&®eejer, 
efyeiej J³eJemLeeHekeÀer³e keÀce&®eejer Je efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eejer ³eeb®³ee 
keÀu³eeCeekeÀjerlee Hee®e ì̂mì mLeeHeve keÀjC³ee®ee lemes®e ³ee 
ì̂mìkeÀjerlee yeBkesÀ®³ee Yeeie-Yeeb[Jeuee®³ee Òel³eskeÀer Hee®e ìkeÌkesÀ 
efveOeer meceYeeiee®³ee ©Heele osC³eele ³esF&ue, Demee þjeJe mebcele 
Peeuee neslee. DeeHeCeeme meebieC³eeme Deevebo nesle Deens keÀer, 
keWÀêer³e menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀe®eer ³ee Hee®ener ì̂mì®³ee mLeeHevesme 
cebpegjer efceUeuesueer Deens. ³eeveblej Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®eer cebpegjer 
efceUeu³eeveblej ns Hee®ener ì̂mì mLeeHeve keÀjC³eele ³esleerue.

17. meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee
 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®eer j®evee ceefuìmìsì 

keÀes-Dee@HejsefìJn meesmee³eìerpe  De@keÌì 2002 Je yeBkesÀ®³ee 
Heesìefve³eceevegmeej kesÀueer peeles. DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ 
ceb[Uele keÀe³e&keÀejer meb®eeuekeÀebJ³eefleefjkeÌle meesUe meb®eeuekeÀ 
Deensle. ³eeceO³es veeceJeble, Òeefleef<þle DeeefCe DeeefLe&keÀ/yeBkeÀeRie Je 
Flej #es$eeleerue DevegYeJeer Je le%e meb®eeuekeÀeb®ee meceeJesMe Deens.

 DenJeeueJe<eea DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee SketÀCe 
25 meYee Peeu³ee.

 meb®eeuekeÀebvee keÀpex:
 yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀesCel³eener meb®eeuekeÀeves DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀkeÀ[tve 

keÀesCel³eener ÒekeÀej®es keÀpe& Iesleuesues veener. ner DeeHeu³ee 
yeBkesÀ®eer iesu³ee DeveskeÀ Je<ee¥®eer mJeeieleen& Je efvekeÀesHe HejbHeje 
Deens. ³ee®es ÒeeJeOeeve DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee GHeefJeOeer ¬eÀ. 55 
DeeefCe 63(meer) ceO³es keÀjC³eele Deeues Deens.

18. meYeemeo
 31 cee®e&, 2019 DeKesjerme DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®es HeVeeme 

efkeÀbJee DeefOekeÀ meceYeeie DemeCeeN³ee meYeemeoeb®eer mebK³ee 
2,13,836 FlekeÀer Peeueer. lej veececee$e meYeemeoeb®eer 
mebK³ee 50,273 FlekeÀer Deens.

19. JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀe®eer efve³egkeÌleer
 DeeefLe&keÀ Je<e& 2019-20 keÀjerlee JewOeeefvekeÀ uesKeeHejer#ekeÀ 

cnCetve ces. peer. [er. DeeHeìs De@C[ kebÀHeveer, ®eeì&[& DekeÀeTbìbìdme, 
peer[erS neTme, Huee@ì veb. 85, jeF&ì Yegmeejer keÀe@ueveer, Heew[ 
jes[, HegCes - 411 038 ³eeb®eer vesceCetkeÀ keÀjC³eemeeþer ns 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U efMeHeÀejme keÀjerle Deens.
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20. peenerj efveJesove
 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀves yeBkesÀ®³ee þsJeeRJejerue efJec³ee®ee 31 cee®e&, 

2019 He³e¥le®ee efÒeefce³ece®ee nHlee ef[Hee@efPeì FvMegjvme De@C[ 
¬esÀ[erì ie@jbìer keÀe@HeexjsMevekeÀ[s pecee kesÀuesuee Deens DeeefCe meoj 
efÒeefce³eceHeesìer keÀesCeleerner jkeÌkeÀce osCes yeekeÀer veener.

21. ÞeOoebpeueer
 DenJeeueJe<ee&le DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee p³ee meYeemeoeb®es, 

keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es Je efveJe=Êe keÀce&®eeN³eeb®es og:Keo efveOeve Peeues, 
l³ee meJee¥Òeleer meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U Deeojebpeueer DeHe&Ce keÀjerle 
Deens. l³eeb®³ee kegÀìgbyeer³eeb®³ee og:Keele meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
menYeeieer Deens.

22. ke=Àle%elee
 meJe& meYeemeo Je Keelesoej ³eeb®es yeBkesÀuee ueeYele Demeuesues 

menkeÀe³e& Je meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[UeJej oMe&efJeuesuee efJeéeeme, 
³eeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U l³eeb®es meowJe $eÝCeer Deens. 
Yeejleer³e efjPeJn& yeBkesÀ®³ee keÀe³ee&ue³eeleerue DeefOekeÀejer Je 
keÀce&®eejer, keWÀêer³e menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀ - veJeer efouueer, 
menkeÀej Dee³egkeÌle Je menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀ keÀe³ee&ue³e,  
HegCes - ceneje<ì^ lemes®e Deeheues yeBkeÀme&, keÀe ³eosMeerj 
meuueeieej Je uesKeeheefj#ekeÀeb®es l³eebveer efouesu³ee ceeie&oMe&ve, 
Heeefþbyee Je menkeÀe³ee&yeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U $eÝCeer Deens. 

lemes®e ceO³eÒeosMe, keÀvee&ìkeÀ, ieesJee, efouueer Je iegpejele 
³ee jep³eebleerue menkeÀejer efveyebOekeÀeb®esner meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U 
DeeYeej ceeveerle Deensle.

 DeeHeu³ee yeBkesÀ®³ee meJe& keÀce&®eeN³eebveer yeBkesÀ®eer GÎer<ìs HetCe& 
keÀjC³eekeÀjerlee efve<þsves Je meceefHe&le YeeJevesves efouesu³ee 
³eesieoeveeyeÎue lemes®e ûeenkeÀebvee Glke=À<ì mesJee Òeoeve 
kesÀu³eeyeÎue meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U l³eeb®³ee Òeleer ke=Àle%elee J³ekeÌle 
keÀjerle Deensle.

 DeeHeueer yeBkeÀ ³esCeeN³ee keÀeUele GÊece Òeieleer keÀªve ³eMee®eer 
DeveskeÀ efMeKejs ieeþsue ns Deeéeemeve meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U meJe& 
meYeemeoebvee osT Fef®íles. ner GÎer<ìs ieeþC³eekeÀjerlee 
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[U DeefJejle Òe³elve keÀjsue.

yeBkesÀ®³ee meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®³ee Jeleerves
ieewlece SkeÀveeLe þeketÀj

DeO³e#e
 cegbyeF&, 28 petve, 2019

 leUìerHe:
meb®eeuekeÀ ceb[Ue®ee mebHetCe& DenJeeue FbûepeerceO³es meesyele 
efouee Deens. ne HeÀkeÌle iees<eJeeje Deens.
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To,
The Members,
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.,

Report on Financial Statements

1.	 We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements 
of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd, which comprises 
of Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 and Profit and 
Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2019 and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2.	 In our opinion, and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by 
the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Multi State 
Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and the rules made 
thereunder, the guidelines issued by National Bank 
for Rural and Agricultural Development (NABARD) 
(as applicable) and the guidelines issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and the Central Registrar 
of Co-operative Societies, in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the 
state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st March, 2019 and 
true & fair balance of profit and the Cash Flows for the 
financial year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

3.	 We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing (SAs) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the bank 
in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Banking 
Regulations Act, 1949 and the rules made thereunder 
and under the provisions of the Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the rules made thereunder 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with these requirements and the code 
of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Independent Auditor’s Report

�	� Information Other than the Financial Statements 
and Auditor's Report thereon

	 The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the 
Report of Board of Directors including other explanatory 
information, but does not include the standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

	 Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

	 In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

	 When we read the Report of Board of Directors 
including other explanatory information, if we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement therein, we are 
required to communicate the matter to those charged 
with governance and the members in the Annual 
General Meeting.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 
Statements

4.	 The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for 
preparation of these financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Bank in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, 
provisions of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the rules 
made thereunder, provisions of Multi State Co-operative 
Societies Act, 2002 and the rules made thereunder and 
circulars and guidelines issued by the NABARD and RBI 
from time to time and the accounting standards issued 
by ICAI. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Bank and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
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design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view and are free from material mis statement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

	 The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
Bank's Financial Reporting progress.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5.	 Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

	 As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on 
Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. We also:

	 	 Identify and assess the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

	 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 
to the audit in order to design procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances.

	 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

	 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's 
use of going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

	 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

	 We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

	 We also provide those charged with governance 
with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

6.	 The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account 
have been drawn up in Forms A and B respectively of 
the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 
and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, 
the Multi State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002.

7.	 As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State 
Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

	 a)	 We have obtained all the information and 
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our 
audit and have found to be satisfactory;
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 b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Bank so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books and 
proper returns adequate for the purposes of our 
audit have been received from the branches/of�ces;

c) The transactions of the Bank which came to our 
notice have been within the powers of the Bank;

 d) The Balance Sheet, the Pro�t and Loss Account 
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
report, are in agreement with the books of account 
and the returns;

e) The accounting standards adopted by the Bank 
are consistent with those laid down by accounting 
principles generally accepted in India so far as 
applicable to Banks;

 f) In our opinion and according to information and 
explanations given to us, we have not noticed any 
material impropriety or irregularity in the expenditure 
or in the realisation of money due to the bank.

8. As per the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our examination of the books of account 
and other record, we report as under on the matters 
speci�ed in clause (a) to (f) of Rule 27(3) of the Multi State 
Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002

 a. We have not come across any transactions which 
appear to be contrary to the provisions of the 
Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, the 
rules or the bye-laws of the Bank.

b. We have not come across any material or 
signi�cant transactions which appear to be 
contrary to the guidelines issued by the Reserve 

Bank of India and National Bank for Agriculture and 
Rural Development.

c. Money belonging to the Bank which appears to 
be bad or doubtful of recovery as on 31st March, 
2019 was `1,329.32 crore (i.e. `1,308.95 crore in 
respect of Advances classi�ed as NPA classi�ed as 
Doubtful and Loss Assets as per prudential norms 
issued by RBI & `20.37 crore in respect of other 
assets) for which adequate provision has been 
made as per extant RBI guidelines.

 d. The bank has not given loans to the members of the 
Board of Directors.

e. We have not observed any violation of guidelines, 
conditions etc. issued by the Reserve Bank 
of India or National Bank for Agriculture and 
Rural Development.

 f. The Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies in 
this regard has not speci�ed any matters to the bank.

     sd/-
For: G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100 515W

     sd/- 
  (C. M. Dixit)

Partner
Membership No. 17532

Date: 26th April, 2019
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(Amount in `)

Capital and Liabilities Schedule Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

(1) Capital 1 2,63,96,89,190 2,36,74,57,280

(2) Reserve Fund & Other Reserves 2 36,39,63,90,850 33,77,43,98,326

(3) Principal/Subsidiary State Partnership 0 0

 Fund Account

(4) Deposits & Other Accounts 3 3,60,14,87,01,100 3,50,56,65,84,063

(5) Borrowings 4 22,21,31,18,678 12,31,66,54,312

(6) Bills for Collection Being Bills

 Receivable as Per Contra 38,08,91,48,782 28,85,86,99,092

(7) Securities Receivable as per Contra

 i. Repo 12,89,60,13,678 0

 ii. Reverse Repo 10,26,99,30,533  15,88,00,30,586

(8)  Branch Adjustments 0 0

(9) Overdue Interest Reserve 1,15,48,59,179 93,73,83,158

(10) Interest Payable 57,02,72,152 56,96,32,062

(11) Other Liabilities 5 12,96,10,01,775 12,25,01,79,615

(12) Pro�t & Loss 6 2,92,27,07,920 2,41,63,13,025

Total 5,00,26,18,33,837 4,59,93,73,31,520

Contingent Liabilities:    13 47,09,15,18,698 45,28,98,43,452

Balance Sheet 
As at 31st March, 2019

As per our review report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

       sd/-
(C. M. Dixit)
Partner
Membership No. 017532

Mumbai: 26th April, 2019



FIN
A

N
C

IA
L S

TA
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...

59Annual Report 2018-19

(Amount in `)

Property and Assets Schedule Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

(1) Cash 7 15,56,94,53,759 15,51,47,80,210

(2) Balances with other Banks 8 5,40,65,13,139 29,10,93,03,158

(3)  Money at call and Short Notice 26,52,57,22,249 18,05,59,98,028

(4)  Investments 9 1,10,13,68,99,935 95,67,97,41,133

(5) Investments out of Principal/Subsidiary  0 0

 State Partnership Fund Account

(6)  Advances 10 2,57,97,49,26,804 2,34,69,11,28,746

(7)  Interest Receivable 1,15,48,59,179 93,73,83,158

(8)  Bills Receivable Being bills for

 Collection as per Contra 38,08,91,48,782 28,85,86,99,092

(9) Securities Receivable as per Contra

 I. Repo 12,89,60,13,678 0

 Ii. Reverse Repo 10,26,99,30,533 15,88,00,30,586

(10)  Branch Adjustments 1,62,72,499 11,29,64,357

(11)  Fixed Assets 11 8,60,11,39,042 8,69,12,11,945

(12)  Other Assets 12 13,59,91,68,643 12,36,82,19,783

(13)  Non-Banking Assets Acquired in 0 0

 Satisfaction of Claims

(14)  Computer Software 2,17,85,595 3,78,71,323

Total 5,00,26,18,33,837 4,59,93,73,31,520

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. Sandhane

 Managing Director
S. N. Sawaikar

Director
A. A. Pandit

Director
S. K. Sakhalkar
Vice-Chairman 

G. E. Thakur
Chairman

Mumbai: 26th April, 2019
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Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended 31st March, 2019

(Amount in `)

Expenditure Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

1) Interest on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. 20,94,76,45,762 21,83,46,74,961

2) Salaries and Allowances, Provident Fund 3,20,74,36,370 3,15,48,77,439

3) Directors' and local committee members' fees and allowances 62,85,000 68,17,500
4) Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc. 1,14,96,04,631 1,06,22,58,926
5) Law Charges 57,29,777 36,75,438
6) Postage, Telegram and Telephone charges 7,50,59,768 7,39,79,635
7) Auditor's fees 5,08,97,568 4,21,83,634
8) Depreciation on and repair to property 25,67,23,364 28,44,11,954
9) Stationery, printing and advertisement, etc. 17,11,55,216 15,03,50,294
10) Loss from sale of or dealing with non-banking assets  0 0

11) Other Expenditure:
 i) Repairs and Maintenance of assets 15,65,59,800 10,87,43,908
 ii) Banker's Indemnity Insurance 48,94,141 61,58,370
 iii) Premium paid to DICGC 33,89,40,298 33,39,52,699
 iv) Premium paid to ECGC 1,78,52,856 1,61,81,954
 v) Cheque Processing Charges 1,40,35,259 1,43,62,603
  vi) Leased Line Expenditure 5,58,88,993 5,21,71,467
 vii) Travelling and Conveyance 2,90,62,612 2,66,47,925
 viii) Security Service Charges 30,62,50,498 25,20,06,930
 ix) Amortisation of Investments 21,78,48,591 31,69,38,979
 x) Professional Fees 8,52,57,339 7,48,14,581
 xi) Bank Charges 12,53,26,863 87,72,655
 xii) Digital Banking Expenses 33,34,54,743 30,66,49,442
 xiii) Car Expenses 1,27,20,583 1,06,72,446
 xiv) Housekeeping Charges 2,65,14,960 2,49,66,763
 xv) Sundries 40,26,19,523 30,87,69,057

2,12,72,27,059 1,86,18,09,779
 12)  Provisions:
 i)  Provision for Depreciation on Investments 11,38,91,000 0
 ii) Bad And Doubtful Debts Reserve 2,00,91,49,760 1,94,15,95,188
 iii) Reserve for Restructured Assets 12,38,88,500 2,13,77,000
 iv) Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets 6,87,75,000 1,65,14,000

2,31,57,04,260 1,97,94,86,188
 13) Income-Tax Expenses:
 i) Current Tax 1,22,50,00,000 93,00,00,000
 ii) Deferred Tax 19,60,00,906 (3,39,79,121)
 iii) Short/(Excess) Provision for Tax of earlier years(Net)  (34,68,89,049) 7,49,33,607

1,07,41,11,857 97,09,54,486

 14)  Net Pro�t carried to Balance Sheet 2,91,28,51,795 2,40,67,53,463

Total 34,30,04,32,427 33,83,22,33,697

As per our review report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

       sd/-
(C. M. Dixit)

Partner

Membership No. 017532

Mumbai: 26th April, 2019
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(Amount in `)

Income Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

1) Interest & Discount 30,19,30,12,188 29,59,03,41,298

2) Commission, exchange and brokerage 1,07,29,88,258 78,90,38,623

3) Pro�t on Sale of Securities (Net) 1,20,14,35,040 1,59,80,53,775

4) Other Receipts:

 i) Processing Fees   54,34,39,762 43,51,85,723

 ii) Service Charges 58,28,29,808 48,43,83,588

 iii) Recovery of Expenses 1,32,29,062 1,26,04,451

 iv) Pro�t on Sale of Assets (Net) 37,54,051 13,08,243

 v) Digital Banking Income 40,91,57,196 35,72,33,181

 vi) Pro�t on sale / redemption of Security Receipts 11,83,20,000  0  

 vii) Miscellaneous Income 7,76,70,031 6,88,90,186

 viii) Dividend  7,68,144 8,48,874

1,74,91,68,054 1,36,04,54,246

5)  Excess Provision of earlier years written back 68,36,615 84,20,576

6)  Bad Debts earlier written off, now recovered 7,69,92,272 9,38,77,179

7)  Excess Provision for Depreciation on Investments written back  0  7,20,48,000

8)  Excess Investment Fluctuation Reserve Reversed  0  32,00,00,000

Total 34,30,04,32,427 33,83,22,33,697

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. Sandhane

 Managing Director
S. N. Sawaikar

Director
A. A. Pandit

Director
S. K. Sakhalkar
Vice-Chairman 

G. E. Thakur
Chairman

Mumbai: 26th April, 2019
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Schedule 1 — Capital

(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i) Authorised Capital:

 100,00,00,000 Shares of `10/- each 10,00,00,00,000 10,00,00,00,000

 (Previous year 100,00,00,000 shares)

 Subscribed Capital: 2,09,52,44,190 1,82,30,12,280

 20,95,24,419 Shares of `10/- each

 (Previous year 18,23,01,228 shares of `10/- each)

 Amount Called up: 2,09,52,44,190 1,82,30,12,280

 20,95,24,419 Shares of `10/- each

 (Previous year 18,23,01,228 shares of `10/- each)

 Of the above held by:

 a) Individuals 2,09,52,44,190 1,82,30,12,280

 b) Co-operative institutions  0 0

 c)  State Government  0 0

 ii) Preference Share Capital:

 5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of `10/- each 54,44,45,000 54,44,45,000

 (Previous year 5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of `10/- each)

Total 2,63,96,89,190 2,36,74,57,280

Schedule 2 — Reserve Fund & Other Reserves 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i) Statutory Reserve 7,64,04,88,041 6,95,04,84,895

ii) Building Fund 2,52,90,93,933 2,52,90,93,933

iii) Dividend Equalisation Fund  0 0

iv) Special Bad Debts Reserve  0 0

v) Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve 7,62,05,36,149 6,76,51,82,612

vi) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 2,08,35,00,710 1,68,35,00,710

vii) Other Funds and Reserve:

a)  Restructured Assets Reserve 26,00,97,500 13,62,09,000

b)  Contingency Reserve 2,71,60,48,450 2,47,53,73,050

c)  Contingent provision against Standard Assets 1,04,43,00,000 97,55,25,000

d)  Members' Welfare Fund 11,73,50,000 10,73,50,000

e)  Provision for Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 11,62,93,004 9,58,03,855

f)  Provision for Staff Welfare 1,72,54,564 1,26,72,715

g)  Net Open Foreign Currency Position Reserve 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000

h)  General Reserve 3,39,83,56,036 3,24,46,62,411

i)  Revaluation Reserve 6,44,91,69,611 6,63,93,16,387

j) Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of I.Tax Act,1961 1,46,28,00,000 1,29,28,00,000

k)  Reserve for Excess Provision on Sale of Financial Assets 3,67,99,852 3,67,99,852

l)  Centenary Fund (Net)  0  3,92,11,906

m)  Contingent Provision against Depreciation in Investments 88,43,03,000 77,04,12,000

Total 36,39,63,90,850 33,77,43,98,326

Schedules forming part of Accounts
For the year ended 31st March, 2019



FIN
A

N
C

IA
L S

TA
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...

63Annual Report 2018-19

Schedule 3 — Deposits & Other Accounts 

(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i)  Fixed Deposits:
a)  Individuals & Others 1,96,88,49,35,558 1,87,18,36,33,572

b)  Central Co-op. Banks 50,00,000 50,00,000

c)  Other Societies 59,38,93,70,884 55,43,91,96,269

(i) 2,56,27,93,06,442 2,42,62,78,29,841
ii) Savings Bank Deposits:

a)  Individuals & Others 77,14,50,03,067 75,99,97,56,955

b)  Central Co-op. Banks  0 0

c)  Other Societies 5,02,78,23,649 4,90,84,10,400

(ii) 82,17,28,26,716 80,90,81,67,355
iii) Current Deposits:

a) Individuals & Others 20,39,66,85,634 25,63,16,74,026

b)  Central Co-op.Banks 2,38,98,991 1,14,08,172

c)  Other Societies 1,27,59,83,317 1,38,75,04,669

(iii) 21,69,65,67,942 27,03,05,86,867

Total (i+ii+iii) 3,60,14,87,01,100 3,50,56,65,84,063

Schedule 4 — Borrowings 

(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i) From the Reserve Bank of India/ State/ Central Co-op. Bank  0 0

a) Short-Term Loans, Cash Credits and Overdrafts
 of which secured against- 

 A) Government and Other Approved Securities

 B) Other Tangible Securities

b) Medium-term loans  0 0

 of which secured against-

 A) Government and other approved securities

 B)  Other Tangible securities

c) Long-Term Loans  0 0

 of which secured against-

 A) Government and other approved securities

 B) Other Tangible securities

ii) From the State Bank of India  0 0

iii) From the State Government  0 0

iv) Loans from other sources (source and securities to be speci�ed)  0 0

a) CBLO  0  5,02,64,31,586

b)  Repo Borrowings 4,53,07,01,475 0

c)  Repo Borrowing under TREPS (TRIPARTY) 8,36,53,12,203  0  

d)  Foreign Currency Borrowing from Banks 6,91,55,000 49,02,22,726

e)  Long-Term (Subordinated) Deposits 9,24,79,50,000 6,80,00,00,000

Total 22,21,31,18,678 12,31,66,54,312
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Schedule 5 — Other Liabilities 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i) Bills Payable 1,21,50,27,178 1,31,63,63,169

ii) Unclaimed Dividend 15,39,91,657 14,20,36,830

iii)  Suspense 33,95,15,187 36,16,54,664

iv) Provision for Staff Pension 36,32,58,523 35,99,77,042

v) Rebate on Bills Discounted 4,37,26,823 3,46,38,771

vi) Credit balance in Bank Account 1,09,39,14,109 68,20,22,218

vii) Provision for Taxation 5,67,56,47,326 4,79,51,16,193

viii) Other items 4,07,59,20,972 4,55,83,70,729

Total 12,96,10,01,775 12, 25,01,79,615

Schedule 6 — Profit & Loss
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

Pro�t as per last Balance Sheet (a) 2,41,63,13,025 2,34,98,95,462

Less: Appropriations of pro�t for the year 2017-18

Reserve Fund 60,16,88,400 58,51,32,900

Dividend 29,72,70,000 45,73,29,400

Dividend on Preference Shares 5,71,66,800 5,71,66,800

Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 2,40,67,600 2,34,05,300

Provision for Staff Welfare 13,35,00,000 10,00,000

Members' Welfare Fund 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

Ex-gratia to Employees 35,24,00,000 27,68,43,000

Education fund 2,40,67,600 2,34,05,300

Contingency Reserve 24,06,75,400 23,40,53,200

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 40,00,00,000 15,00,00,000

Special Reserve 17,00,00,000 17,00,00,000

General Reserve 9,56,21,100 30,20,00,000

Centenary Fund  0  5,00,00,000

 (b) 2,40,64,56,900 2,34,03,35,900

  (a)-(b) 98,56,125 95,59,562
Add: Pro�t for the year as per Pro�t & Loss Account 2,91,28,51,795 2,40,67,53,463

Total 2,92,27,07,920 2,41,63,13,025

Schedule 7 — Cash 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i)  Cash In hand 1,39,52,34,519 1,79,12,85,969

ii)  Cash with Reserve Bank of India 14,14,18,92,463 13,69,77,25,607

iii)  Cash with State Bank of India 2,33,53,970 2,08,21,059

iv)  Cash with State Co-operative Banks 51,007 51,008

v)  Cash with Central Co-operative Banks 89,21,800 48,96,567

Total 15,56,94,53,759 15,51,47,80,210
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Schedule 8 — Balance with Other Banks 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i)  Current Deposits 2,68,58,95,734 2,36,60,35,859

(Including ` 18.17 crore with Banks in Foreign Countries)

ii)  Savings Bank Deposits  0  0  

iii)  Fixed Deposits (including ` 22.73 crore pledged 2,72,06,17,405 26,74,32,67,299

 for securing funded/non-funded facilities and treasury operations)

Total 5,40,65,13,139 29,10,93,03,158

Schedule 9 — Investments 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i) a)  In Central and State Government Securities (at book value) 78,03,33,03,540 72,10,30,29,156

  Face Value - `7764.90 crore

  Market Value - `7601.49 crore

 (including `2076.81 crore pledged for Treasury operations) 

b) Reserve Fund Investments

In Central / State Govt. Securities 7,61,34,86,549 6,95,07,31,121

Face Value - `775.45 crore

Market Value - `744.99 crore

c)  Members' Welfare Fund Investments

In Central / State Govt. Securities 11,73,51,022 10,73,50,132

Face Value - `11.87 crore

Market Value - `11.93 crore

ii) Other trustee Securities  0 0

iii) Shares in Co-operative Institutions (Other than item (5) below) 22,63,518 22,63,518

iv) Other Investments:

1) Bonds Issued by Public Sector Units 64,97,25,250 25,00,00,000

2) Bonds Issued by Public Sector Banks 31,00,00,000 21,00,00,000

3) Bonds Issued by Other Institutions 1,14,82,26,750 1,25,00,00,000

4) Bonds of All India Financial Institutions 8,48,79,75,000 3,50,13,66,900

5) Shares of Limited Company 31,04,306 31,04,306

6) Units of Mutual Funds 1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

7) Certi�cate of Deposit 11,02,24,76,750 7,06,06,24,000

8) Commercial Paper 49,09,54,250 49,72,90,000

9) Security Receipts 2,24,80,33,000 3,73,39,82,000

Total 1,10,13,68,99,935 95,67,97,41,133
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Schedule 10 — Advances 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

I) Short-Term Loans, Cash Credit,
  Overdrafts & Bills Discounted:

 Of which secured against:

a) Government & Other approved Securities 31,70,39,281 20,50,41,723

b) Other Tangible Securities 1,18,68,96,15,024 1,12,69,27,88,744

c) Personal Advances 1,65,62,00,524 1,34,49,09,653

(I) 1,20,66,28,54,829 1,14,24,27,40,120

 Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 1,17,07,25,98,724 1,10,93,30,02,206

 Of the Advances, amount Overdue 4,04,24,57,197 5,47,64,67,190

 Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 3,07,83,65,947 3,31,12,13,001

II) Medium-Term Advances:
 Of which secured against:

 a)  Government & Other approved Securities 4,12,30,181 3,51,04,012

 b)  Other Tangible Securities 25,36,17,54,927 25,76,22,06,916

 c)  Personal Advances 10,53,32,668 5,76,78,013

(II) 25,50,83,17,776 25,85,49,88,941

 Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 25,50,24,06,030 25,84,36,42,345

 Of the Advances, amount Overdue 3,23,32,22,807 2,77,49,85,015

 Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 2,08,92,63,513 1,63,22,46,284

III)  Long-Term Advances:

 Of which secured against:

 a)  Government & Other approved Securities 1,92,36,174 28,54,608

 b)  Other Tangible Securities 1,11,75,98,15,944 94,58,25,99,242

 c)  Personal Advances 2,47,02,081 79,45,835

(III) 1,11,80,37,54,199 94,59,33,99,685

      Of the Advances, amount due from individuals 1,11,33,15,69,157 94,17,36,53,489

      Of the Advances, amount Overdue 1,33,71,98,372 86,34,95,887

      Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for) 1,11,85,75,799 46,77,81,071

Total (I+II+III) 2,57,97,49,26,804 2,34,69,11,28,746
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Schedule 11 — Fixed Assets 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

I Premises Less Depreciation:
i) Leasehold Land
 Cost as on 1.4.2018 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880

(a) 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880
Less: Amortisation
Amortisation upto last year (42,91,022) (40,84,357)
Amortisation for current year (2,06,665) (2,06,665)

(b) (44,97,687) (42,91,022)
Total (a-b) 1,30,64,193 1,32,70,858

ii) Premises (including freehold land)
Cost as on 1.4.2018 9,90,01,51,106 9,89,57,81,656
Add:  Additions during the year 3,500 43,69,450
Less: Sales/Adjustment during the year (148,98,153) 0

(a) 9,88,52,56,453 9,90,01,51,106
Less: Depreciation
Depreciation upto last year (1,58,29,11,690) (1,34,02,84,587)
Depreciation for current year (5,21,15,858) (5,24,80,329)
Depreciation on Revalued Amount (19,01,46,774) (19,01,46,774)
Depreciation on sales 35,67,115 0

(b) (1,82,16,07,207) (1,58,29,11,690)
Total (a-b) 8,06,36,49,246 8,31,72,39,416

iii) Leasehold Improvement 
 Book value as on 1.4.2018 3,39,22,529 4,26,97,604
 Add: Additions during the year 45,13,527 10,25,788

3,84,36,056 4,37,23,392
 Less: Amortisation for current year (95,63,235) (98,00,863)

Total 2,88,72,821 3,39,22,529

II Furniture & Fixture Less Depreciation:
Book value as on 1.4.2018 12,25,91,036 16,01,82,901
Add: Additions during the year 3,37,12,411 1,42,37,697

15,63,03,447 17,44,20,598
 Less: Sales/Adjustment (Net) (9,61,172) (7,33,533)

15,53,42,275 17,36,87,065
 Less: Depreciation for current year (4,43,62,007) (5,10,96,029)

Total 11,09,80,268 12,25,91,036
III Other Assets:

i) Plant & Machinery
Book value as on 1.4.2018 8,25,63,177 10,48,36,673
Add: Additions during the year 3,66,01,302 1,25,56,066

11,91,64,479 11,73,92,739
  Less: Sales/Adjustment (Net) (27,80,374) (5,73,027)

11,63,84,105 11,68,19,712
  Less: Depreciation for current year (3,24,63,656) (3,42,56,535)

Total 8,39,20,449 8,25,63,177
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Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

ii) Computers
Cost as on 1.4.2018 37,17,79,688 33,31,84,075
Add: Additions during the year 9,66,53,603 4,52,39,896
Less: Sold during the year (69,69,140) (66,44,283)

(a) 46,14,64,151 37,17,79,688
Less: Depreciation upto last year (29,16,22,588) (23,17,91,328)
Depreciation for current year (7,82,64,428) (6,63,90,921)
Depreciation on sales 67,51,032 65,59,661 

(b) (36,31,35,984) (29,16,22,588)
Total (a-b) 9,83,28,167 8,01,57,100

iii) Motor Cars 
Cost as on 1.4.2018 9,53,97,953 8,78,41,932
Add: Additions during the year 1,41,80,575 2,52,37,833
Less: Sold during the year (75,74,508) (1,76,81,812)

(a) 10,20,04,020 9,53,97,953
Less: Depreciation upto last year (5,90,44,606) (5,93,75,398)
Depreciation for current year (1,35,78,900) (1,46,40,328)
Depreciation on sales 67,34,564 1,49,71,120 

(b) (6,58,88,942) (5,90,44,606)
Total (a-b) 3,61,15,078 3,63,53,347

iv)  Capital Work-in-Progress (Premises) 15,83,18,582 38,04,482
v)  Capital Work-in-Progress (Software) 78,90,238 13,10,000

Grand Total (I to III) 8,60,11,39,042 8,69,12,11,945

Schedule 12 — Other Assets
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i)  Deposit for Services 29,77,53,150 28,95,01,305
ii)  Interest Accrued on Investments 1,96,09,10,793 1,94,98,97,843
iii)  Rent Receivable 3,98,713 3,78,043
iv)  Rent on Lockers in Arrears 56,47,429 45,09,275
v)  Stamps on Hand 23,26,831 24,68,213
vi)  Prepaid Expenses 5,58,47,614 5,10,74,011
vii)  Deferred Tax Asset 2,25,15,02,523 2,41,89,21,866
viii)  Income Tax paid 6,04,78,51,113 4,91,76,79,645
ix)  Margin on Guarantee Fund (CCIL) 50,04,30,000 24,95,25,000
x)  Other dues 2,47,65,00,477 2,48,42,64,581

Total 13,59,91,68,643 12,36,82,19,783

Schedule 13 — Contingent Liabilities 
(Amount in `)

Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

i)  Letters of Credit          6,95,09,88,113 9,76,76,23,878
ii)  Guarantees             6,80,30,23,627 5,49,63,88,938
iii) Forward Sale/Purchase Contracts     32,40,92,66,735 29,29,50,72,804
iv) Unclaimed Liabilities under DEAF Scheme 92,82,40,223 73,07,57,834

Total 47,09,15,18,698 45,28,98,43,452

(Amount in `)
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I. Notes

1) Background:
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. was incorporated 
in 1918 and provides a complete suite of corporate 
and retail banking products.

 2) Basis of preparation:
  The �nancial statements have been prepared and 

presented under the historical cost convention on 
the accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise 
stated and comply with generally accepted 
accounting principles, statutory requirements 
prescribed under the Banking Regulation Act,1949 
and the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 
2002, circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the Accounting 
Standards (AS) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) and current practices 
prevailing within the banking industry in India.

3) Use of estimates:
The preparation of the �nancial statements, in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles, requires Management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date 
of the �nancial statements. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Management believes 
that the estimates used in the preparation of the 
�nancial statements are prudent and reasonable. 
Any revision to the accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively.

II. Significant Accounting Policies:

 1) Accounting Convention:
  The �nancial statements are drawn up in 

accordance with the historical cost convention (as 
modi�ed by revaluation of premises) and on “Going 
Concern” basis.

2) Foreign currency transactions:
2.1 Transactions denominated in foreign currencies 

are accounted for at the rates prevailing on 
the date of the transaction. Monetary foreign 
currency assets and liabilities at the Balance 
Sheet date are translated at rates noti�ed by 
Foreign Exchange Dealers’ Association of 
India (FEDAI). All pro�ts/losses resulting from 
year-end revaluations are recognised in the 
Pro�t and Loss account.

  2.2 Outstanding forward exchange contracts 
and spot exchange contracts are revalued at 

Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet 
as at 31st March, 2019 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

year end exchange rates noti�ed by FEDAI. 
The resulting gains or losses on revaluation 
are included in the Pro�t and Loss account in 
accordance with RBI / FEDAI guidelines.

2.3 Contingent Liabilities on account of 
foreign exchange contracts, guarantees, 
acceptances, endorsements and other 
obligations denominated in foreign currencies 
are disclosed at closing rates of exchange 
noti�ed by FEDAI.

  2.4 The Bank has no foreign branches.

3) Investments:

 3.1 Categorisation of investments:
  In accordance with guidelines issued by RBI, the 

Bank classi�es its investment portfolio into the 
following three categories:

i) ‘Held to Maturity’ – Securities acquired by the 
Bank with the intention to hold till maturity.

  ii) ‘Held for Trading’ – Securities acquired by the 
Bank with the intention to trade.

iii) ‘Available for Sale’ – Securities which do 
not fall within the above two categories are 
classi�ed as ‘Available for Sale’.

 3.2 Classification of Investments:
  For the purpose of disclosure in the Balance 

Sheet, Investments are classi�ed as required 
under Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and RBI 
guidelines as follows:–

Government Securities, Other Trustee Securities, 
Shares in Co-operative Institutions, Shares of 
limited Companies, PSU Bonds, Bonds of All 
India Financial Institutions, Security Receipts and 
Other Investments.

 3.3 Valuation of Investments:
  (i) ‘Held to Maturity’ – These investments 

are carried at their acquisition cost less 
amortisation. Any premium on acquisition is 
amortised over the period remaining to maturity.

(ii) ‘Held for Trading’ – The individual scrip in the 
HFT category is marked to market at monthly 
interval. The net resultant depreciation in each 
classi�cation (as mentioned in Para 3.2 above) 
is recognised in the Pro�t and Loss Account. 
Net appreciation, if any, is ignored.

  (iii) ‘Available for Sale’ – The individual scrip in 
the AFS category is marked to market at the 
year end or at more frequent intervals. The net 
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resultant depreciation in each classi�cation (as 
mentioned in Para 3.2 above) is recognised in 
the Pro�t and Loss Account. Net appreciation, 
if any, is ignored.

(iv) Market value of Government Securities 
(excluding Treasury Bills) is determined on 
the basis of the price list published by RBI or 
the prices periodically declared by FBIL for 
valuation at year-end. In case of unquoted 
Government Securities, market price or 
fair value is determined as per the rates 
published by FBIL.

  (v) Market value of other approved securities 
is determined based on the yield curve and 
spreads provided by FBIL.

(vi) Equity shares are valued at cost or the closing 
quotes on a recognised stock exchange, 
whichever is lower.

  (vii) Treasury Bills are valued at carrying cost, net of 
discount amortised over the period to maturity.

(viii) Certi�cate of Deposits and Commercial Papers 
are valued at carrying cost.

  (ix) Units of Mutual Funds are valued at the lower 
of cost and net asset value provided by the 
respective Mutual Fund.

(x) Security Receipts - These are valued at 
Net Asset Value as provided by the Asset 
Reconstruction Company.

  (xi) Broken period interest on debt 
instruments is treated as a revenue item. 
Brokerage, commission, etc. pertaining to 
investments paid at the time of acquisition is 
charged to revenue.

(xii) Non-performing investments are identi�ed and 
classi�ed as per applicable RBI guidelines.

 3.4 Accounting for Repo/Reverse Repo transactions 
(including transactions under the Liquidity 
Adjustment Facility (LAF) with the RBI)

The securities sold and purchased under Repo/ 
Reverse Repo are accounted as Collateralised 
Borrowing and Lending transactions. 
However, securities are transferred as in the case 
of normal outright sale/purchase transactions and 
such movement of securities is re�ected using the 
Repo/Reverse Repo accounts and contra entries. 
The above entries are reversed on the date of 
maturity. Costs and revenue are accounted as 

interest expenditure/income, as the case may 
be. Balance in Repo account is classi�ed under 
schedule 4 (Borrowings) and balance in Reverse 
Repo account is classi�ed under Money at Call 
& Short Notice.

4) Provisioning for Advances and Overdue Interest 
Reserve:
4.1 The classi�cation of advances into Standard, 

Sub-standard, Doubtful and Loss assets as 
well as provision on non-performing advances 
has been arrived at in accordance with the 
guidelines issued by RBI from time to time. 
In addition to this, a general provision on 
standard assets is made @0.40% of the 
outstanding amount on a portfolio basis except 
in case of direct advances to Agricultural and 
SME sector @ 0.25%, advances to Commercial 
Real Estate @ 1% and Commercial Real 
Estate – Residential House Sector @ 0.75%.

  4.2 The overdue interest in respect of 
non-performing advances is provided 
separately under “Overdue Interest Reserve” 
as per the directives issued by RBI.

5) Fixed Assets and Depreciation:
5.1 Leasehold Land, Computers and 

Motor Cars are stated at cost less 
amortisation/depreciation. Furniture & Fixtures, 
Plant & Machinery and Leasehold improvement 
are stated at written down value after providing 
depreciation/amortisation.

   Premises (including Freehold Land): 
These are stated at the revalued amounts 
less depreciation.

The Bank has framed its own policy for the 
revaluation of Immovable Properties, which is 
duly approved by it’s Board. Revaluations are 
carried out by obtaining expert valuation reports 
by using applicable methods of valuations.

   Cost includes incidental expenses incurred on 
acquisition of assets.

5.2 (i) Plant & Machinery, Furniture & Fixtures 
and Motor Cars are depreciated on 
written down value method @30% p.a.

   (ii) Premises (excluding Freehold Land) 
are depreciated on straight-line 
method @ 2.5% p.a.

(iii) Lease improvement costs are amortised 
over the period of lease.
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   (iv) Leasehold Land is amortised over the 
period of lease.

(v) Computers are depreciated on 
straight-line method @33.33% as 
directed by RBI.

   (vi) Depreciation on revalued portion 
of Premises is adjusted against 
Revaluation Reserve.

5.3 Depreciation on �xed assets purchased during 
the year is charged for the entire year if the 
asset is purchased for 180 days or more; 
otherwise it is charged at 50% of the normal 
rate. No depreciation is charged on �xed 
assets sold during the year.

  5.4 The addition to the Fixed Assets are net 
of GST Input Tax Credit to the extent it is 
availed by the Bank.

6) Revenue Recognition (AS 9):
6.1 Items of income and expenditure are 

accounted for on accrual basis.

  6.2 Income from non-performing assets is 
recognised to the extent realised, as per the 
directives issued by RBI.

6.3 Interest on Government Securities, debentures 
and other �xed income securities is recognised 
on accrual basis. Income on discounted 
instruments is recognised over the tenor of the 
instrument on a straight-line basis.

  6.4 Dividend income is accounted on receipt basis.

6.5 Exchange and brokerage are recognised 
on realisation.

  6.6 Income from distribution of insurance products 
is recognised on the basis of business booked.

7) Deposit for Services:
The Deposit for Services like Telephone, Electricity, 
etc. paid to the concerned authorities is written 
off as expenditure in the year in which the relevant 
service connection is installed.

 8) Employee Benefits (AS 15):
  8.1 Gratuity:
   The Bank provides for gratuity to all employees. 

The bene�t vests upon completion of �ve 
years of service and is in the form of lump 
sum payment to employees on resignation, 
retirement, death while in employment or 
on termination of employment, an amount 
equivalent to 15 days salary plus eligible 

allowances payable for each completed year 
of service, as per the Payment of Gratuity 
Act,1972. The Bank makes contributions to 
funds administered by trustees and managed 
by the LIC of India.

The de�ned gratuity bene�t plans are valued 
by an independent actuary as at the Balance 
Sheet date, using the projected unit credit 
method as per the requirement of AS-15 
“Employee Bene�ts”, to determine the present 
value of the de�ned bene�t obligation and 
the related service costs. Under this method, 
the determination is based on actuarial 
calculations, which include assumptions 
about demographics, early retirement, salary 
increases and interest rates. Actuarial gain 
or loss is recognised in the Statement of 
Pro�t and Loss.

  8.2 Provident fund:
   In accordance with law, all the employees of the 

Bank are entitled to receive bene�ts under the 
provident fund. Every employee contributes an 
amount, on a monthly basis, at a determined 
rate (currently 12% of employee’s Basic Salary 
plus eligible allowances). The Bank contributes 
an equal amount @ 12% of employees’ Basic 
Salary plus eligible allowances. This amount 
is transferred to PF account managed by the 
Employees’ PF Trust.

In the case of PF contribution of employees 
of the merged banks i.e. of erstwhile Maratha 
Mandir Co-op. Bank Ltd., erstwhile Mandvi 
Co-op. Bank Ltd., erstwhile South Indian 
Co-op. Bank Ltd., erstwhile Nashik Peoples 
Co-op. Bank Ltd., erstwhile Annasaheb 
Karale Janata Sahakari Bank Ltd., erstwhile 
Murgharajendra Sahakari Bank Ltd., and 
erstwhile Kolhapur Maratha Co-op. Bank Ltd., 
and the employer’s contribution is transferred 
to RPFC, Bandra, Mumbai.

   The Bank’s contribution to Provident 
Fund is accounted for on the basis of 
contribution to the scheme.

8.3 Leave Encashment:
In respect of leave encashment liability, 
the Bank has obtained Insurance Policies 
with three difference insurance companies. 
The shortfall, if any between projected bene�t 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets as 
on 31st March, is provided for and recognised 
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as expense in the Pro�t and Loss Account. 
The liability of leave encashment is provided 
on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the 
Balance Sheet date and considered as de�ned 
bene�t scheme. The actuarial valuation is 
carried out as per projected unit credit method.

8.4 Pension and LTC
The liability towards Staff Pension and 
unavailed LTC is provided on the basis of 
actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet 
date and considered as de�ned bene�t 
scheme. The actuarial valuation is carried out 
as per projected unit credit method.

 9) Segment Reporting (AS 17):
  In accordance with the guidelines issued by RBI, 

Bank has adopted Segment Reporting as under:

9.1 SBU Treasury includes all investment portfolio, 
pro�t/loss on sale of investments, pro�t/loss 
on foreign exchange transactions, equities 
and money market operations. The expenses 
of this segment primarily consist of interest 
expenses on funds borrowed from external 
sources as well as internal sources and 
depreciation/amortisation of premium on Held 
to Maturity category investments.

  9.2 Other Banking Operations include all 
other operations not covered under 
Treasury  operations.

10) Related Party Disclosures (AS 18):
There are no related parties which require a 
disclosure under AS 18 other than the Key 
Management Personnel. Since Mrs. S. M. 
Sandhane, the Managing Director of the Bank is a 
single party under the category Key Management 
Personnel, no further details need to be disclosed 
in terms of RBI circular dated 29th March, 2003.

 11) Operating Leases (AS 19):
  Lease rental obligations in respect of assets 

taken on operating lease are charged to Pro�t 

and Loss Account on straight-line basis over the 
lease term. Initial direct costs are charged to Pro�t 
and Loss account.

12) Earnings per Share (AS 20):
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing 
the net pro�t or loss for the year by the weighted 
average number of shares (excluding preference 
shares) outstanding during the year calculated 
on monthly basis.

 13) Income-Tax (AS 22):
  13.1 Current income tax is measured at the amount 

expected to be paid to the Tax Authorities in 
accordance with the applicable provisions 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

13.2 Deferred Tax is recognised, subject to 
consideration of prudence, on timing 
difference, representing the difference 
between taxable income and accounting 
income that originated in one period and is 
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 
periods. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities 
are measured using tax rates and tax laws that 
have been enacted or substantially enacted by 
the Balance Sheet date.

 14) Intangible Assets (AS 26):
  Intangible assets consist of Computer Software 

acquired / self created. The  same is amortised 
equally over the period of three years as per 
RBI guidelines.

15) Impairment of Assets (AS 28):
The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet date 
whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised 
in the statement of Pro�t & Loss to the extent, the 
carrying amount of asset exceeds its estimated 
recoverable amount.

  Since the Bank has ascertained that there is 
no material impairment of any of its assets, no 
provision on account of impairment of assets is 
required to be made.
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 16) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets (AS 29):

    A provision is recognised when the Bank has a 
present obligation as a result of past event where 
it is probable that an out�ow of resources will be 
required to settle the obligation, in respect of which 
a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not 
discounted to its present value and are determined 
based on best estimate required to settle the 
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. These are 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted 
to re�ect the current best estimates.

When there is a possible or present obligation 
in respect of which the likelihood of out�ow 
of resources is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made.

  Contingent Assets are not recognised in the 
�nancial statements. However, contingent assets 
are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain 
that an in�ow of economic bene�ts will arise, the 
asset and related income are recognised in the 
period in which the change occurs.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when there is a 
possible obligation arising from a past event, the 
existence of which will be con�rmed by occurrence 
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not within the control of the Bank or any 
present obligation arising from past event which 
is not recognised since it is not probable that an 
out�ow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of 
such obligation cannot be made.
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III. Notes to Accounts:

1) The Share Capital includes 772172 shares of `10/- each in respect of the persons who have not subscribed to additional 
shares to make their shareholding minimum of 50 shares as required under Bye-law No.6C and as a result, they are not 
entitled to their membership rights.

2) In terms of RBI directives, following additional disclosures are made:
(` in crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

1. Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio 13.16% 13.60%
2. Movement in CRAR

(i)  Total Capital Funds 3,279.57 2,907.14
(ii)  Risk Weighted Assets 24,924.49 21,368.30

3. Investments:
(i) Book Value 11,013.69 9,567.97
(ii) Face Value 11,274.69 9,630.98
(iii) Market Value 10,712.93 9,215.68

4. Advances against:
(i) Real Estate 1,004.37 1074.67
(ii) Construction Business 97.30 70.91
(iii) Housing 3,952.20 3,452.02

5. Advances against shares & debentures 30.01 27.68
6. Advances to directors, their relatives, companies/�rms in which they are interested:

(i) Fund based NIL NIL
(ii) Non-Fund based NIL NIL

7. Average cost of deposits 5.87% 6.20%
8. NPAs

(i) Gross NPAs 1,193.57 872.27
(ii) Net NPAs 451.89 213.91

9. Movement in NPAs
(i) Gross NPAs
 Opening Balance 872.27 997.77
 Add: Additions during the year 532.53 222.00
 Less: Reduction during the year 211.23 347.50
 Closing Balance. 1,193.57 872.27
(ii) Net NPAs
 Opening Balance 213.91 380.03
 Add: Additions during the year 321.30 (125.50)
 Less: Reduction during the year (83.32) (40.62)
 Closing Balance 451.89 213.91

10. Pro�tability:
(i)  Interest income as a percentage of working funds (%) 7.04 7.30
(ii) Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds (%) 0.96 1.05
(iii) Operating pro�t as a percentage of working funds (%) 0.93 0.83
(iv) Return on average Assets (%) 0.72 0.60
(v) Business (Deposits + Advances) per Employee 14.24 14.41
(vi) Operating pro�t per employee 0.09 0.08

11. Provisions made towards:
(i)  NPAs 198.30 194.27
(ii) Depreciation on investments 11.39 0.00
(iii) Standard Assets 6.28 1.65

12. Movement in Provisions:
(i) Towards NPAs
 Opening Balance 658.37 617.74
 Add: Additions during the year 198.30 194.27
 Less: Reduction during the year 114.99 153.64
 Closing Balance 741.68 658.37
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(` in crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

(ii)  Towards Depreciation on investments
 Opening Balance 77.04 84.25
 Add: Additions during the year 11.39 0.00
 Less: Reduction during the year 0.00 7.21
 Closing Balance 88.43 77.04
(iii) Towards Standard Assets
 Opening Balance 97.55 95.90
 Add: Additions during the year 6.28 1.65
 Less: Reduction during the year 0.00 0.00
 Closing Balance 103.83 97.55

13. (i) Foreign currency assets 1,764.70 799.16
(ii) Foreign currency liabilities 292.42 247.07

14 (i) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 33.89 33.40
(ii) Arrears in payment of DICGC premium NIL NIL

15. Penalty imposed by RBI NIL NIL
16. Cost of premises

Original Cost 226.87 228.36
Add: Revaluation 761.66 761.66
Closing Balance of premises 988.53 990.02
Closing Balance of Revaluation Reserve 644.92 663.93

3) In connection with Repo/Reverse Repo transactions:
 (` in crore)
Particulars Minimum 

outstanding  
during the year

Maximum 
outstanding  

during the year

Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year

Outstanding as on 
31st March, 2019

Security sold under Repo
i) Government Securities 0.00 1,649.95 740.91 453.07

(NIL) (1,330.69) (450.71) (NIL)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)

Securities purchased under Reverse Repo
i) Government Securities 0.00 982.42 22.52 576.99

 (NIL) (1,053.91) (67.95) (NIL)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 (NIL)  (NIL)  (NIL)  (NIL)

Securities sold under RBI Repos (LAF):
i) Government Securities 0.00 80.00 5.30 0.00

(NIL) (150.00) (5.90) (NIL)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 (NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)

Securities purchased under RBI Repos (LAF):
i) Government Securities 0.00 1,588.00 75.08 450.00

(NIL) (2,269.00) (468.59) (1,588.00)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(NIL) (NIL) (NIL) (NIL)

Note: i) Figures in brackets represent previous year’s �gures.
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4) Non-SLR Investments:
4.1  Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments:

(` in crore)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars

Amount

Extent of “Below 
Investment  

Grade” 
Securities

Extent of 
“Unrated”  
Securities

Extent of 
“Unlisted” 
Securities

1. PSUs 64.97 0.00 0.00 0.00

(25.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

2. FIs 848.80 0.00 0.00 0.00

(350.14) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

3. Public Sector Banks 31.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

(21.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

4. Mutual Fund 1.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.

(1.00) (0.00)  (N.A)  (N.A)

5. Others 389.12 0.00 0.00 0.00

(548.53) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

6. Provision held towards depreciation 88.43 XXX XXX XXX

(77.04)  (XXX)  (XXX)  (XXX)

Total 1334.89 0.00 0.00 0.00

(945.67) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s �gures.

4.2  Non-performing Non-SLR investments:

(` in crore)

Particulars
Amount

31.03.2019
Amount

31.03.2018

Opening Balance 0.00 0.00

Additions during the year 0.00 0.00

Reductions during the year 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 0.00 0.00

Total provisions held 0.00 0.00



FIN
A

N
C

IA
L S

TA
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

A Legacy of trust... A promising future...

77Annual Report 2018-19

5) Details of Advances Restructured as on 31st March, 2019 are given below:
(` in crore)

Sr. 
No.

Particulars
Housing 

Loans
SME Debt 

Restructuring
CDR Others

I Standard 
Advances Restructured

Numbers of Borrowers 0 0 2 9

(0) (1) (2) (8)

Amount Outstanding 0.00 0.00 50.48 257.22

(0.00) (10.17) (45.11) (335.78)

Sacri�ce (Diminution in the Fair Value) 0.00 0.00 0.66 4.75

(0.00) (0.68) (0.74) (11.27)

II Sub-Standard 
Advances Restructured

Numbers of Borrowers 0 1 0 1

(0) (0) (0) (3)

Amount Outstanding 0.00 16.88 0.00 20.00

(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (31.34)

Sacri�ce (Diminution in the Fair Value) 0.00 2.11 0.00 1.23

(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.54)

III Doubtful 
Advances Restructured

Numbers of Borrowers 0 4 1 12

(0) (4) (1) (2)

Amount Outstanding 0.00 20.10 26.55 252.36

(0.00) (21.02) (26.55) (21.68)

Sacri�ce (Diminution in the Fair Value) 0.00 0.00 0.00 17.26

(0.00) (0.20) (0.00) (0.19)

Total Numbers of Borrowers 0 5 3 22

(0) (5) (3) (13)

Amount Outstanding 0.00 36.98 77.03 529.58

(0.00) (31.19) (71.66) (388.80)

Sacrifice (Diminution in the Fair 
Value)

0.00 2.11 0.66 23.24

(0.00) (0.88) (0.74) (12.00)

Note:- Figures in brackets represent previous year’s �gures

6) Employee Benefits- AS 15:

A. De�ned Contribution Plan

6.1 Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund – `24.74 crore
 (Previous year- `24.44 crore)

B. De�ned Bene�t Plan

6.2 Assumptions:
Sr. 
No. Particulars

Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18

I Discount rate 7.79% 7.83% 7.78% 7.45%

II Expected return on Plan Assets 7.79% 7.83% N.A. N.A.

III Salary Escalation rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

IV Attrition Rate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

V Mortality Table IALM
(2006-08) 
Ultimate

IALM
(2006-08) 
Ultimate

IALM
(2006-08) 
Ultimate

IALM
(2006-08) 
Ultimate
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6.3 Table showing change in Benefit Obligation:
(` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18

Present value of obligation at the beginning of the period 131.96 124.77 36.00 36.34
Interest cost 10.33 8.98 2.79 2.71
Current service cost 5.94 5.78 0.39 0.29
(Bene�ts paid directly by the Employer) (0.11) (0.06) (2.31) (2.13)
(Bene�ts paid from the Fund) (16.73) (14.67) - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations – Due to Change in 
Financial Assumptions

0.32 (5.21) (0.05) (0.87)

Actuarial (Gains)/Loss on obligations – Due to Experience (1.35) 12.37 (0.49) (0.34)
Present value of bene�t obligation at the end of the period 130.36 131.96 36.33 36.00

6.4 Table showing Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:
(` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 129.26 125.23 -- --
Expected return on Plan Assets 10.12 9.02 -- --
Contributions by the Employer 12.46 9.25 -- --
Bene�ts paid from the Fund (16.73) (14.67) -- --
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets – Due to Experience (0.35) 0.44 -- --
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 134.76 129.26 -- --

 The plan assets are invested in the insurer managed fund which generally makes investment in secured securities. 
Hence, the expected rate of return considered is yield on the government securities which match the average term of 
the obligation.

6.5 Amount recognised in Balance Sheet:
(` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18

(Present value of obligation at the end of the period) (130.36) (131.96) (36.33) (36.00)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 134.76 129.26 - -
Funded Status (Surplus/(De�cit)) 4.40 (2.70) (36.33) (36.00)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in the Balance Sheet 4.40 (2.70) (36.33) (36.00)

6.6 Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss:
(` in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18

Current service cost 5.94 5.78 0.39 0.29
Net Interest cost 0.21 (0.03) 2.79 2.71
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss (0.68) 6.72 (0.54) (1.21)
Expenses recognised in Statement of Pro�t or Loss 5.47 12.47 2.64 1.79

6.7 Investments under Plan Assets are as follows:
(` in crore)

Category of Assets Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.19 31.03.18 31.03.19 31.03.18

Insurer Managed Funds 134.34 128.87 - -
Other 0.42 0.39 - -
Total 134.76 129.26 - -
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6.8  Actual Return on Plan Assets and Expected contribution for next year:
(` in crore)

Particulars 2019 2018

Expected return on plan assets 10.12 9.02

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets – due to experience (0.35) 0.44

Actual Return on Plan Assets 9.77 9.46

Expected Contribution for next year 1.58 8.64

6.9 Amounts of Gratuity for the current year and previous four years are as follows:
i. Gratuity

(` in crore)

Particulars 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

(Present Value of Bene�t Obligation at the 
end of the Period)

(130.36) (131.96) (124.77) (121.41) (100.24)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 134.76 129.26 125.23 121.41 100.24

Funded Status (Surplus/(De�cit)) 4.40 (2.70) 0.46 - -

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations – 
Due to Experience

(1.35) 12.37 (4.03) 17.02 8.63

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets – 
Due to Experience

(0.35) 0.44 (0.47) (2.90) (3.78)

 ii. Pension
(` in crore)

Particulars 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

(Present Value of Bene�t Obligation at the 
end of the Period)

36.33 36.00 36.34 33.16 31.16

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the Period - - - - -

Funded Status (Surplus/(De�cit)) 36.33 36.00 36.34 33.16 31.16

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligations - 
Due to Experience

(0.05) (0.87) 1.26 0.66 (1.99)

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets - 
Due to Experience

- - - - -

C. Other Long-Term Employee Bene�ts

6.10 Compensated absences
The actuarial liability of compensated absences of accumulated privileged and sick leaves of the employees of the Bank 
is given below:

(` in crore)

Particulars 2019 2018

Privileged leave 70.70 69.79

Sick leave 20.34 31.65

Total actuarial liability 91.04 101.44

Assumptions

Discount rate 7.79% 7.83%

Salary escalation rate 4.00% 4.00%
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7) Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segments) AS 17:

 (` in crore)

Particulars
SBU

Treasury
Other Banking 

Business
31st March, 2019 

(31st March, 2018)

Revenue

Segment Revenue 990.32
(1,158.61)

2,439.72
(2,224.61)

3,430.04
 (3,383.22)

Result 181.97
(179.70)

216.73
(158.07)

398.70
 (337.77)

Unallocated Expenses 0.00
(0.00)

Operating Pro�t 398.70
 (337.77)

Income Tax 107.41
 (97.10)

Net Pro�t 291.29
 (240.68)

Other Information

Segment Assets 17,908.08
 (17,216.88)

31,288.17
(28,043.19)

49,196.25
 (45,260.07)

Unallocated Assets 829.93
(733.66)

Total Assets 50,026.18
(45,993.73)

Segment Liabilities 4,024.17
 (2,486.88)

42,967.10
(40,762.17)

46,991.27
(43,249.05)

Unallocated Liabilities 680.63
 (596.75)

Total Liabilities 47,671.90
 (43,845.80)

Note:

(i) These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, different risks and returns attributable 
to them, organization structure and internal management information system.

(ii) Types of products & services in each business segment:

 (a) Strategic Business Unit (SBU) Treasury: Dealing operations in forex, money market & �xed income products.

 (b) Other Banking Operations: Corporate & Retail Banking & Allied services.

(iii) Secondary Segment information: Bank caters mainly to the needs of Indian customers; hence separate information 
regarding secondary segment i.e. Geographical Segment is not given.

(iv) Segment Liabilities exclude Capital and Reserves other than those speci�cally identi�able with a segment.

(v) Figures in brackets represent previous year’s �gures.
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8) Operating Lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS 19):
(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year:

- Not later than one year 48.66 46.17

- Later than one year and not later than �ve years 85.34 79.04

- Later than �ve years 7.48 4.72

Total of minimum lease payments realisation in the Pro�t and Loss account for the year. 58.83 57.22

Total of future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under 
non-cancellable sub-lease

NIL NIL

Sub-lease payments realisation in the Pro�t and Loss account for the year NIL NIL

9) Major components of Deferred Tax (AS 22):
      (` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Deferred Tax Asset

1 Section 43B 3.26 39.51

2 Provision for BDDR 266.26 236.38

3 Amortisation of HTM Securities 3.55 13.39

4 Other 12.38 6.85

Sub-Total (A) 285.45 296.13

Deferred Tax Liability

1 Difference in WDV of �xed assets 9.26 8.96

2 Special Reserve u/s 36(I) (viii) 50.03 44.09

3 Others 1.01 1.19

Sub-Total (B) 60.30 54.24

Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B) 225.15 241.89

Note: Deferred Tax Asset has been recognised to the extent Management is reasonably certain of its realisation.

10) Details of Computer Software –other than internally generated (AS 26):

a) Amortisation rates used @33.33% p.a. on straight-line method. (However, if useful life of software is shorter, then 
proportionate rates are used).

  (` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Opening Balance (at cost) as on April 1 34.41 32.53

Add: Additions during the year 1.01 1.88

Sub-Total (A) 35.42 34.41

Less: Amortisation made:

Opening Balance of Amortisation 30.62 25.07

Add: Amortisation during the year 2.62 5.55

Sub-Total (B) 33.24 30.62

Net carrying amount as on March 31 (A)-(B) 2.18 3.79

b) Amount of commitments (net of advance) for the acquisition of computer software – ̀ 24.58 crore (Previous year- ̀ 0.37 crore).
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11) The information in respect of their registration under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is not 
received from suppliers / service providers by the Bank. Hence, information relating to the cases of delays if any, in 
payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to such delays could not be given.

12) The Bank has taken Group Mediclaim Policy covering its Directors. The Bank has paid premium of `1,60,114/- 
on this account.

13) Market Risk in Trading Book as on 31.03.2019:

 a) Qualitative Disclosures

Market Risk is the risk that the value of investments may undergo change over a given time period, simply because 
of economic changes or other events that impact the �nancial markets. In other words, Market Risk is calculated for 
both, adverse movement in the price of an individual security owing to factors related to the individual issuer as well 
as interest rate risk in the portfolio.

  Methodology: The Bank follows the Standardised Duration Approach for calculation of Market Risk. The Bank 
manages the Market Risk in the books on an ongoing basis and ensures that the capital requirement for Market Risk 
is being maintained on a continuous basis i.e. at the close of each business day.

The capital charge is applied to the market value of securities in the Bank’s trading book. Market Value is determined 
as per the extant RBI guidelines on valuation of investments.

  Minimum Capital Requirement is worked out separately for

1. ‘Speci�c Risk’ charge – for individual issuer related factors.

  2. ‘General Market Risk’ – for interest rate risk in the portfolio.

Scope:

  The portfolios covered under the said approach include:

1. Securities included under the Held for Trading (HFT) category

  2. Securities included under the Available for Sale (AFS) category

3. Open Foreign Exchange Position Limits

  Infrastructure/MIS & Reporting:

The Investment Policy as approved by the Board of Directors provides detailed guidelines for all operational 
procedure, settlements, valuations and risk controls pertaining to the investments.

  A separate Mid-Of�ce is also in place which acts as an intermediary, monitoring compliance of regulatory guidelines 
and of the Banks’ Investment Policy and undertakes reporting to higher management.

Parameters for risk measurement: 

  Risk Management and reporting is based on parameters such as Modi�ed Duration, Net Open Position Limits, Gap 
Limits, Value-at-Risk (VaR).

 b) Quantitative Disclosure:
   (` in crore)

Particulars  31.03.2019  31.03.2018

The Capital requirements for:

Interest Rate Risk 135.02  81.43

Equity Position Risk 0.06 0.06

Foreign Exchange Risk 3.24 3.15
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14) Details of financial assets sold during the year to SC / RC for Asset Reconstruction:
(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

a) No. of accounts 0 3
b) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC / RC 0.00 125.32
c) Aggregate consideration 0.00 124.60
d) Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 0.00 0.00
e) Aggregate gain/loss over net book value 0.00 (0.72)

15) Disclosure with respect to ‘The Depositor Education and Awareness Fund Scheme, 2014’ (DEAF) as per RBI 
Circular dated 27/05/2014:

(` in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 73.08 60.21
Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the period 21.70 14.95
Less: Amount reimbursed by DEAF towards claims for the year 1.86 1.21
Less: Amount yet to be settled by DEAF till 31.03.2019 0.09 0.87
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 92.83 73.08

16) Earnings per Share (EPS)
 (` in crore)

Particulars 2018-19 2017-18

Net Pro�t after Taxation 291.29 240.68
Weighted average No. of Shares 19.62 17.17
EPS (in actuals) 14.85 14.02

17) In accordance with the approval granted by RBI Circular No. RBI/2016-17/7,DCBR.BPD.Cir. No 21/09.18.201/2016-17 
dated 7th July, 2016 and permission granted by Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, Government of India vide its 
letter No. R-11017/80/2012-L&M (Part) dated 21.05.2018, during the year 2018-19 the Bank has raised `244.80 crore by 
way of Long-Term Subordinated (Tier-II) Deposits.

18) In terms of RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated 7th April, 2016, during the year the Bank has 
purchased Priority Sector Lending Certi�cate (PSLC- General, Small & Marginal and Micro) amounting to `2,260.00 crore 
and sold PSLC General certi�cate amounting to `100 crore. The said sum is eligible for inclusion in priority sector lending 
target of the Bank for year 2018-19. These PSLCs are valid till 31st March, 2019.

19) Demands under Income Tax Act `30.48 crore (previous year `5.22 crore), (demand amounting to `2.02 crore and interest 
portion thereon relates to issues which are decided in favour of the Bank in earlier year’s tax assessments) and Service 
Tax `10.72 crore (previous year `7.11 crore) against which the Bank has preferred appeals with appropriate authorities.

20) Previous year’s �gures are regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the layout of the accounts of 
the current year.

As per our review report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 100515W

       sd/-  
(C. M. Dixit) 
Partner
Membership No. 017532

sd/-  
S. M. Sandhane 

Managing Director 

sd/-  
S. N. Sawaikar 

Director 

sd/-  
A. A. Pandit

Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26th April, 2019.

sd/-  
S. K. Sakhalkar 
 Vice-Chairman

sd/-  
G. E. Thakur

Chairman
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2019

(` in crore)
Current Year
31.03.2019

Previous Year
31.03.2018

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Net Pro�t as per P/L account 291.29 240.68
Add: Adjustments for
Depreciation on Assets 25.67 28.44
Fixed assets written off/adjustment 0.04 0.00
Amortisation of Investments 21.78 31.69
Depreciation of Investment 11.39 0.00
Provision for Tax  88.05 100.49
Provision for BDDR 200.91 194.16
Deferred Tax Asset 16.74  (3.40)
Provision for Reserve for Restructured Assets 12.39 0.00
Provision for Standard Assets 6.88 383.85  1.65 353.04
Less: 675.14 593.72
Interest paid on LTD 74.09 62.57
Pro�t on Sale of Assets 0.37 0.13
Pro�t on Sale of Securities 131.97 159.81
Dividend received 0.08 0.08
Excess provision for Depreciation on Investment 0.00 206.51 7.20 229.80

468.63 363.92
Adjustments for
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments 1,055.35  (63.09)
Decrease/(Increase) in Advances  (2,328.38)  (1,933.04)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets  (26.82)  (43.75)
Increase/(Decrease) in Funds  (106.52)  (185.09)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits 958.21  1,319.24 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities  (46.08)  (494.24)  (14.30)  (920.02)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities before Tax    (25.61)  (556.09)
Income Tax paid (Net)  (113.02)  (90.79)
Net Cash generated from Operating Activities after Tax   (A)  (138.63)  (646.88)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (35.68)  (12.28)
Dividend received 0.08  0.08 
Sale Proceeds of Fixed Assets 1.95  0.54 
Net Cash generated from Investing Activities                    (B)  (33.65)  (11.65)
Cash Flow From Financing Activities:
Increase/(Decrease) in Share Capital 27.22 21.52
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowing 989.65 438.72
Interest paid on LTD 74.09 62.57
Dividend Paid  (34.25)  (46.09)
Net Cash generated from Financing Activities                   (C) 1,056.71 476.72
Net increase in Cash & Cash equivalents                  (A+B+C) 884.43  (181.82)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,593.68 3,775.50
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 4,478.11 3,593.68

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Current Year

31.03.2019
Previous Year

31.03.2018
Cash 1556.95 1551.48
Balance with other banks (excluding Term Deposit) 268.59 236.60
Money at Call & Short Notice 2652.57 1805.60

 4,478.11  3,593.68 
1 Cash and Cash Equivalents include highly liquid Short-Term investments for short period in form of Cash, balances held in current accounts with other Banks 

and Money at Call & Short Notice.

2 Cash �ow Statement is prepared by using indirect method as mentioned in AS 3.

As per our review report of even date

For G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

      sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-

(C. M. Dixit)
Partner

Membership No. 017532

S. M. Sandhane
 Managing Director

S. N. Sawaikar
Director

A. A. Pandit
Director

S. K. Sakhalkar
Vice-Chairman 

G. E. Thakur
Chairman

Mumbai: 26th April, 2019
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Our Members
No. of Shares Held No. of Members Percentage

50-51 47,695 22.30

52-250 38,258 17.89

251-1500 65,919 30.83

1501-2500 61,964 28.98

Total 2,13,836 100.00

Our Depositors
No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto  `1000 14,90,133 35.84

  `1001 to `5000 5,70,872 13.73

  `5001 to `10000 2,57,783 6.20

  `10001 to `20000 2,78,531 6.70

  `20001 to `30000 1,97,212 4.74

Above `30000 13,63,445 32.79

Total 41,57,976 100.00

Our Borrowers
No. of Accounts Percentage

Upto  `5000 10,498 9.63

  `5001 to `10000 1,001 0.92

  `10001 to `25000 3,981 3.65

Above `25000 93,524 85.80

Total 1,09,004 100.00

Advances to Priority Sector
No. of Accounts (` in crore)

Small Scale Industries 799 777.50

Small Businessmen & Traders 13,900 4,805.05

Other Priority Sector 38,172 5,028.50

Total 52,871 10,611.05

Involvement of the Small Man
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Progress at a Glance (Year 1920-2019)
(` in lakh)

Year
No. of  

Members
Paid-up 
Capital

Reserve & 
Other Funds

            Deposits       Advances Total  
Business No. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount

1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06 0.07
Silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23 26.71
Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 247.80 813.13
1975 29,978 44.88 *44.43 87,912 1,527.06 5,323 893.11 2,420.17
1976 32,830 51.52 *54.78 1,04,025 1,961.57 6,081 1,006.99 2,968.56
Diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30 4,562.71
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00 5,958.92
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17 7,937.01
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47 9,575.84
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81 13,213.52
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41 16,954.36
1984 75,977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78 20,668.24
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03 24,820.79
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06 30,695.46
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22,914.72 36,379 13,550.34 36,465.06
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43 44,614.44
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62 50,271.69
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 37,447.63 51,428 23,709.05 61,156.68
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59 71,592.60
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76 79,925.53
Platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 7,11,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40 97,635.86
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 7,79,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67 1,50,802.80
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713 1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70 1,80,255.10
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80 2,26,229.77
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47,833 1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47 2,81,943.06
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24 3,41,562.10
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76 4,08,262.60
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969 2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56 4,62,318.87
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78 5,42,106.99
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47,841.14 12,99,736 3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22,359.50 5,88,419.18
2004 **94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976 4,05,270.26 77,917 2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312 3,24,722.93 8,03,337.31
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757 6,20,428.65 1,00,115 4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635 8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 7,44,830.67 18,87,912.60
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699 14,26,672.86 2,75,479 9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939 15,80,096.07 1,11,991 11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30
2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606 19,25,270.98 1,12,196 13,95,270.49 33,20,541.47
2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67
2014 **1,75,242 16,768.78 1,97,412.18 35,59,404 23,93,951.03 97,364 15,47,005.02 39,40,956.05
2015 **1,78,747 18,930.10 2,05,757.04 39,15,156 27,17,084.05 96,718 17,79,812.40 44,96,896.45
2016 **1,82,008 20,275.76 2,16,839.75 41,59,753 31,49,584.33 95,376 20,36,611.50 51,86,195.83
2017 **1,88,249 21,522.60 2,46,967.82 43,18,903 33,73,741.87 97,092 21,53,607.14 55,27,349.01
Centenary Year 
2018 **1,99,616 23,674.57 2,63,228.49 41,98,064 35,05,665.84 1,02,326 23,46,911.29 58,52,577.13
2019 **2,13,836 26,396.89 2,97,341.24 41,57,976 36,01,487.01 1,09,004 25,79,749.27 61,81,236.28
*   Including Interest Reserve
**  Shareholders holding shares 50 and above
#   Financial Year: Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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(` in lakh)

Year Investments
Working  

Capital
Net Profit

Dividend  
Amount

Dividend  
(%)

No. of  
Branches

1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
Silver Jubilee
1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee
1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
1975 675.50 1,763.27 9.01 3.80 9.00 20
1976 1,005.92 2,222.87 15.47 5.80 12.00 20
Diamond Jubilee
1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
1992# 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
Platinum Jubilee
1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,547.13 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216
2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58 20.00 226
2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10 10.00 229
2014 7,80,474.21 28,13,279.55 14,709.37 1,292.80 10.00 267
2015 7,73,511.53 31,37,109.58 19,017.71 2,019.29 15.00 267
2016 9,38,847.77 35,94,150.08 21,119.15 2,139.02 15.00 283
2017 8,87,279.19 38,44,221.27 23,405.32 4,573.29 30.00 282
Centenary Year
2018 9,56,797.41 40,52,029.80 24,067.53 2,972.70 17.50 281
2019 11,01,369.00 42,91,512.10 29,128.52 3,370.31* 17.50* 284

*  Recommended for ordinary shares
# Financial Year: Change of Bank’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network

Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

Mumbai
1 Andheri (East) (022) 26822522/23, 26825080
2 Andheri (East), Marol (022) 29202254, 29201705, 29206119
3 Andheri (East), MIDC (022) 28324488, 28324487
4 Andheri (East), Pump House (022) 28349777, 28349779
5 Andheri (East), Saki Naka (022) 28472356
6 Andheri (West), Veera Desai Road (022) 26742487, 26742489, 26742269
7 Andheri (West), Barfiwala Raod (022) 26231136, 26284287
8 Andheri (West), Lokhandwala (022) 26367467/68
9 Ballard Estate (022) 22631114, 22621115
10 Bandra (East), Bandra-Kurla Complex (022) 26599182-85, 26599181
11 Bandra (East), Chetana College, Govt. Colony (022) 26428544, 26432636, 8097055151
12 Bandra (West), National Library (022) 26419249, 26419265
13 Bhandup (West), L.B.S. Marg (022) 25667192, 25667194
14 Borivali (East), Carter Road (022) 28050372, 24671117/18, 28622170
15 Borivali (West), Shimpoli (022) 28014653, 28014634
16 Borivali (West), Chandavarkar Lane (022) 28922725, 28940518, 28940537, 28912520
17 Borivali (West), I C Colony (022) 28921388, 28920699
18 Borivali (West), Sai Baba Nagar (022) 28090029/30
19 Borivali Nancy Colony (022) 28962006/07
20 Carnac Bunder, Vyapar Bhavan (022) 23481265/66
21 Chembur (West), Sion Trombay Road (022) 25287760/61
22 Chembur (West), Tilak Nagar (022) 25275503/04
23 Chembur (East), Collector'S Colony. (022) 25534016
24 Chhatrapati Shivaji Terminus (022) 2261122, 22071120
25 Corporate Banking Branch (022) 24821801, 24821841
26 Dadar (East), Dadasaheb Phalke Road (022) 24163144, 24106870, 24161145
27 Dadar (East), Hindu Colony (022) 24120460/61
28 Dadar (West), Gadkari Chowk (022) 24374258, 24374293
29 Dadar (West), Madhukendra Off N. C. Kelkar Road (022) 24221180
30 Dahisar (East), Maratha Colony (022) 24671273, 28281759
31 Dahisar (West) (022) 28929561
32 Dharavi, R. P. Nagar (022) 24035627
33 Fort, D. N. Road (022) 22043005/06, 49149000, 49147972
34 Ghatkopar (East), Opp. Ghatkopar Railway Station (022) 25012167
35 Ghatkopar (West), Barvenagar (022) 24671156, 25140646, 25113189
36 Ghatkopar (West), L. B. S. Road (022) 25001334/35
37 Ghatkopar (West), Maneklal Estate (022) 25166663/64
38 Girgaon, S. V. Sovani Path (022) 23841162
39 Goregaon (East), Hub (022) 26864150/51
40 Goregaon (East), Nagri Niwara (022) 28401550, 28421440
41 Goregaon (East), Walawalkar Wadi (022) 29275045/46/55/56
42 Goregaon (West) (022) 28745611/12, 28720962
43 Goregaon (West), Link Road (022) 28776248, 28774924
44 Jogeshwari (East), Majaswadi (022)28270677, 28204101
45 Juhu, N S Road No.13 (022) 26117538/39, 24671254, 26119121
46 Kalbadevi (022) 22079406/07
47 Kandivali (East), Thakur Complex (022) 28546881, 28546883
48 Kandivali (East), Thakur Village (022) 24671178, 28878883
49 Kandivali (West), Dahanukarwadi (022) 28627002/03
50 Kandivali (West), GIE - Govt. Indl. Easate (022) 24671175/76, 28677141
51 Kandivli (West), Junction of S. V. Road & Jamnadas 

Adukia Road
(022) 24671177, 28020457, 28643704
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Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

52 Kandivli (West), M. G. Road (022) 24671275/76, 28655009, 28084244
53 Kanvivali (West), Charkop (022) 24671124, 28690593, 28696225
54 Khar (West), Pali Hill (022) 26499693, 26460873
55 Khar, Linking Road (022) 26487589, 26046141
56 Lower Parel, N. M. Joshi Marg (022) 24378832, 24379930
57 Mahim, Sitaladevi Temple Road (022) 24453328, 24468864, 24465754
58 Malad (West), Orlem (022) 28619454/55
59 Malad (West), Link Road (022) 28798533
60 Malad (West), Mamlatdar Wadi (022) 28441183/84
61 Masjid Bunder (022) 23411087, 23433058, 23426305
62 Matunga (East), Telang Road (022) 24032796, 24014624, 24026419
63 Mazgaon (022) 23707475/76
64 Mulund (East), L. T. Road (022) 21636137, 24671277, 21635054
65 Mulund (West), M. G. Road (022) 25618749/25911189
66 Mulund (West), R.R.T. Road (022) 25903041
67 Mulund (West), Veena Nagar (022) 21643655/56, 24671292
68 Mulund (West), Sarvoday Nagar (022) 25601025, 25901290/91
69 Mumbai Central (022) 23012024/25
70 Overseas Marine Lines (022) 49205656, 22096019
71 Parel (West), M. D. College (022) 24161146
72 Powai, Hiranandani (022) 25701726, 25702268
73 Powai, Opp. I.I.T. (022) 25784868
74 Prabhadevi, Opp. Ravindra Natya Mandir (022) 24223780, 24671200, 24228328
75 Santacruz (East) (022) 26175133/34
76 Santacruz (East), Kalina (022) 26654361/62
77 Santacruz (West), Station Road (022) 26040096, 26040180
78 Sion (West), Swami Vallabhadas Road (022) 24083727/ 6353,
79 SME - Nariman Point, Vidhan Bhavan Marg (022) 22856215, 43682000, 43682030
80 SME - Vikhroli LBS Marg (022) 42499900, 42499988
81 SME - Vileparle, Subhash Road (022) 42349999/53, 42349988
82 Vidyavihar (West) (022) 25134137/38
83 Vikhroli (East), Behind Vikroli Bus Depot (022) 25741105/06
84 Vikhroli (West), Station Road (022) 25780245, 25785770
85 Vile Parle (East) Nehru Road (022) 26133303, 26106835
86 Vile Parle (West), Besant Road (022) 26147095, 24671293, 26147097
87 Wadala, Antop Hill (022) 24016030, 24671113, 24038069, 24099438
88 Wadala, R. A. Kidwai Road (022) 24161230
89 Worli, Dr. A. B. Road (022) 24221209/10

Thane & Palghar District   
90 Ambernath (East) (0251) 2609292, 2609797
91 Badlapur (East) Branch (0251) 2697711
92 Bhayander (West) Dr. Ambekar Marg (022) 28186905/907
93 Bhiwandi, Gauri Pada (02522) 230060/61
94 Boisor, Ameya Park (02525) 2694666/278666, 
95 Dombivali (East), Bhagat Singh Road (0251) 2447690
96 Dombivali (West), M. G. Cross Marg (0251) 2489022/2493013, 
97 Kalwa, Station Road (022) 25347456, 24671173/74
98 Kalyan (East), Kolshewadi (0251) 2363862/63
99 Kalyan (West), Shil Road (0251) 2971661/62
100 Kalyan, Khadakpada (0251) 2302208/209
101 Kalyan, Murbad Road (0251) 2200081, 2205037, 2210427
102 Mira Road, Royal Complex (022) 28551848, 28551851
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Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

103 Palghar, Kacheri Road (02525) 250695, 252604, 254966
104 Thane (West), Panchpakhadi (022) 25348645, 25348646
105 Thane (East), Kopri (022) 25325016/23
106 Thane (West), Brahmand (022) 25841365/66
107 Thane (West), Hiranandani (022)21730758/959
108 Thane (West), Jambhali Naka (022) 25330370/71, (022) 25346090
109 Thane (West), Kasarvadvali (022) 25976585, 25976884
110 Thane (West), Khopat (022) 25372175/76
111 Thane (West), Naupada (022) 25332677
112 Thane (West), Vartak Nagar (022) 25390772, 25390772
113 Thane (West), Vijay Nagari (022) 25971603/2242 
114 Thane (West), Wagle Estate (022) 25837767/68
115 Ulhasnagar (0251)2732716/17 
116 Vasai (East), Vasai Nallasopara Link Road (0250) 6906054, 6056055
117 Vasai (West) (0250) 23409344/55
118 Virar (East), Bazar Ward (0250) 2520527, 2526162, 2526667, 2521098
119 Virar (West), Agashi Road (0250) 2505767/962, 6480276
120 Virar (West), Arnala (0250) 2588311

Navi Mumbai
121 Airoli, Sector – 7 (022) 27602655/56
122 APMC (022) 27831160/61
123 CBD Belapur, Sector - 11 (022) 27560083/ 84
124 Kamothe, Sector - 7 (022) 27431571/72
125 Khanda Colony, New Panvel (022) 27453183/84
126 Kharghar, Sector - 7 (022) 27746911/22
127 Koparkhairane, Sector - 20 (022) 27551328/29
128 Nerul (East), Sector - 21 (022) 27712666/67
129 Nerul (West), Sector - 4 (022)27729922/3657
130 Sanpada, Sector - 4 (022) 27755292, 27755381, 27755381
131 Seawoods (022) 27724551, 27714551
132 Turbhe (022) 27842234/35
133 Uran, Karanja Road (022) 27231008/09
134 Vashi, Sector -12 (022) 27667615/16
135 Vashi, Sector -17 (022) 27890192, 24671218

Pune
136 Akurdi (020) 27662133/2157/2087
137 Aundh (020) 25890332/31, 25886169
138 Baner Road (020) 27292957/58
139 Bavdhan (020) 22951512/2434
140 Bhosari (020) 27112366/67
141 Bhusari Colony, Kothrud (020) 25286002/04
142 Bibwewadi (020) 24231467, 24213217
143 Budhwar Peth (020) 24462131, 24455226
144 Chakan (02135) 249331/30
145 Chinchwad (020) 27351313/1414
146 Dahanukar Colony (020) 25462500/9648
147 Fergusson College Road (020) 25652491/92
148 Fatima Nagar (020) 26861046/0181
149 Ganesh Khind Road (020) 25582249
150 Ganesh Nagar (020) 25435066/77
151 Hadapsar (020) 26999081/4424

State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network
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152 Hinjewadi (020) 22933567/66
153 Karve Road (020) 25431780/5937/2056
154 Katraj (020) 24364847/48
155 Kharadi (020) 27014026/27
156 Kondhava (020) 26851073/74
157 Narayan Peth (020) 24465178/205
158 Narhe (020) 24390115/14
159 Pashan (020) 25870092/0492
160 Paud Road (020) 25449122/29
161 Pimple Nilakh (020) 27276000/01
162 Pimple Saugadar (020) 27206600/01
163 Pimpri (020) 27474671/5856/7757
164 Rajguru Nagar (02135) 223377/88
165 Ranjangaon 7276007102
166 Sahakar Nagar (020) 24221211/1411
167 Shivane (020) 25294914/15
168 Sinhagad Road (020) 24109120/21
169 SME - Pune (020) 41422200/09, 24671164/65, 23821240
170 Somwar Peth (020) 26063721, 26134722, 26131368
171 Talegaon (02114) 224004/5
172 Tilak Road (020) 24444257, 24448941, 24440565
173 Undri (020) 26909075/83
174 Vamnicom (020) 66221420
175 Viman Nagar (020) 26630226/27
176 Vishrantwadi (020) 26696172/73
177 Wagholi 8087001175
178 Wakad (020) 29705755/66
179 Warje Branch (020) 25215154/55

Ahmednagar
180 MIDC (0241) 2777602/03
181 Savedi Road (0241) 2341121/20

Nagpur
182 Chhapru Nagar (0712) 2730266/60
183 Gandhibaug (0712) 2721769, 2722694, 2725157
184 Hingana Road (07104) 237022/26
185 Kalamana Market (0712) 2680325/544
186 Pratap Nagar (0712) 2243260/80
187 Wardha Road (0712) 2252903/04

Akola
188 Akola (0724) 2436611

Aurangabad
189 CIDCO (0240) 2243006/07/020
190 Gajanan Maharaj Temple (0240) 2243012/13
191 Khadkeshwar (0240) 2243000/01/19
192 MGM, Medical College (0240) 2243008/030
193 MIT- Hospital (0240) 2243027/009
194 Station Road (0240) 2243011/31/10
195 T V Centre, Aurangabad (0240) 2243028/29
196 Waluj (0240) 2243005/21
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Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

Solapur
197 Solapur (0217) 2727225/26

Raigad
198 Alibaug Branch (02141) 225951-53
199 Mahad (02145) 223822/23
200 Panvel, M.C.C.H   (022)27467944/45
201 Panvel, S. N. Road (022)27461161/64
202 Pen (02143) 255584/85
203 Roha (02194) 232352/53
204 Ulwe 9833918247 (BM MOBILE)

Jalgaon
205 Baliram Peth - Jalgaon (0257) 2233613/14
206 Jalgaon (0257) 2234382/83

Satara
207 Karad (02164) 225505/07
208 Satara (02162) 227355, 227455

Nashik
209 CIDCO (0253) 2390432
210 Gangapur Road (0253) 2314538/39
211 Jail Road (0253) 2416430
212 Mahatma Nagar (0253) 2357461, 2360434
213 Main Road (0253) 2502220/21
214 Musalgaon (02551) 240752
215 Sharanpur (0253) 2581293, 2317677, 2314916

Ratnagiri
216 Chiplun (02355) 257138, 255201
217 Lanja (02351) 230195/96
218 LAVEL (02356) 262640
219 Rajapur (02353) 232344/45
220 Ratnagiri (02352) 223690/91

Sindhudurg
221 Devgad (02364) 261828/29
222 Kankavli - Rameshwar Plaza (02367) 230241/42
223 Kudal (02362) 221150/51
224 Malvan (02365) 252114/45
225 Sawantwadi (02363) 274413/14
226 Vaibhavwadi (02367) 237585/6
227 Vengurla (02366) 262509/10, 262104

Sangli
228 Mahavirnagar (0233) 2624267, 2622106
229 Shastri Chowk (0233) 2332294 
230 Miraj Laxmi Market (0233) 2223138/151
231 Shivaji Nagar (0233) 2375899/90 
232 Kupwad (0233) 2346878
233 Vita (02347) 276230

State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network
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Kolhapur
234 Ichalkarnaji (0230) 2432597
235 Mahapalika (0231) 2644208
236 Mangalwar Peth (0231) 2621319
237 New Shahupuri (0231) 2651753/54 
238 Rajarampuri (0231) 2521681/550, 2527012

Gujarat
Ahmedabad

240 Anand Nagar (079) 26769351/52
241 Bapu Nagar (079) 22777754/55
242 C.G. Road (079) 26401387/88, 26420313
243 Ghatlodia (079) 27402740/41
244 Isanpur (079) 25810004/5
245 Mani Nagar (079) 25461004/5
246 Naranpura (079) 27492958/3026

Vadodara
247 Karelibaug (0265) 2481299/49
248 Fatehganj (0265) 2750586/7
249 Manjalpur (0265) 2643506/7
250 Alkapuri (0265) 232900

Surat
251 Adajan - Surat With Atm (0261) 2780168/186
252 Ring Road - Surat (0261) 2335230, 2335231
253 Surat (0261) 2552093/94, 2562090, 2552092

Vapi
254 Vapi (0260) 2425663-64

Karnataka
Belgaum

255 Samadevi (0831) 2420433, 2436342
256 Tilakwadi (0831) 2468544/630

Hubli
257 Hubli (0836) 2256015, 2356468

Bengaluru
258 Banashankari (080) 26763781, 26763815
259 Chamrajpeth (080) 26601213, 26600050
260 Gandhinagar (080) 22341151/2
261 Jayanagar (080) 26532275/6
262 Koramangala (080) 25502275, 25508876
263 Malleshwaram (080) 23466656/7

Davangere
264 Davangere (08192) 233453

Dharwad
265 Dharwad (0836) 2443396/7
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Sr.  
No.  

Name of the Branch Tel. No.

Mangalore
266 Bhavanthi Street (0824) 2440636/7
267 Chilimbi (0824) 2452143/4
268 Kodialbail - M.G. Road (0824) 2495671/2

Mysore
269 Mysore (0821) 2542266, 2544666

Tumkur
270 Tumkur (0816) 2277667/68

Udupi
271 Udupi (0820) 2526010, 2529010

Goa
272 Bicholim (0832) 2360460
273 Curchorem - Sanvordem (0832) 2654044
274 Mapusa (0832) 2264064/268
275 Margaon (0832) 2732321, 2736114, 2732594
276 Panjim (0832) 2228023, 2425662/210
277 Ponda (0832) 2318556/726
278 Porvorim (0832) 2412502/03
279 SME - Goa (0832) 2437021/31/22
280 Sankhali, (Sanquelium) (0832) 2365677/8
281 Vasco (0832) 2515170, 2517732, 2515553

Madhya Pradesh
282 Indore, Shrivardhan Complex (R. N. T. Marg) (0731) 2528791-94/96 
283 Indore, Annapurna Road (0731) 2473232

Delhi
284 Connaught Place (011) 23412100
285 Lajpat Nagar (011) 26422100

State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network
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